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have to lay a proper and appropriate foundation before
eliciting any testimony regarding future care or the
appropriateness of other physicians' treatment.

MR. WALL: And that's covered really -- the future part,
I think, is covered more in a later motion.

MR. ROGERS8: In a later motion. I actually didn't even
address that, but I -- it makes since to address it, but could
I before we get an ultimate ruling on futures? So far all
I've been discussing is whether a doctor can say under cath in
his deposition, I've relied on A, B and C and then come into
court and say oh, I didn't tell anybody this, but now it's X,
Y and 2 too. That's really what we've been talking about so
far and the unfair surprise in that. And I'm just reguesting
that the Plaintiff disclose whether that's going to happen, so
that I can evaluate it and advise my client, this is what's
coming and you need to be aware of this and we may need to do
scme more work.

The futures, though, has more to do with the
computation of damages rule. And that -- it also is folded
within Rule 26{e]l, in that the Plaintiff is not permitted to
come intc court and request damages for which no computation
has been supplied. Now, the Plaintiff has provided a
computation. We're ready right now with the current
computation. The motion in that regard is that if that's

changed any change should be disallowed.
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THE COURT: Seems like you're arguing the subject of
another motion perhaps?

MR. ROGERS: ©Okay. I thought that's where you were geing
and that's why I jumped into that.

THE COURT: OCkay.

MR. WALL: -The next part of our omnibus motion in limine
ig to preclude any referral to the -- I guess it would be Dr.
Fish and Dr. Wang on behalf of the Defendants as independent.
I'm not sure there's really a major copposition to that, it's
just -- really the gist of the motion is that somehow there
isn‘'t some suggestion that they're appointed by the Court or
in some way the parties got together and said, let's have
somaone independent look at Mr. Simao. So that's the gist of
the motion. I'm not sure there's really an opposition to
that.

THE COURT: I don't think Ms. Rogers really opposed that.
I think his statement in the pleadings was basically if it's
going to be referred to as Defense expert, they ought to
similarly be referred to as Plaintiffs’' experts.

MR. WALL: That's fine. That's fine.

THE COURT: I don't disagree with that. The moticn is
granted.

MR. WALL: The next part is to preclude any reference or
argument that the case is attorney driven or a medical buildup

case. I know the Court has seen this before. They can say
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there's not objective evidence of injury, they can say the
injuries weren't caused by the motor vehicle accident, hut
what they cannot argue or have an expert say is that it's
attorney driven or that it's a medical buildup case. There
isn't any evidence in the record to support it. Dr. Fish
didn't say that -- their expert. I don't believe that Dr.
Wong, who is being deposed today, is going to say that,
because it's not in his reports to date.

The opposition then goes into a little different
area and that is the admissibility of any of the treating
doctors' relationships with counsel. Now I'm not sure where
we're going with that or what's going to be offered. It's
generally not admissible, I don't know whether it's that -- I
guess, you know, you can ask questions of experts as to
whether they worked with a particular attorney or a particular
firm before. We got into this long after the surgery, I
think, it probably was about a year ago, I think, that our
firm got into it, so I'm not sure what the relevance is.

My request on that, because it was sort of brought
up as a collateral issue a little hit in opposition to our
motion is that there be some offer of proof before any
argument or examination of a treating doctor about any
relationships with coungel. I don't think it has any
relevance, I don't think there's much probative value. The

prejudicial effect of that could be significant. 8o that
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would be our request and it's a little different than what we
put in the papers after we read the opposition.

THE COURT: You know, I -- it's interesting that you make
those comments because I also thought that the opposition
really didn't address Plaintiff's motion. It sort of veered
off in other tangents, Mr. Rogers? |

MR. ROGERS: Yes, I believe the reason for that is that,
while the motion is entitled an exclusionary motion on our
arguments that the case is attorney driven or medical buildup,
it moves into areas broader than that, that seems to invite a
bigger discussion. Might not hit it directly, but we thought
let's just make sure that this is all shored up, so that we're
all on the same page. I don't want to come in here and do
anything that might offend the Court, so I figured let's just
get the playing field clear and let's covexr all these issues.

Now, the Defense doesn't intend to -- I've never
once in my career used the phrases attorney driven or medical
buildup, however the -- I guess very close cousin to those
phrases is attorney relationships with the medical providers.
Mr. Wall did a fine job at last Thursday's deposition of the
Defense medical expert, Dr. Fish, of exploring the expert
testimony history between Dr. Fish and Defense attorneys and
Plaintiff attorneys and my firm and that's fair game. That's
the reason that the rules of discovery require a disclosure

for experts of these testimony lists -- or histories and the
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same is true for the medical providers ana specially retained
experts that the Plaintiff will put on the stand. The money
that they've made, prior cases in which they've testified for
Plaintiffs and for that law firm.

And even beyond that, like Mr. Wall was suggesting,
relationships. Well, of course a relationship is relevant.
If some expert is a good friend of mine who I go to football
games with, well that's something relevant to bias. And
that's something a jury should know about because now he's not
-- he's even less objective than a Defense medical expert
then. He's a friend and wouldn't a friend maybe color things
a little bit more favorable to my case than somecne who I
don't socialize with? Of course these things are relevant.
That's the stuff juries should hear about so that they can
fairly evaluate the credibility of the witnesses.

THE COURT: Okay. I have a couple of questions for you.

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

TﬁE COURT: The firgt is, I think you've probably
answered this by not -- but you haven't specifically and I
want to hear specifically, do you have any evidence that this
case is attorney driven or that there's any medical buildup
issues?

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, I -- well, as I sald, I don't use
those terms. Let me think, -it's -- this really isn't that

kind of a case. The Plaintiff treated within his HMO network
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after the accident. This isn't one of those where, you've

" geen many times, okay right after the accident I drove to this

attorney's office and this attorney referred me to this

medical provider and I began treating on a lien. It's not

like that. So to -- yeah, to the extent that the question is

concerned about that, ne it -- that's not what this case is
about .

THE COURT: So you don't have any evidence of any
attorney driven issues ox medical buildup issues?

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, I think to the extent I understand
that -- those terms, I believe you're right.

THE COURT: Well, I mean to the extent that the motion
wag briefed and to the extent that we heard Mr. Wall's
argument, I really haven't heard, nor did I see in your
written pleadings, anything to suggest that you have any
evidence like that. I think if you have any evidence like
that, then let's hear about it.

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, it's -- I guess my question then is
does that question incorporate these concerns about prior
testimony histories, relationships, you know, soc¢ial
relationships, things like that --

THE COURT: I see that as a different issue.

MR. ROGERS: -- is that part of attorney -- ockay, good.

THE COURT: I see that as a different issue.

MR. ROGERS: Then -- yeah, I -- no, I think -- as I
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believe I understand the term, no we don't see that an
attorney told the Plaintiff get this medical treatment and a
doctor said ckay, attorney, I'll do that for you. I don't see
that in this case.

THE COURT: Okay. Then the motion as it was drafted is
granted. With respect to the other issues you raised, which I
think are important issues for trial purposes relating to bias
of expert witnesses and how many times they've testified, for
example, for a certain firm and what kind of compensation
they've received for their time, I think those are all fair
game .

With respect to your other issue regarding a social
relationship, do you have any evidence of that? Social
relationship between an attorney and an expert witnesg?

MR. ROGERS: Well, I know off-hand of one instance -- one
example of it, so yes.

THE COURT: In this case?

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

THE COURT: And was it something that came up during the

course of deposition?

MR. ROGERS: ©No, no, it's just something that is -- I
hate to -- can I tell Mr. Wall first, because I don't want
anybody to be offended as -- now that we're on the record

and --

THE COURT: You know what, let's trail that issue since
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it really wasn't an issue in Mr. Wall's motion and we can

address it -- maybe we'll take a five minute break and you can

address it with Mr. Wall.

MR. ROGERS: 1I'l1 even tell you as long as -- I don't
want to say it on public record if it might cause offense and
sort of a chambers approach and then we can decide whether
everybody is okay with discussing --

THE COURT: I think we'd better trail it for -- maybe
when we take a break in between, we finish up Plaintiff's
motions and before we move on to Defense motions.

MR. ROGERS: BSure.

THE COURT: You can bring it up if you wish.

MR. WALL: Judge, the next section is collateral source.
I don't think there's a disagreement on the issues of
collateral source, except for the issues of liens. There's no
dispute on sources of payment of medical bills, health
insurance, HPN, I think is the HMO that was used here. The
issue, I guess, that there's a dispute on is that of liens.

I'm not sure why ultimately it's a major issue here,.
As Mr. Rogers said, Mr. Simac treated mostly with his health
insurance under HPN. They will likely have a subrogation
lien, I'm not sure why that's relevant. Any of the other
treatment that he had that may have been on a lien is likewise
not relevant. There's been no evidence of any bias, based on

the existence of any lien. We haven't pointed the Court to
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any provider who testified even remotely to any bias or it was
even explored the issue of bias with respect to any
outstanding lien.

It becomes evidence of the Plaintiff's financial
condition, that he doesn't have the money to pay for
everything, that's why he has health insurance through his
business. It's not relevant. Their financial condition ism't
relevant. He's been forced to treat on liens or through his
healthcare -- health insurance provider, it's our position as
a result of the Defendant's negligence. And so to beat him
over the head with that and use that against him and somehow
bring in the fact of -- that it may have been on liens is
irrelevant. Unless there's some actual evidence of bias as a
result of some provider treating on a lien, I don't think it's
relevant.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Thank you. There's a reason our Supreme
Court has never categorized a lien as a collateral source. A
collatéral source is something that a victim purchases before.
a casualty, for which they receive a benefit after the
casualty that our courts have said, as a matter of public
policy, we won't allow to inure to the benefit of the tort
fees here. That's a collateral source.

A lien is a subsequent undertaking. A lien is the

very polar opposite of a collateral source. It is the stuff
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that bias and prejudice and all those things are made of. The
Plaintiff did treat on a lien with two medical providers, Drs.
Grover and Dr. Rosler. And the Defense is unquestionably
entitled to ask theﬁ about their financial interest, as we
discussed in a previous motion. Their financial interest
consists not only of what they're being paid to appear here in
trial, but what they might stand to gain if their opinions
persuade the jury of the verdict that would most benefit them.
Of course that's relevant.

THE COURT: Any response, Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: Well, then I don't know how you differentiate.
Neither one of them did the surgery, so do we leave the jury
with the impression that Mr. Simao paid for his surgery and
all of his medical treatment out of his pocket? Do we bring
in the fact that health insurance covered it and why didn't
health insurance cover Dr. Grover and Dr. Rosler? 1Is it
because the third-party administrator, or wheoever, from the
health insurance doesn’'t, you know, allow these twoc doctors?
And why did he go to these two doctors outside of his
insurance? Things like that. I mean, that's the next step if
we bring that in.

I don't recall from the depositions of Dr. Rosler or
Dr. Grover that there was any suggestion of any bias. They
didn't even end up doing the surgery. Dr. Grovér did, Dr.

McNulty did. 2and so I think that it inevitably leads to more
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questions that are more prejudicial than whatever probative
value they might -- there might be.

I don't think the Defense experts say that Dr.
Grover and Dr. Rosler did something that wasn't medically
indicated. Their position is none of this was caused by the
accident. Their position is all he had was migraines and
whatever they did isn't related to the accident. And there's
some discrepancy, I think, although Dr. Wong hasn’'t been
deposed yet until this afterncon.

So I don't know where the relevance is as to those
two medical providers. And I think I agree that those are the

only two that were outside HPN, but it ends up prejudicing Mr.

8imac to the extent that he can't bring out the fact of maybe

why he went there or why Dr. McNulty ended up doing the
surgery or any of that because it all gets back to the issues
of health insurance, which are inadmissible.

THE COURT: I agree. The motion is granted.

MR, WALL: Thank you.

THE COURT: T think.counsel can explore the issue of bias
aside from getting into issues with respect to payment and
collateral sources. Next motion?

MR. WALL: I'm going to pass the next section --

MR. ROGERS: Can I get a -- just a point of
clarification? Is the Court characterizing a lien then as a

collateral scurce?
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»

THE COURT: I don't think the Court has to do that. I
think once you start discussing liens you're discussing issues
of wheo's paid for what and issues of ingurance are invariably
going to come up and I think that's exactly what Proctor
forbids,

MR. WALL: Judge, the next section I guess I'm going to
table because there's -- it's evidence of when Plaintiff
retained counsel and the opposition goes into relationships
again. So --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. WALL: -- I guess we'll table that one in -- as well.
And then the final part of our omnibus motion in limine is
seeking a ban on an argument that the attorney, on behalf of
the Plaintiff, is asking for more than they expect to receive.
I know you've seen this before. They can argue that what
we're asking for isn't supported by the evidence, they can
argue causation, they can't say the reason they're asking for
this amount because you -- they really want you to return this
lower amount, and that's- what wérseek to preclude.

THE COURT: And my understanding of Mr. Rogers' writteﬁ
opposition was he didn't really oppose -- he didn't really
oppose that motion as it was framed and drafted by counsel.
What he wanted, I understand, was to be able to argue the
evidence and inferences and so on.

MR. ROGERS: Right. And if Plaintiff requeskts an
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excessive amount that we be, of course, permitted to say so.
I -«- this is another one of those catch phrases that I don't
use, that the Plaintiff is asking you for more than he hopes
to get. 8o if that's what's to be excluded, fine.

THE COURT: Then I think we're all on the same page on
that one. Motion is granted.

Let's take a fiwve minute break, allow counsel an

opportunity to chat.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

MR. WALL: Thank you.

[(Recessg]

THE COURT: Back on record.

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

THE COURT: So what about that remaining motion --

MR. ROGERS: The attorney --

THE COURT: -- in Plaintiff's packet?

MR. ROGERS: Oh, the attorney relationship with the

medical provider?

THE COURT: No, it was titled "Attorney Retention and
Referral."

MR. ROGERS: Oh.

MR. WALL: Well, we ~- I'm sorry, Judge.

THE COURT: It's okay.

MR. WALL: When you chew those mints, man, whew.

The one that was attorney driven or medical buildup
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had as a component of the opposition this issue of doctor's
relationships with counsel. So we'wve tabled that, and I think
Mr. Rogers was going to make a statement on that.

I -~ the one that's later on, evidence of when the
Plaintiff retained counsel, in the oppeosition, again, they go
into the issue of relationships between experts and lawyers
being relevant. And so that's the reason I said, hey, let's
table that until -- until after the break, too, because it --

THE COURT: Ch.

MR. WALL: -- it's the same type of issue.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, WALL: So I think what -- Well, I don't know. You
want me to do it, or --

THE COURT: Mr, Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: On -- well, yeah, it's your motion, I
believe.

MR. WALL: Well, I mean, the nature of this relationship
in regard to --

MR. ROGERS: Oh, no. Yeah. The relationship that the
Defense may introduce if Dr. McNulty takes the stand is that
he has a social relationship with Plaintiff's counsel. No,
not Mr. Wall, but the law firm, and that he vacations with
them. And that, we submit, is relevant. Any relationship
that he méy have with counsel is relevant.

THE COURT: Mr. Wall?
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MR. WALL: I guess I have a problem with it on a couple
levels. You are essentially introducing it to say or explore
the possibility that the spine surgeon either would color his
testimony based on a relationghip with somebody at Plaintiff's
counsels' table or their firm, or -- strike that.

And/or that Plaintiff's counsel, based on their
relationship, would intentionally elicit information that was
untruthful. And when you balance it between the probative
value of that cross and the prejudicial effect, it's necessary
to factor into that balance the fact that Dr. McNulty
recommended surgery, potentially, or at least discussed
surgery in 2006. Again he discussed it with Mr. Simao, I
believe, in 2008. He ultimately performed the surgery in
2009. He was deposed, I want to say, October or November of
2008 before the surgery, and he was deposed again about May or
June of 2009 after the surgery.

We were never in the case at that point. Our firm
was never in the cage. So to say -- if that's going to come
out during cross, then on redirect we have to get .into the
fact that we weren't in the case. We have to defend ourselves
and our client saying, "We weren't even in the case when you
treated him, recommended surgery, were deposed, cut on him,
and were deposed again."

We weren't in the case even at that point. So I

think when it factors into the balance based on all of those
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facts, it's more prejudicial than prcbative, and it's
basically not only an attack on the witness, but it's an
attack on Plaintiff's counsel. &And I think that that's
inappropriate.

THE COURT: When did you come intc the case, Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: I want to say -- I think it was spring of
2010, but it may have been a little earlier than that. I know
-- I know when I came in the case, but -- but as to when the
firm came in the case, I don't know for sure. But that's -- I
don't believe that we were present for any of the depesitions
of Dr. McNulty.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. WALL: But I don't think I have a copy of it with me.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. WALL: Wait, you know what, I might. I might
actually. No, I don't.

MR. ROGERS: The Defense would submit that the timing is
immaterial in that the relationship is during the trial
process. The issue presented in this case is really cause.
And -- |

THE COURT: Is really what?

MR. ROGERS: Cause, causation. And if Dr. McNulty is on
the stand, and Plaintiff's counsel is asking him questions,
and there's a relationship between the two of them, that is

every bit as material as whether a Defense medical experxrt is
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on the stand and he has been paid for his services. Mr. Wall
points out all sorts of improper inferences the jury could
draw from that; however, there's no question that that line of
questioning is permissible,

The fact that Plaintiff's counsel and Dr. McNulty
scoclalize is relevant for the very same reason as financial
gain, because friendship is at least as important as that. And
if there is a friendship, it's something the jury should be
permitted to incorporate into their evaluation of this witnesg
to determine whether he has any biae, prejudice or credibility

concerns.

THE COURT: You know, I think both parties make scome

really good points. When did you discover this information,
Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Probably -- I'm sorry. Probably four or
Eive months ago. It wasn't a matter of discovery; it was --
actually, I socialize with some of the guys who work in -- in
Mr. Wall's and on that floor, and -- and that's where I
discovered it, but it wasn't formal discovery. A2aAnd so, you
know, knowing that I thought, well, that's something that if
Dr. McNulty is called the jury should be aware of.

THE CQURT: I think you have the right to bring that and
brief it, and the Court will take a look at it. I don't know
if there are any other motions in limine other than these that

are calendar teday. Are there?
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MR. ROGERS: 0Oh, well, in that -- if none on your
calendar, then we've got lots of reading for you.
MR. WALL: She means -- she means other than the ones
on the calendar.
COURT: Other than --
WALL: There are some. There have been --
-- today's.

-- some that have been filed since these were

COURT: That's what I'm asking.

MR. ROGERS: Oh,

MR. WALL: She doesn't mean it -- you know there's still

a bunch of Defense motions on today.
THE COURT: I know. Defense has way more than you had,
Mr. Wall.
MR. WALL: Correct.
MR. ROGERS: Okay.
MR. WALL: I saw that,
But, yes, there are some more. 8o --

THE COURT: I think whatever date those are set for you

could -- you could file your motion, and counsel could brief

it, and the Court could address it.
MR. ROGERS: Yeah, let me write that down. So brief the
admissibility of a social relationship between counsel and a

medical provider?
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THE COURT: I mean, it's your motion, =o however you --

MR. ROGERS: That -- okay.

MR. WALL: But would she -- you want them to file a
motion to allow that, and then we'll file an oppeosition to it?

THE COURT: Yeah. I think both sides have made some very
good points, and I'd like an opportunity to think about it
rather than just shoot from the hip on this one.

MR. WALL: Okay.

The other part of our motion in limine, the omnibus
motion in limine that we zort of held in abeyance was evidence
of when Plaintiff retained counsel,

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, I can make this short. I don't even
know that that's an issue in this case.

MR. WALL: All right.

THE COURT: So the motion 1s granted.

MR. WALL: Thanks.

THE COURT: OQOkay. That concludes all of your motions,
right, Mr. wWall?

MR. WALL: It does.

THE COURT: So that takes us to Defense motions.

MR. WALL: I will say that we're still, I think,
cirﬁulating the stipulation that we had about other motions
that we wouldn't be filing based on the agreement. I suppose
we can make a record on that.

MR. ROGERS: Oh, that EVCR --
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MR. WALL: Yeah.

MR. ROGERS: -- s8tip? Okay.

MR. WALL: Okay. I just didn't want to waive anything by
not bringing up things and then not have some disagreement
later. But I -- we are working on that stipulation.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

THE COURT: I don't know anything about that one.

MR. WALL: That's fine.

THE COURT: Okay, whenever you're ready, Mr. Rogers.

MR. ROGERS: Thank you.

Okay. I'm going to do my best to remember that --
there were a couple just housekeeping things 1 wanted to take
care of when we're done with the wmoticons.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. Where would you like to begin? We
have, I don't know, 10 or 12 of these.

THE COURT: Well, I think in order -- for the Court's
benefit, and for the clerk's benefit as well, we get -- we
need to make good minute orders.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. The order, then, doesn't - I mean,
the -- which one goes first doesn't matter?

THE COURT: It matters to me, because I read them in
ordexr as you presented them.

MR. ROGERS; Yeah.

THE COURT: So Number 1 was the traffic accident report.
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MR. ROGERS: Okay. Good. Let me juggle through my
papers and get to it. -

Yeah, Friag/Valle obviously holds that the report at
least in terms of conclusiong don't come in. The Plaintiff
provided a qualified oppositiﬁn to the motion to which he
attached a proposed redacted report. The Defense, as you'll
see in the reply, found that those redactions were incomplete,
and so submitted a second form for your consideration.

The -- if I remember right, the problems that were
not redacted in the Plaintiff's proposed form included
ingurance information, conclusions such as speed estimates,
and things of that nature, This is an officer -- this
accident happened on the freeway, and the wvehicles were moved
to the side of the freeway off the road before the police
arrived. There's nothing resembling a -~ an admissible
accident reconstruction. The officer admitted as much at his
deposition.

So those conclusions, and obviously talking about
insurance, is -- is improper.

THE CQURT: Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL:; I agree, frankly; although, the insurance part
is something that was basically an oversight, that I'm looking
now and I see on -- I think it's the fourth or fifth page of
the report, the speed -- because I was -- the one that's

attached to their reply has the description of the accident in
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narrative on that first page. And I didn't know -- wé had
redacted that.

MR. ROGERS: OQkay. Let me pull that. Maybe we can just
reach an agreement right here and- now.

MR. WALL: And the speed part that I -- the only speed
part that I saw was -- I think he just had zeroes with
everyone in it.

THE COQURT: Let wme make it easy. The motion's granted.

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

MR. WALL: All right.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

If -- we'll look at the report and see if there are
any other redactions we think that we should agree to. But
the default, I gather, is that the one that was attached is
the redacted form to the reply?

THE COURT: I don't know that the traffic accident report
is admissible at all.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

THE COURT: You've got photos of the accident, right?

MR. ROGERS: That -- yes.

THE COURT: You've got testimony of the witnesses. I
don't know that you need it, So the motion's granted.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. Very good. So the reports out.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.
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Okay

MR. ROGERS:

MR, WALL: I don't need

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

ind I'm sorry, Your Honor, I don't have the order in
which -- which you --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ROGERS: -- in which we filed them. So what's next?

THE COURT: Number 2 is argument of the case during voir
dire.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. Now, as you know, we'wve kind of
touched on this the first time we met in this case on the jury
questionnaire issue. There’s not a lot to add to that, other
than that Plaintiff agrees that counsel shouldn't be arguing
the case during voir dire. And the Court, it's clear from our
last hearing, you have a good understanding with your role to
make sure that everyone behaves themselves, and limits the
inquiries to matters that do go to fitness to sit on the jury.

I've just been in a few trials, where things have
gone kind of haywire, and people are actually discussing facts
of the case. 2and I thought, let's just not let that happen
here.

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Wall's an experienced trial
attorney. I would hope that by virtue of the jury

questionnaire a lot of this information you're going to have
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already had access to it before you examine the panel. So did
you want to address this issue?

MR. WALL: If it's just that we can't argue the case,
that's fine. I don't have a problem with that.

The -- the motion says, "can't use the process to

seek jurors with similar viewpoints." I'm not sure that I
agree with that, and I'm not sure that a -- that a -- any
trial lawyer would necessarily agree with that. Obviously, as

you know, we can explore certain areas. We can follow-up to

questions in the questionnaire, and all that. So if it's just

that we're not to argue our case, I'm with you.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. WALL: Reciprocally, of course.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

THE COURT: Do you agree with that, Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Well, again, this is more an art than a
science; and that is, the artists push too far once counsel
have begun guestioning jurors in a way that ensures jurors who
are favorable to their case rather than jurors who are simply
unbiased and gualified to hear the case.

That's where this conditioning concern that we all
discussed at our last meeting comes into play. A lot of these
questiong, whether by design or not, do have the effect of

conditioning, and that's not a proper use of voir dire.
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So, yes, while counsel obviously on both gides want
to have jurors favorable to their case, it's a misuse of the
procesee to ask questions that do nothing about that. I know

it's an art guestion. We can't draw an exact line. I think

-- I think you get where the concern is on it.

THE COURT: Won't you be seeking jurérs who are favorable
to the Defense?

MR. ROGERS: I think both sides will, and the whole point
ig, how far does it go. And the answer, it seems, is it
shouldn't go very far.

THE COURT: We'll have to just play this one by ear. The
motion is partly granted on -~ on counsel's statements and
representations.

MR. ROGERS: OQkay.

MR. WALL: Judge, can I just -- I wanted to go back to
the one on the traffic¢ accident report. I was just kind of
gskimming through it. There might be some facts in there that
may be relevant. And I will certainly esit down with Mr.
Rogers to redact whatever we think is inappropriate. I,
frankly, agreed with most of the thinge in his motion. But if
we take all of that out, there might still be some
measurements and things that may be necessary, just out of an
abundance of caution. And I don't know if Mr. Rogers -- in
the reply it didn't seem like he had an opposition to that.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?
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MR. ROGERS: Well, yéah, if it's measurements I would
because the officer testified he didn't conduct any. These --
these are the problems with that report, when the vehicles
were moved, the officer said, "I'm not an accident
reconstructionist. I didn't do any of that kind of work. I
just talked to the people on the side of the road and then
wrote up this report.®

So I'm happy to talk to Mr. Wall about whatever it
is he might be interested in getting in.

MR. WALL: That's fine.

MR. ROGERS: For example, if a party told the officer
something and he reported it, well, maybe. I don't know. But
I don't see it in this report.

THE COURT: Well, he --

MR. WALL: 2And he's got things in there like the light
conditiong were daylight, and the roadway was dry. You know,
thogse -- those facts that are separate from the kinds of

things ‘that Frias said shouldn't come in; you know, estimating

the speed or what someone told him, things like that.
MR. ROGERS: Right, but all of that's undisputed. I
mean, the --
MR. WALL: That's --
MR. ROGERS: -- Defendant, as Mr. Wall pointed out --
THE COURT: I think that's why he wants it in there.

Look, here's the thing though: The ruling stands
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unless counsel stipulate to some sort of redacted report
coming in.

MR. WALL: Okay.

THE COURT: The Court has no'problem with that.

MR. WALL: Okay.

THE COURT: Number 3, Mr. Rogers, was witness testimony
regarding credibility of other witnesses, but there was not a
-- there was a non-opposition to that filed by Plaintiffs.

MR. WALL: Correct.

MR. RCGERS: Okay.

THE COURT: Motion's granted.

So the next one I have is regarding duplicative or
cumulative testimony or evidence.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. And while I leaf through my notes to
it, we're citing the evidentiary statute that precludes
duplicative testimony, which is simply getting people con the
stand to say. "Yeah, I agree with the last person who was up
here."

And the problem is that the Courts don't allow it,
and in part that's because -- in a case like this, where the -
- the volume favors one side over the other, the Defense isn't
entitled to retain nearly as many experts as the Plaintiff has
treating providers. And the Court certainly wouldn't allow
the Defense to hire two spine surgeons to get up on the stand

to say the same thing, and two pain management specialists to
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get up on the stand and say the same thing.

We're just saying, look, if one treating provider --
for example, McNulty, who we've been talking about, if he gets
up on the stand and he covers issues A, B, and C, then a Dr.
Grover, the other spine surgeon in the case, c¢an't get up and
duplicate what Dr. Mc¢Nulty said. He can testify about
observations that he made in his treatment of the Plaintiff,
but ultimate issues such as causation and things of that
nature would really be getting into the duplicative arena.

And that's what the statute prohibits.

THE COURT: Mr. Wall? |

MR. WALL: Judge, I don't have any problem with --
generally with the rule, obviously. But -- but what they're
asking for is not cumulative testimony. They ask in their
motion, "The Plaintiff shouldn't be able to call surgeons and
pain management doctors to have them agree with each other."

These are all separate treating physicians. You've
heard now that he was sent out, Mr. Simao was sent out to this
-- by the surgeon to this pain management doctor; did a
procedure or a number of procedures; get the results; they go
back. They may have opinions on causation, but they're not
cumuilative. They're each treating Mr. Simac. They're each --
or they're each part of the diagnostic process and reaching
certain conclusions.

The pain management doctors might complete some of
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those procedures. They can certainly testify to what they
did; the Plaintiff's response to any of those; the results,
even if it's forwarded to the surgeon who then reviews it and
makes a determination. I mean, their -- part of their case,
according to their experts is he shouldn't have undergcne
surgery. The surgery was unnecessary."

S50 those -- fhese aren't cumulative things. These
are part of the entire puzzle that the surgeon had at the time
he -- he performed the surgery.

They're also saying that none of this, if there was
anything there, was caused by the motor vehicle accident. The
procedures weren't necessary. They didn't work. I don't know
that that's cumulative evidence.

But, again, I'm -- there isn't a gpecific request in
the meotion to say, "Hey, keep this out." It's not as though
we have three spine surgeon experts. We just have treatiﬁg
doctors,

And so my request would be that the motion be denied
as a blanket prohibition to preclude a certain provider or a
number of them from testifying, obviously reserving the right
to -- to the Defense to object to whatever they deem to be --
to be cumulative during the testimeny.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?
MR. ROGERS: Well, it's -- it isn't one of those things

that can be forecasted. But the definition alone is
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sufficient for today's purpose. BAnd the definition of
cumulative evidence is corroborative evidence on the same
issue. And the Court can write an order saying that, "Yes,
I'll enforce" -- it's 48.035(2], "and we won't permit, whether
it's treating providers or specially retained experts to come
into this -- into the court and simply offer corrcborative
evidence of the same issue that's been covered by someone
elge."

THE COURT: You know, I don't disagree with your
characterization of N.R.S. 48.035, subsection 2, but the
motion is so broadly drafted that the Court has to deny it,
noting that counsel can certainly make his objections at time
of trial if he thinks that we're hearing cumulative testimony.

Next item that I had in your omnibus motion, Mr.
Rogers, was Number 5, Dr. Stan Smith, the economist.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. Now is it okay if I sit for this one
just to --

THE COURT: Sure, why not.

MR. ROGERS: -- thumb through my notes?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. ROGERS: The -- the opposition to this motion, I
think, much like some of the examples in the oppositions to
the Plaintiff's omnibus motion, sort of miss the mark of and
the issues presented in the motion. I think roughly eight

pages were spent explaining how hedonic damages have already
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been determined by our Supreme Court to be appropriate.

And our reply to that opposition was, well, of
courgse. We don't dispute that. That's not what this motion
is about.

What this motion is about is a breakdown of the

various categories that Mr. Smith has offered opinions on,

some of which are entirely unrelated teo the -- to the long

explanation of hedonic damages that the Plaintiff provided in
the opposition.

Fist is loss of business earnings, and in this case
the Plaintiff hired an economist you've probably known before,
Ira Spector. And he -- am I getting that right?

MR. WAILL: He's a vocational rehab.
MR. ROGERS: It wasn't Ira Spector. I can't recall who
it was.

But, anyway, withdrew him. BAnd what we have is MR.
Smith saying, "Okay, lock, the evidence -- the factual
evidence in this case doesn't support a loss. And so what I'm
going to do is, I'm going to use what I call a benchmark,
510,000 benchmark, and based on this benchmark, I'm going to
project future business loss.”

Now he -- Mr. Smith has been sort of supplementing,
like crazy lately, we just got another one on Friday, and even
stil)l the deficiencieg in his foundation have not been cured.

And here's what they are: He has the Plaintiff's tax returns,
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his personal returns. They prove that the Plaintiff has
earned more money every year since the accident then he ever
earned before the accident.

But remember the category that's being addressed
right now is business loss. And the problem with this is, he
only has post-accident earning records. Now we know that the
Plaintiff is earning more and more from his business every
year, but we have no way to measure whether the business has a
loss. He has two years from 2007 and 2008, again, this is two
and three years after the accident, that show 5250,000 of
income, net income I beliewve, for the business both of those

years. So there's no factual basis for a loas here.

In fact, the Plaintiff testified at his deposition

that he has not lost any income gince the incident. He also
testified that he bought this business two-and-a-half years
after the incident inviting a speculation. Our court has |
already addressed this dating back to the 1960s saying,
listen, if you'tve got a new venture, you're getting into
speculation when you're asking for damages because you don't
have a higtory. Well, he had no history with the business,
the Plaintiff didn't, because he didn't own it until two-and-
a-half years afterwards.

And so on this category, not only are the -- any
losses speculative, the factual foundation that Mr. Smith

supplies has no basis at all. BAnd that's the danger of it, is
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letting him get on the stand and say, "Well, ockay. I don't
have any facts, but using this benchmark and then adding a
bunch of ten-syllable economic terms, we can forecast, and all
that stuff, and here's the loss into the future," nothing at
all remotely supported by the records, the Plaintiff's
testimony, or anything else. But to get him to put that
number out there and to put that in front of the jury not only
lacks foundation, it presents a serious prejudice to the
Defense because now we have to respond to smoke. There's
nothing te it, but it's a number that the jury might write
down and get misled by.
And then I'll walk through these if you want, just

category by category, and let Mr. Wall respond to it.

THE COURT: Yes, that would be great.

MR. ROGERS: All right.

THE COURT: I think he wants you to respond as to each of
these items.

MR. WALL: Well, you know, I -- I went back because I

heard the argument, and I went back to read the motion because

it sounded like a motion teo, I guess, strike any wage loss or

business loss claim, and that's not really what the motion
was. It was -- it was that his methodology wasn't parxt of
Hallmark, that -- that his foundation was insufficient. And
then when shown his foundation in the supplemental report,

then the reply was sort of, you know, "Hey, we didn't have
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this at the time that we filed the motion."

So I -- we've attached his reports to the opposition
that we filed. You know, I am not an economist, but he has
laid out-on pages 2 and 3 of his report, and the tables that
are attached to it, the manner in which he calculated loss of
buginess earnings, loss of household family services, the
hedonic damages, and even the losa of gociety or relationship.

The -- the areas that I heard Mr. Rogers discuss are
perfectly appropriate cross-examination. They have an
economic expert -- is it Dr. Skauge [phonetic] or Mr. Skauge?

MR. ROGERS: Yes, doctor.

WALL: -- Dr. Skoog who has --

MR. ROGERS: They both are.

MR. WALL: Huh?

MR. ROGERS: They're both.

MR. WALL: Dr. Smith and Dr. Skoog. His -- he has
reviewed the reports. He has an opinion. We'll take him on
cross-examination. They can take Dr. Smith, who is
undoubtedly a very highly qualified economic expert, and take
it from there. But I can't say that I can artfully recreate
the economic bas}s for each of his conclusicons. I think I'd

be stepping out far past my expertise.

But I understood the motion as sort of being on

qualification and evidence, and I would -- I would stand on

Dr. Smith's -- on Dr. Smith's reports, including the updates.
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THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Yes. On page 4 we outline the arguments,
page 4 of the -- the motion. We outline the foundational
deficiency. The reason Hallmark is cited is because this is a
foundational challenge.

Foundation doesn't go only to Mr. Smith's education
and training. This foundation goes to, does he know enocugh
here to say what he intends to say; and is this idea of a
benchmark a -- a recognized substitute for facts., »Aand the
evidence that we've presented is that it is not. You can't
simply say, oh, I see that the Plaintiff is earning more now
than he ever did before, and I see that his business earnings
are the same as they ever were. So I'm going to, instead of
rely on the facts, use a made-up thing called a benchmark, and
I'm going to project future losses based on that.

That's foundational. That's not cross-examination,
because the facts aren't admissible at all, or the opinions, I
should say, aren't admissible at all.

THE COURT: The motion is granted as it relates to loes
of business earnings.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. Shall I -- okay.

Next, you'll -- you'll see that this -- what I'm
going to say now about household, family replacement,
housekeeping and house -- or, pardon me, home management

services is another running theme. It's a continuation of
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this benchmark idea.

Here -- I've been saying Mr. Smith. I'11 say Dr.
Smith if -- if that makes everybody here feel better about
him. He makes up a number, again, just like the benchmark.
On no foundation at all he assumes a 45-percent decrease in
activity. And there‘s no medical or factual foundation for a
45 -percent assumption. WNothing at all.

As Mr. Wall pointed out just a little bit ago, the

Plaintiff de-designated their vocaticnal rehabilitation

specialist. There's no disability exam; nobedy discussing
this 45-percent number.

Next there's no evidence that Dr., Smith conducted
any type of examination that would help him understand what it
was that the Plaintiff did before that hé isn't doing, or is
45 percent asgumptive -- or presumptively unable to do now in
the home. I mean, is it washing dishes, or is it mowing the
lawn; what is it? And, again, most importantly, how on earth
did an economist arrive at a 45-percent limitation in ADL.

Smith is a derivative expert. He can't make up
these numbers. He has to have foundation from someone who's
qualified to supply that number to him, and then he can put it
to numbers. Without that, he -- he can't offer the opinions in
this category.

THE COURT: Mr. Wallz

MR. WALL: You know, I -- listening to what Mr. Rogers
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says, I think maybe the appropriate middle ground, then, is to
do what we've -- what's been done in obviocusly a number of
cases when Dr. Claurity [phonetic] testifies; that is, he
says, look, here's the total value of household services given
his age, and his education, and all the things that -- the
same things, basically, that Dr. Smith used.

And if we want to say Dr. Smith shouldn't assign the
percentage of 45 percent, but rather let the trier of fact
assign the percentage, which is what we do when Dx. Claurity
testifies on this same issue, I think that's probably an
appropriate middle ground. I don't -- I don't really have a
problem with doing it that way. Then it leaves the -- the
issue of what de minutian [sie], if that's the right word, of
household services would be appropriate and the jury can award
that. But at least they have a total amount, and then if they
think he can only do 30 percent of -- of household services;
and he's lost 70 percent, then they can -- they can factor
that, which is what we do routinely with Dr. Claurity.

The fact that Dr. Smith took it a little further
after reviewing the Plaintiff's deposition, if you want to
leave that to the jury to determine after hearing Mr. Simao's
testimony, that's -- I think that's fine, and that would
essentially eliminate the issue.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Yes, thank you.
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Dr. Claurity is used in these cases after Dr.
Olaveri [phonetic] or somecne of his qualifi;ations supplies
the jury some guidance on what the limitations are, on what
the disabilities are. You can't simply say, okay, household
services over his expected -- or pardon me, his life
expectancy now of whatever it is, 35 years, amount to a total
of $2 million, because the jury sees thig number and they go,
"Well, I don't know what to do that, and nobody tells me what
he can and can't do."

Again, for the same reason that Smith can't assume
45 percent, neither could a jury. They'd have to have some
evidence of how to use that number and why it's relevant. And
there haven't been any disability or other qualifying reports
or evidence to even put that number in front of the jury.

THE COURT: What testimony or what expert witnesses is
the jury going to hear with respect to what Plaintiff can and
can't do now since this surgery, since this accident?

MR. WALL: Well, they'll hear from his treating
providers, the ones who are continuing to treat him. 1In fact,
I think we're going to do probably at one more deposition of a
new treating provider. So they will hear that.

They will hear the result of the surgery, what

limitations there are. There's going to be the life-care plan

expert, obviously, to talk about how much those things cost,
and what's -- what would be necessary in the future. I know
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that's another one of the motions. And they'll hear from the
Plaintiff himself, and probably his wife, as to what he can or
can't do. So they'll take all that information together,
which is what they routinely do when Dr. Claurity testifies on
this, and -- and come up with a percentage, which is what
they'd be instructed to do during their -- during closing, so.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Rogers, any concluding thought?

MR. ROGERS: Just that they would be instructed only
after guidance; that Dr. Claurity doesn't get up and give
those numbers until someone with medical qualifications to
advise them on disabilities and limitations in activities of
daily living, and 50 forth, gets up and says, "This is the
practical application and effect of this problem."

And then the jury can receive that and make sense of
it. Otherwise, you really are just throwing numbers at them
with no guidance as to what to do with them.

MR. WALL: Respectfully, Judge, that's not true. There -
- you don't have a.-- it's not a worker's comp case where you
need somebody to come in and say his permanent partial
disability is 26 percent, and then do it. &and it's not
routinely done after -- after a medical provider says, "Here's
his percentage of disability." That wouldn't come before the
trier of fact.

Rather, it's done as a collection of the entire

evidence, and allow the jury to say, look, here's the number
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if he couldn't do any household services. We think he can
still do X-percentage, and that's the way it's routinely done.

THE CQURT: Motion -- the motion is denied with respect
to loss of housekeeping and household management services; but
that ruling is contingent upon counsel being able to lay the
proper foundation.

MR. ROGERS: What -- I may come back to this when we get
into a later motion addressing undisclosed evidence, because
it seems to me that the foundation in this case is going to
require new evidence. But I'll leave that until we get to
that .

Next in the loss of enjoyment of life, this seems to
be where the hedonic damages, where the Plaintiff spent most
of their time in their paper with really something more in the
nature of a legal treatise on the admissibility of it in

principle. That's what the Defense responded to in saying,

yes, of course. It's -- it's legally recognized.

The prcblem here 1s, again, Smith's continuing
agsgumption of numbers that have no foundation at all. He
asgumes a 15 to 30-percent disébility, again a wide range,
that provides virtually no guidance and has no medical
foundation. And then he calculates a loss of enjoyment of
life based on that asgumed disability.

Now aside from the foundational problem, it is vague

and really leads the jury to speculate. And it serves only to
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put a large number in front of the jury that they won't know
what to do with because there's nc medical doctor explaining
to them how 15 to 30 percent really factors into this, and
even if it does.

THE CQURT: Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: Judge, you know, this is -- this is what we
covered in Banks, and it was the same model, the same
methodology. It was someone who learned from Dr. Smith‘the
actual methodology. It's the exact same methodoclogy that he's
used in the past. If they jury wants to change that
percentage, that percentage is based -- I believe the 15 to 30
was based on the Plaintiff's own deposition testimony which
Dr. Smith reviewed.

This is exactly the type of evidence that -- that
Banks allowed by expert testimony. It's obviously set forth
in -~ in -- admitted under the same methodology and the.same
theory in -- in countless other cases within the state of
Nevada. And so I would submit it on that history.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: But very dissimilar foundation. BAll we're
discussing here today is foundational concerns, and there is
no medical evidence or foundation to support these
assumptions: The 45-percent decrease in ADLs, for which you
gaid the Plaintiff must lay foundation; and this 15 to 30-

percent disability that is inveolved in the hedecnic analysis.
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THE COURT: Like the last ruling, assuming the proper
foundation can be laid, the motion is denied as to number 3,
reduction in the wvalue of life.

MR. ROGERS: Okay, next in logss of society and
relationship, this is a different undertaking, entirely, from
hedonic damages. This is something where Smith departs from
what he was permitted to do. Ascribing one person's
disability, assumed in this case, to someone else, the spouse;
and then assigning a number for the loss to the spouse, to
someonie else, is something that is net supported in
Mr. Smith's field. I don't see any evidence that this has
been permitted. Certainly Mrs. Plaintiff can get on the stand
and say, "I have experienced losses."® But Mr. Smith cannot
quantify them.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: You know, actually I'm just going to submit
that to the Court. The -- the report that he talks about uses
the same model that he used for hedonic damages; and that is
sort of a loss of enjoyment of life based on all of the
research that has been provided.

But, you know what, I would submit it, and if the --

if the ruling is that they'll base that on the testimony of

Mr. and Mrs. Simac, I'm perfectly comfortable with that.

MR. ROGERS: I have nothing to add.

THE COURT: Again, assuming a proper foundation can laid,
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the motion is denied as to Cheryl Simao's loss of William's

society or relationship.

MR. ROGERS: And the final category is the present value
of the future life-care plan. I suppose we should table that
until we discuss Ms. Harman's life-care plan. Certainly Swmith
ig -- is allowed to reduce a life-care plan to present value
if the life-care plan is admissible in the first place in this
case.

THE COURT: I agree.

MR. ROGERS: COkay.

THE COURT: Well, the next one I had on my list,

Mr. Rogers, was having to do with graphic and lurid videos.

MR. ROGERS: Okay. You probably saw the -- the cases
that were c¢ited that exclude these videos. The basis for
exclusion is that they -- that they can tend to make someone
sick to thelr stomach. I've actually observed some of these,
and they don't help you understand what going on because what
little you can see is simply bleood and tools. They don't
serve, in other words, a probative purpose; but they do
inflame. And evidence that does nothing but that has no
business being admitted in court.

Mow we're talking sort of in theory right now, you
and I, because I haven't seen anything from Plaintiff’'s
counsel that I can address concretely and say, "That is too

much," or, "Maybe that's okay." As long as it's something
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that serves the purpose to educate and to appeal to the jury's
reason, that's fine. But if it's something that's simply
designed to impassion or to -- to gross a jury out, that
doesn't come in.

THE COURT: Mr. Wallz

MR. WALL: Yeah, I don't really have an objection to

that. I mean, I didn't know how far the motion was going.

Generally what we would do is, we might use sort of an
animation, like hegitant -- I'm hesitant to use the word
"cartoon" because it downplays the significance of it, but
it's essentially an animation that may help the medical
provider describe what he did. They're generally not
bloodthirsty type of video of an actual procedure.

You know, we may very well do that for the surgery
that took place. Let Dr. McNulty describe with the help of
the animation where he went in, what he did, maybe with some
of the injection procedures; but we're not -- I guess my -- I
agree with him, frankly. 1It's not our intention to gross a
jury out, and if -- if he wants to be able to -- my suggestion
would be deny the motion at this point without prejudice if --
if -~ you know, we'll show him whatever animations we would
use before trial, and he can reserve whatever objection he
wants at that point.

But -- but basically, they can explain what they

did, and how, and why, and if it helps to have a little
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animation to do it -~ it's certainly also relevant to the
Plaintiff's pain and suffering. But we're not -- we're not
seeking to gross them out.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, I guess my suggesticn would be to --

to grant the motion as written, because it sounds like the

Plaintiff deoesn't have any opposition to it. For example, if
these animations are still images, the doctor is going to
point to a level of the spine and say, "This is the area that
I worked on," well, that's not contemplated in this motion,
g0,

MR. WALL: - Well, I guess I wasn't sure because it was
entitled "Motion in Limine to Exclude Graphie or Lurid Video,
or Bnimated Depictions." BAnd so I didn't know if the "graphic
and lurid" also was an adjective to describe the animated
depictiong, or whether it was just two separate things. To
exclude graphic and lurid video, I agree with that. To
exclude animated depictions, I don't agree with that, and
that's why I phrased it the way I did.

THE COURT: Well, you know, I've seen both. I've seen
the animated videos, and I've seen the actual photography of
the surgery, and it's kind of sped up really fast because, of
course, I guess these surgeries take hours to do. And,
frankly, there wasn't a lot of blood, really, in the actual

photegraphy of the actual surgery.
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So I think the motion should probably be granted in
part and denied in part: Granted as to bloody, lurid
depictions of spinal surgery; and denied as to actual photos
that aren't bloody and lurid depictions of spinal surgery, or
in the alternative, the animated videos.

MR. ROGERS: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: And, by the way, we did have one juror who
actually fainted when one of those actual surgeries was shown;
although, I didn't find it particularly sorted or awful.

All right. You know, I think we're going to have to
bring you back either this afternoon, or Tuesday morning to
finish these. What's your preference?

MR. WALL: We do have an expert deposition at 2:00 today,
I think.

THE COURT: Yeah, you mentioned that. 8o you're going to
be busy doing that, right?

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

THE COURT: So do you want to come back Tuesday morning
and arque the rest of these? Are you going to submit them on
the Chamber's calendar? What's your pleasure?

MR. ROGERS: Well, we -- we may want to come back,
because it sounds like Dave wanted to discuss one of the
motions that he tabled pending today's deposition. It was the

Senate investigation motion. I'm moving to exclude a Senate

investigation that was basically dropped into Dr. Wohlfeil
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[phonetic], he's going to be deposing today.
And I don't know what you want to do with that?

MR. WALL: Yeah. Our opposition was egsentially to table

it until after the deposition. So we can do the -- one, two,
three, four, five, six, seven -- eight remaining motiong. I
don}t think -- there may be only two or three that are very
lengthy.

THE COURT: So do you want to come back Tuesday?

MR. WALL: That would be fine, Judge.

MR. ROGERS: Yeah. I'm just making surxre that it -- what
time do you -- do you want us here?

THE COURT: I don't know what the rest of Tuesday's
calendar looks like, to tell you the truth. How about 9:00?

MR. WALL: Fine.

MR. ROGERS: I can do that. I've got stuff I can pawn
off.

THE COURT: February 22nd.

[Court and Clerk confer]

THE CLERK: February 22nd at 9 a.m.

MR. WALL: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. ROGERS: All right. You gave us lots of time. I
appreciate that.

THE COURT: No problem.

[Proceedings Concluded at 11:16 a.m.]
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly
transcribed the audio/video recording in the above-entitled
case to the best of my ability.

G0

ERIN PERKINS, Transcriber

Stephanue MeMedk

STEPHANIE MCMEEL, Transcriber

‘\;2Lm~;f51wywqoqﬂgiu

TAMI S. MAYES, Transcriber

Lt 1. OB

ERICA L. VAN OSTRAND, Transcriber
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4 Attorneys for Plaintiffs 0748
tdotian In Limine

’ cusmecous vavaon | [{IHTRINY

I7| WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and | CASENO.: A539455
8 | CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as | DEPT.NO.. X
husband and wife,

DATE

R 5

' MAINOR EGLET

20 Plaintiffs,
PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION IN LIMINE
a1 B TO (1} PRECLUDE DEFENDANT
& FROM RAISING A “MINOR” OR
a = ? 22 || JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH; | “LOW IMPACT” DEFENSE; (2)
gf < 53 J| DOES 1 through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS | | LIMIT THE TRIAL TESTIMONY OF
=~ F through V, inclusive, DEFENDANT'S EXPERT, DAVID
) o 5 FISH, M.D. AND; (3) EXCLUDE
i o EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY DAMAGE
§ 25 Defendants.
26
27 =
2 28 COME NOW, Plaintiffs, WILLIAM and CHERYL SIMAO, by and through their attomeys of
a) .
“ record, ROBERT T. EGLET. £SQ., DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. and ROBERT A. ADAMS of the law
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firm of MAINOR EGLET, and hereby file this Motion in Limine to (1) Preclude Defendant from

—

Raising a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense; (2) Limit the Trial Testimony of Defendant’s Expert,

2
3 || David Fish, M.D., and; (3) Exclude Evidence of Property Damage.
4 This Motion is made and based upon the pleadings and papers on file herein, the attached
Z Points and Authorities, and any argument made by counsel at the hearing of this matter.
. DATED this % day of February, 2011.
8 | MAINOR EGLET
9 A
1(1) DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
! 12 ORDER SHORTENING TIME
13

It appearing to the satisfaction of the Court, and good cause appearing therefore, IT IS

=

LRI T < I o

HEREBY ORDERED that the time for hearing on MOTION IN LIMINE TO (1) PRECLUDE

DEFENDANT FROM RAISING A “MINOR” OR “LOW IMPACT” DEFENSE; (2) LIMIT

L]
o

MAINOR EGL

T i
|

THE TRIAL TESTIMONY OF DEFENDANT’S EXPERT, DAVID FISH, M.D., AND; (3)

-_—
>

EXCLUDE EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY DAMAGE for hearing on the _ | day of

=

20 MARCH 2011, at the hour of :3 a.m., in Department X, in the above-entitled Court, or as soon

21 || thereafter as counsel can be heard.

22 DATED this____ day of February, 2011.

23 Ak
24 RICT COURT JUDGE §
25

Respegtfully submitted by:
| <20

27 || DEVID T. WALL, ESQ.
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AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. IN COMPLIANCE WITH EDCR 2.47 AND IN
SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION ON AN ORDER SHORTENING TIME

—

STATE OF NEVADA )
: ) ss.:
COUNTY.OF CLARK )
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ., being first duly sworn, under oath, deposes and says that:

1. Affiant is an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and a partner with

the law firm of MAINOR EGLET, counsel for Plaintiffs in this matter;

=) [~} ~} [ T b

2. That pursuant to EDCR 2.47, Affiant and defense counsé], Steve Rogers, Esq.,

<

discussed the merits of the instant Motion on February 15,2011 in good faith, but have been unable o

It
It

resolve this matter satisfactorily, thereby necessitating the filing of the instant Motion.

[

3. Trial of this matter is currently set to go forward on March 14, 2011,

GLET

4, Plaintiffs took the deposition of Dr. Jeffrey Fish on February 10, 2011, during which

=N

1

-
¥
"

Dr. Fish opined regarding matters outside his area of expertise, prompting the instant Motion;

(%)

feal

5. That because the trial date is quickly approaching and because the instant Motion

(o8]
oy
Q
Z
<
p

R L A

~J

concerns matters that are central to trial, this matter cannot be heard in normal course and it is

o

respectfully requested that it be heard on an Order Shortening Time, pursuant to Court order.

—
R=}

FURTHER, AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

(A I B ]
[ I B e |

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

[\
® B

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me

(o
Ch

44,
This |{©_day of February, 2011.

)
o

2
~J

NOTARY PUBLIC

)
oo
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

On or about April 15, 2005, Plaintiff, WILLIAM SIMAO, was driving his vehicle on
southbound Interstate 15 in the #1 travel lane near the Cheyenne interchange in Las Vegas, Nevada.
William had slowed his vehicle to a complete stop for congested traffic when Defendant, JENNY
RISH, failed to decrease her speed and collided with the rear end of William’s vehicle. Asaresult of
the crash, William suffered severe and debilitating injuries.

1L
RELIEF REQUESTED

Plaintiffs file this Pre-trial Motion and respectfully moves this court as follows:

L. To instruct Defendant and Defendant’s attorneys not to mention, refer to, comment
upon or bring before the jury directly or indirectly, upon voir dire examination, reading of the
pleadings, statement of the case, opening statement, interrogation of witnesses (i.e. questions and/or
responses to questions) introduction of exhibits, written discovery or any other documents. arguments,
objections before the jury, closing argument, or in any other manner, any of the matters set forth
below, unless and until such matters have first been called to the Court’s a'rtention, out of the presence
and hearing of the jury, and until a favorable ruling has been received regarding the admissibility and
relevance of such matters;

2. To instruct Defendant’s counsel to inform Defendant and all witnesses called by
Defendant not to mention in the presence or hearing of the jury any of the below —enumerated matters,

unless and until specifically permitted to by ruling of the Court.

-4.
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3.  To instruct counsel for Defendant that fatlurc to abide by such order of the Court
may constitute contempt of the court and result in sanctions.

4, Plaintiffs’ Motion is made on the ground that violation of any or all of these
instructions would cause great harm to Plaintiffs’ cause and would deprive Plaintiffs of a fair and
impartial trial,

5. Counsel for defendant, defendant, defendant’s expert, Dr. Fish, and all other
witnesses will refrain from referencing or insinuating that 1) the subject motor vehicle crash as a
“low” or “minor impact 2) that the dynamics of the crash were insufficient to result in the injuries or
medical care of Plaintiff.

IIL

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The primary purpose of a motion in [imipc is ta prevent prejudice at trial. Hess v. Inland
Asphalt Co., 1990 U.S. Dist. Lexis 6465, 1990-1 Trade Cases (CCH) P68, 954 (E.D. Wash., Feb. 20,
1990). The court has authority to issue a pre]iminary ruling on the admissibility of evidence. The
decision to do 50 is vested 10 the sound discretion of this court. See Stafe v, Teters, 2004 MT 137,91
P.3d 559, 563 (Sp. Ct. Mont. 2004), The court’s discretion will not be overturned on appeal absent a
showing of a clear abuse-of-discretion. See Gagan v. American Cablevision, Inc., 77 F.3d 951, 966-67
(7™ Cir. 1996); United States v. Brady, 595 F.2d 359, 361 (6™ Cir.), cert. denied, 444 U.S. 862, 100
S.Ct. 129, 62 L.Ed.2d 84 (1979); United States v. Robinson, 560 F.2d 507, 513-515 (2d Cir. 1977),
cert. denied, 435 U.S. 905, 98 S.Ct. 1451, 55 L.Ed.2d 496 (1978); United Siates v. Hall, 565 F.2d
1052, 1055 (8" Cir. 1977); Texas Eastern Transmission v. Marine Office-Appleton & Cox Corp., 579

F.2d 561, 567 (10" Cir. 1978); Rozier v. Ford Motor Co., 573 F.2d 1332, 1347 (5" Cir. 1978);

-5-
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Longenécker v. General Motors Corp., 594 F.2d 1283, 1286 (9" Cir. 1979); United States v. D 'Alora,
585 F.2d 16, 21 (1% Cir. 1978); United States v. Juarez, 561 F.2d 65, 70-71 (7" Cir. 1977).

Such motions are designed to simplify the trial and avoid prejudice that often occurs when a
party ts forced to objeci, in the presence of the jury, to thé introduction of evidence. Fenimore v.
Drake Construction Co., 87 Wn.2d 85, 549 P.2d 483 (1976).

NRS 48.035 states that “[a]ithough relevant, evidence may be excluded if its probative value is
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, confusion of issues, or misleading the jury,
or by considerations of undue delay, waste of time, or needless presentation of cumulative evidence.
Nevada Revised Statutes 48.015; & 48.0335.

When the proffered testimony or evidence is not relevant, its prejudicial effect outweighs its
relevance, the substance of the proffered testimony or evidence is collateral to the issues of this trial
and would only serve to confuse and mislead the jury, the evidence must be excluded. See e.g.,
Uniroyal Goodrich Tire Co. v. Mercer, 111 Nev. 318, 890 P.2d 785 (1995); Larsen v. State, 102 Nev.
448,725 P.2d 1214 (1986).

1v.
ARGUMENT

Nothing in the accident report of April 15, 2005 indicates that the impact was minor. In fact,
the responding officer listed that the damage to each vehicle was “moderate.” See Traffic Accident
Report, dated April 15, 2005, attached hereto as Exhibit “1.” As mentioned above, Defendant failed
to decrease her speed and rear-ended Plaintiff’s vehicle while he was stopped for traffic. Defendant
was cited for failure to use due care. See Exhibit #“1.” Clearly, it was Defendant’s own negligence

that caused the subject crash.
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As a result of the incident, William sustained serious and disabling personal injuries that

resulted in years of ongoing medical care,

2
3 A. DEFENSE PHYSICIAN EXPERTS ARE NOT QUALIFIED TO TESTIFY TO
4 THE SEVERITY OF THE ACCIDENT AND MUST BE PRECLUDED FROM
DOING SO
5
6 Medical doctors are not qualified to testify regarding the nature of the impact.
7 Nevada Revised Statute 50.275, “Testimony by experts,” provides that:
8 If scientific, technical or other specialized knowledge will assist the trier of fact to
understand the evidence or to determine a fact in issue, a witness qualified as an expert
9 by special knowledge, skill, experience, training or education may testify to matters
10 within the scope of such knowledge.
11 Medical professionals who are qualified as experts with special knowledge in the field of
E . 12 medicine may testify to matters within the scope of that medical knowledge. This does not include the
. 13
8 “ 4 nature of the impact, how they believe the accident occurred by their review of the accident report, or
= %: j5 | what they believe happened at the time of impact. Their testimony must be limited to Plaintiff’s
Z .
" Z<¢ 16 | medical history and medical examination of the Plaintiff, if applicable.
Py
- B. THE DEFENSE AND HER EXPERTS SHOULD BE PRECLUDED FROM
18 PRESENTING TESTIMONY ORARGUMENT THAT THE SUBJECT CRASH
WAS MERELY A “MINOR IMPACT” NOT SUFFICIENT ENOUGH TO
19 CAUSE PLAINTIFF’S INJURIES
0 The defense must be precluded from commenting upon the dynamics of the motor vehicle
2]
” crash and from arguing, suggesting or insinuating at trial that the crash was a “minor impact™ or “low
o3 || impact” collision, and not significant enough to cause Plaintiff’s injuries.
24 Only a qualified expert in the area of biomechanical engineering may offer opinions regarding
25 || the nature and extent of the forces imparted to a body and how those forces may or may not cause
26
trauma. The defense has not designated any expert qualified in the field of biomechanics to testify
27 :
28
-7-.
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with regard to the forces that may have been imparted upon Plaintiff in the subject crash and whether
those forces could have caused his injuries. Consequently, without any scientific evidence, the
defense may not argue or suggest that this motor vehicle crash was simply a “minor-impact” and that
William could not have been hurt by the impact. There is simply no evidence to support such an
argument.

Biomechanical engineers are commonly retained in motor vehicle cases to offer expert
testimony relating to the effect of the forces that were imparted upon a plaintiff’s body in a collision.
Biomechanical engineers typically rely upon the accident reconstructionist’s data and calculations
relating to impact speeds and Delta V. However, in this case, the defense has failed retain an accident
reconsfnlctionist, let alone submit any scientific evidence that the impact speeds and Delta V(s)
involved in this crash eould not have caused William’s injuries. Now that discovery has closed and

the defense’s medical experts have submitted their reports, the defense, including their experts, must

000399

be precluded from introducing evidence at trial which suggests or insinuates that William could not
have been injured in the subject crash because it was a purported “minor-impact” collision. The
defense has no foundation in the evidence from which to suggest that the forces imparted upon
William’s body in the crash were not significant enough to cause his injuries. As such, because there
is no foundation in the evidence to support such arguments, and especially because no qualified expert
has expressed such an opinion, Plaintiff would be unfairly prejudiced if the defense were permitted to
argue that the collision in this case was a “minor impact” collision. NRS 48.035. To allow the
defense to argue as such would be to permit an argument outside the evidence.

“There is no rule of &ial practice more universally accepted and applied than the rule that

counsel may not introduce into his argument to the jury, statements unsupported by evidence produced
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on the trial . . .” State of Nevada v. Kassabian, 69 Nev. 146, 149 (1952). While counsel may enjoy
wide latitude in arguing facts and drawing inferences from the evidence during closing argument,
(Silver v. McFarland, 109 N'ev. 465, 476 (1993)), counsel “may not state facts which are not in
evidence.” Williams v. State of Nevada, 103 Nev. 106, 110 (1987). Counsel is limited to arguing “‘any
reasonable inferences from the evidence the parties have presented at trial.” Sifver, 103 Nev. at 476.
However, “Courts will ban closing arguments which go beyond the inferences the evidence in the case
will bear.” Wickliffe v. Sunrise Hospital, Inc. 104 Nev. 777,781 (1988). The Nevada Supreme Court
has ruled in multiple cases that it is reversible error for an attorney to make statements of fact beyond
the scope of the records in closing arguments. Kassabian, 69 Nev. at 151.

Accident reconstruction and biomechanical issues are not common sense issues within the

common knowledge of lay persons. In fact, the Nevada Supreme Court has set forth stringent

foundational requirements with respect to expert testimony relating to these areas of expertise. See
Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008); Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168,390 P.2d 718 (1964)
and Choat v. McDorman, 86 Nev. 332, 468 P.2d 354 (1970). These cases hold that expert testimony
cannot be based upon speculation. Jd. Rather, such testimony must come from a qualified expert and
must be based upon hard data, such as the speed of the vehicles, the depth of the crush damage based
upon a visual inspection of the vehicles, and the weight and height of the vehicles, to name a few. Id

In Levine, the case arose as the result of a motor vehicle accident and was a wrongful death
action. The accident occurred when one of the drivers failed 1o yield the right of way to another
vehicle al an intersection. At the accident scene, various pholographs were taken and a diagram of the
scene was drawn to show the ir;terseclion, place of impact, skid marks and whe;re the two cars came to

rest. This diagram was prepared by two (2) police officers.
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At trial, one of the parties offered the expert testimony of an accident reconstructionist. The
expert testified as to the speed of the vehicles involved in the accident and his testimony was based
entirely upon the exhibits in evidence, which included photographs of the scene and of the vehicles
after they had come to rest and a diagram made by the two police officers. The accident
reconstructionist did not inspect either of the vehicles and relied upon the diagram prepared by the
police officer. The trial court granted the motion to strike the reconstructionist’s testimony with
respect to his conclusion as to the speed'of either vehicle. The Nevada Supreme Court upheld the
exclusion of the accident reconstructionist’s testimony because he had not inspected the vehicles, but
rather relied upon photographs and a diagram made by an inexperienced police officer.

In Choat, the Choat car st1:uck the rear of the McDorman vehicle and drove it approximately 85
to 90 feet. Both vehicles were severely damaged and the McDormans were injured in the accident.
Choat died a few days later as a result of the accident, and an action was filed against the McDormans
as aresult of the collision. At the trial, the court aliowed an officer who had investigated the accident
to testity as to the relative impact speed of the Choat vehicle at the time'of the accident. The
investigating officer was a former highway patrolman who had arrived at the scene approximately ten
minutes after the collision occurred. He investigated the accident, determined the point of impact, and
assisted local police with some measurements.

Upon voir dire examination, he admitted that he had made no measurement of the skid marks
made by the Choat vehicle, had made no measurement of the road grade or any particular
computations, and did not know if the brakes were set on the McDormans car or if it was in gear when
it was struck. He further testified that he did not know the weight of the vehicles involved, but

believed that their weight would have had some bearing on the resulting damage, and that the speed
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estimate was based on the resulting damage to the vehicles and his experience as a patrol officer. The
court held that *“[o]pinion evidence as to the speed of a car at the time an accident occurred, based on
the appearance or condition of the car and the locus after the accident, is inadmissible, upon the
ground that the conclusion if given would amount to a mere guess.” Choat, 86 Nev. 332, 336, The

court further stated:

Just because a witness may be qualified as an expert does not automatically qualify
him to give an opinion necessarily based on facts beyond his knowledge even though
the opinion may be within the range of his expertise. In Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev.
168, 390 P.2d 718 (1964), this court held that the testimony of an expert who had
never examined the wrecked vehicles, as to their speed at the time of the accident, was
properly stricken when based entirely on photographs of vehicles and certain diagrams
made after the accident because the photographs could not disclose damage to the
frames of the cars.

Id, at 335-36.

Changed conditions and lack of physical inspection of the vehicles can also invalidate the
testimony of an expert witness. In the case of Powers v. Johnson, 92 Nev. 609, 555 P.2d 1235 (1976),
Plaintiff presented an expert who had conducted his investigation:

. .. [N]early three and one-half (3 1/2) vears after the accident. Photographs taken in the
interim showed that the street had been resurfaced, rendering the relied upon coefficient
of friction test irrelevant. One witness had described tree limbs as being in visual
obstruction when the accident occurred; [the expert] concluded that the limbs were in a
completely different condition when he made his 'investigation’ on August 6, 1973.
Additionally, he had not ascertained the vehicles' weights; and, he had not viewed the
vehicles. Indeed, it was doubtful that he had even viewed pictures of the vehicles. Upon
stronger facts, this court has held it to be prejudicial error to aliow such testimony.
Gordon v. Hurtado, 91 Nev. 641, 541 P.2d 533 (1975); Choat v. McDorman, 86 Nev.
332, 468 P.2d 354 (1970). Cf. Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168, 390 P.2d 718 (1964).
(emphasis added).

Powers, 92 Nev. at 610, 555 P.2d at 1236,
Courts have long excluded speculative testimony regarding the speeds of vehicles at the time of

accidents. The case of Bailey v. Roads, 276 P.2d 713 (Or. 1954), involved a Plaintiff's attempt to have a
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state police officer testify as to the speed of the vehicle at the time of the accident. The trial court
allowed the of"ﬁcer to testify as to the speed of the vehicle at the time it left the roadway. Though the
officer had arrived at the accident scene shortly after the accident, he had invéstigated all of the physical
facts including debris; marks on the roadway, and the location of the vehicles following the accident, the
Oregon Supreme Court reversed the decision of the trial judge and found admission of the officer's
opinion testimony as fo speed to be prejudicial error. The court described the officer's te;timony as "pure
speculation and conjecture.” The court further pointed out that, though speculative, the testimony of a
police officer would tend to have a decided affect upon the jury. fd at 718, Where all the facts upon
which the police officer based his opinion were clearly presented by the evidence, the jury was in a
position to determine whether or not the vehicle in question was traveling at an excessive rate of” speed
under the circumstances and did not need the assistance of an expert, /d, at 719,

In the case of Mon!ggmerf v. Hyatt, 282 P.2d 277 (Wash. 1955), the Plaintiffs again attempted to
introduce testimony from a police officer as to the speed of the vehicles at the time of the collision. As
in the Bailey case, supra, the court held that the officer's testimony as to speed was simply opinion and
was not based upon sufficient facts and investigation to qualify the testimony as expert in nature. /d at
280. Admission of the officer's testimony regarding speed was found to be prejudicial error and the
matter was reversed and remanded for a new trial,

Finally, an investigating police officer offered testimony with regard to speed of the vehicles in
the case of Flores v. Barlow, 384 S.W.2d 173 (Tx. 1962), The Fiores court held:

Point one is that the Court erred in permitting the witness, [the police officer], to give his

opinion of the speed of the vehicles at the time of their collision when such opinion was

based entirely upon the damaged condition of the vehicles after the collision .

Id at 174. The court went on to address the case of Union Bus Lines v. Moulder, 180 S.W.2d 509 and
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held:

In Moulder, Justice Norvell, in rejecting opinion testimony of speed based on impact

damage alone, and in reversing the case because of the admission of such testimony,

noted that there was an absence of evidence of technical or scientific support for such

opinion. There is a similar absence of evidence here,

We follow the above decisions and hold that such opinion evidence was inadmissible.

Id at 176. The Flores decision was reversed and remanded.

Finally, in the recent case of Haflmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (2008), the Nevada
Supreme Court made it exceptionally clear that before an expert can render an opinion regarding
biomechanics, that expert, despite being qualified to do so, must have a sufficient foundation for
offering such opinions. The Court found that the district court abused its discretion under NRS §
30.275 when it allowed the expert witness to testify because his biomechanical opinion was not
based upon an adequate factual and scientific foundation. 7d. The Court held that the district
court abused its discretion because the expert’s biomechanical testimony and report did not assist
the jury in understanding the evidence or in determining 2 fact in issue, fd. That expert conducted
no biomechanical analysis which would enable him to testify concerning biomechanics and offered
insufficicnt foundation for the Court to take judicial notice of the scicntific basis of the expert’s

conclusions regarding biomechanics. Id.  Ifthe Supreme Court in Hallmark found reason to exclude

that expert, who was a bioinechanical engineer, and precluded the expert from testifying that the

collision was minor and not sufficient enough to cause Plaintiff’s injuries, then certainly this court

must prevent defense counsel and his medical experss, with no supporting scientific evidence, from

simply proclaiming to the jury that this crash was minor and not sufficient to cause Plaintiff’s injuries.
Defendant’s pain manageinent IME expert, Dr. David Fish, noted in his reports that there was

moderate damage to the vehicles in the accident. When asked at his deposition the significance of the
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damage, Dr. Fish stated that he intended to testify at trial regarding a correlation between the damage
to the vehicles noted in the accident photos and the severity of Plaintiff’s injuries. See Dr. Fish’s
Deposition Transeript at Exhibit “2,” p.16:23-25 through p.19. Dr. Fish noted his “expertise” in
biomechanics based on treating accident victims in the emergency room, as well as having been
involved in motor vehicle accidents in the past. This is precisely the type of testimony the Nevada
Supreme Court precluded in Hallmark.

What is apparent from all of the decisions set forth above is that an expert, absent detailed
investigation providing a significant scientific basis, may not offer opinion testimony at trial. Here, the
defense has failed to designate any expert to provide opinions regarding the biomechanics of the crash
and whether or not the forces imparted upon William were severe enough to cause his injuries and which
will require future treatment. As such, without any foundation in thé form of scientific evidence, neither
defense counsel nor Dr. Fish may not “testify™ at trial and suggest that the subject crash was not
significant enough to cause William’s injuries.

There is no question that testimony relating to the nature of the impact and the effect on the
occupants must be provided by a qualified expert in the field of biomechanics and be based upon hard
data. Consequently, without any expert testimony from a biomechanical engineer, the defense must be
prectuded from arguing, suggesting or insinuating that the motor vehicle collision in this case was a
minor impact collision and not significant enough to cause William’s claimed injuries.

C. THE VEHICLE PROPERTY DAMAGE PHOTOS AND REPAIR INVOICE(S)
SHOULD BE EXCLUDED

in like manner, because there is no qualified defense expert in this case who has formulated a
biomechanical opinion regarding the nature of the forces imparted upon William and whether those
forces were severe enough to cause his injury, Plaintiffs request that photographs of the property
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I damage of the vehicles involved in thislcaSe and the repair invoice(s) be excluded at trial because
9 || without qualified expert tesﬁmony, there is no way for a jury to know and understand what the
3 || photographs or repair invoice(s) depict, or how they relate to William’s injuries. Introduction of the
4 photographs, which to a lay person may only show minor damage, would be substantially more
Z prejudicial than probative to William in that it is likely that a lay juror would speculate and interpret
7 i the photographs to signify that William could not have been injured as a result of the impact. As the
8 || Court may be aware, there is no correlation between the extent of the vehicles’ property damage and
9 || the nature and extent of injuries to the occupants. People can be involved in automobile crashes in
]I(]) which the vehicles are completely mangled but the occupants walk away without a scratch. The
. |g || converse is also true. People can be involved in automobile collisions in which the property damage is
E ’_. 13 |} slight or non-existent but the occupants sustain severe traumatic injuries. Too many factors are at play
el éi 14 1 to be able to draw a correlation between the extent of property damage and an occupant’s injury.
’ % ., ‘]5 ‘These include the shock absorption of the bumpers, the material of the bumpers, where the vehicles
g; i: were impacted, the street surface, whether conditions, the safety rating of the aulomobile, seatbelt use
18 (which 15 also not admissible in a civil action), etc. As such, vehicle photogra;;hs and repair estimates
19 (| are not relevant. NRS 48.025. Moreover, in Nevada, only a qualified expert can state with a
2 reasonable degree of scientific certainty whether or not an impact could cause injury to a plaintiff.
2 NRS § 50.275, Hallmark, sn.rpra. Thus, in order to preclude the jury from speculating as to what the
53 || photographs and repair estimates depict and how they relate to Brandon’s injuries, said photographs

24 || and repair estimates must be excluded from trial. NRS § 48.025, 48.035.
25 Although Nevada has not spoken directly on this issue, other Courts exclude photographs when
zj no expert testimony is introduced linking the vehicles’ property damage to with the extent of the

28
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injuries sustained by the Plaintiff. See Twal v. Hinds, 2008 N.J. Super. Unpub. LEXIS 2666 (2008)
(excluding vehicle photographs as more prejudicial than probative since no foundation existed to
support the Defendant’s argument that a relationship existed between the vehicle damage and the
Plaintiffs injuries); Davis v. Maute, 770 A.2d 36, 40 (Del. 2001)(stating “[a]s a general rule, a party in
a personal injury case may not directly argue that the seriousness of personal injuries from a car
accident correlates to the extent of the: damage to the cars, unless the party can produce competent
expert testimony on this issue™). ‘

The Supreme Court of Delaware explained that “[a]bsent such expert testimony, any inference
by the jury that minimal damage to the plaintiff’s car translates into minimal personal injuries to the
plaintiff would necessarily amount to unguided speculation.” Davis, 770 A.3d at 40. The Davis Court
concluded that: “[{A] party in a personal injury case may not directly argue that the seriousness of
personal injuries from a car accident correlates to the extent of damage to the cars, unless the party c.arll
produce competent expett testimony on the issue.” Jd., at 40; see.also, Eskin v. Carden, 842 A.24
1222, 1226 (Del. 2004); DiCosola v. Bowman, 342 11l. App. 3d 530, 276 111. Dec. 625, 794 N.E.2d
875, appeal denied, 206 Ill. 2d 620, 806 N.E.2d 1065, 282 1. Dec. 477 (2003).

The Davis Court reasoned that “{c]Jounsel may not argue by implication what counsel may not
argue directly”. Jd. The Davis Court also stated that “defense counsel’s characterization of the
accident as a ‘fender-bender’ was improper”. Id. In DiCosola, the trial court excluded photographs
showing slight damage to plaintiff’s vehicle and evidence of the dollar amount of the property damage.
and further prohibited the defendant from arguing, without expert testimony, that a correlation existed
between the amount of damage to the vehicle and the extent and origin of plaintiff’s injuries. /d. The

court in that case analogized the situation to a case requiring expert medical proof of causation when it
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is claimed that a pre-existing condition had been aggravated or exacerbated by injuries sustained in the

subsequent accident at issue:
This court has explained that the rationale for requiring a defendant to introduce
this expert testimony is ‘to avoid what amount[s] to the jury forming medical

opinions.’

The same principles apply to the relationship between damage to a plaintifi]’]s
vehicle and the nature and extent of a plaintiff[’]s personal injuries.

DiCosola, supra, 276 111. Dec. 625, 797 N.E.2d at 880-81 (quoting Hawkes v. Casino Queen, Inc., 336
Ill. App. 3d 994, 785 N.E.2d 507, 518, 271 IlI. Dec. 575 (2003)).

Photographs and the dollar amount of property damage cannot provide definitive evidence that
the physics of a particular accident did or did not cause a particular injury to a particular individual. A
party’s use of photographs depicting minimal vehicular damage to suggest a lack of a causative
correlation with an injury encourages supposition and conjecture, without a basis in the evidence that
the plaintiff’s injuries could not have been caused by a relatively minor impact.

As such, Plaintiffs respectfully request that the photographs depicting the damage to the
vehicles and the repair invoice(s) showing the dollar amount pf the property damage be excluded at

trial under NRS 48.025 and 48.035.
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V.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiffs respectfully requests that this Honorable Court GRANT
their Motion in Limine to (1) Preclude Defendant from Raising a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense;
(2) Limit the Trial Testimony of Defendant’s Expert, David Fish, M.D., and; (3) Exclude Evidence
of Property Damage.

DATED this Z lb day of February, 2011.

MAINOR EGLET
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DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
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Compliance: Endoreements Rosirictlons Drlvar Factors
E:;:;%:Lglmn::)ﬁ‘:r:;;! | I l | EI) Spgorantly Normal Sl] brhves 1N 7 Injured
) Mothod of Detormination {sheckupm2) | Fest Resvin: Lla) pas Bran onsing 1) Qihat Impropar Dulving
1) Hot Invalved D D 3) Qrug lovalvemant Da] Driver insttanion / Dlcvacted
-J:: :'I‘:::::"’ b :‘;E‘“’:‘ El:: ::::‘:;‘::: L']:: ::';Tr'::‘ Clay apparanty Estiguad f avlesp  [J4) Physical Impabmant
[jl; Yninowa Da) Ditver Acminal We + Braath Du) Obatrucied Yiew Dlumnhnom\
Vahicle Year: | Vehlicle Make! Venhicis Mage): Vehicls Type: Vehicle Factors
2001 CHEVROLET SUBURBAN LL -
[ Eiate ; Permit No.: Stale: Jyy gy | EXPIAUGD Dala; Vehicle Color: L1y aitea 7o viuld Right 0f Way Do) a0ed o ssintain Lane D183 Drtvarisas vamed
886 VDX uT 05/31/2008 SILVER D!lgm-prd Control Davics le Followmp Teo Claas Di‘n Unsafe Backing
fUeRicls IderThicailon Humber: Da) Joe Fust For Concitlona D"I Unpafa Lanes Changs Dﬂ]ﬂnn Of Road
AGNFK16751G143851 Flgeycantingspesaimn  [l1zpmudavnpropss Tun  [Jaay e and Run
F&gfslnrpd Owner Nama: Dﬂ Wronp Way ! Dirsction D‘laln"r CofectStaaring Dzln Road Oetect (%)
RISH JAMES LINDA Dl} Machanical Detects D14y owner impropar Drvigg (21 Dbjsct Avoldancy
1) Hamna Az Oriver
'ﬁlglllnmd Owner ADGreEs: 3029 CONSTITUTION ST. APT. A DT] Drove L oh Ot Cunter D 18] Apprensive / Racjhians | Careleas
HILL AFB,UT,84056 )0y DUE CARE Ozz) vaknown )
RYurance Company Nams: UBERTY MUTUAL INS. 0 . 1st C._c:ntacl Damaged Areas
[T 41 twiored =2 =3 —Eh RI% Eront
Bolicy Number: Effactive: Ta: | 2y aight st
) AQ226106579410 51312004 4/14/2005 7 e e e D!) Left Sidu
surance Company Address of Phons Numbsr: 21 . v [, L — Os 4) Boar
74 E. §. STE 104 BOUNTIFUL. UT B4010 1-900-365-2004 ey mignt Front
&) Rlgh Rgar
Towed By:
oy yentcts Towad | o0 Y Og &71 Os Onies
Ramoved To: IVEN AWAY BY DRIVE (e Undes Carriags
DRIVEN AWA RIVER sy guarnian Oz; ynowr Ride ) Latt Frone
Yrofic Contral Distance Travaled Speed Estimate Extent Of Damage D10y Lant Rear
F 1) Sposd Zons 11} Sjop Sign Alter Impact From To Umit 0 1) Minsr D" Lo D:;: :’:M‘m
— 2) Mognrats ) Nons thar
2) Slgnai Liht 13} Yietd Bipn {7 - MOVED) 20 20 g5 3) Major DOy unknownt
33 Flashing Liyht 13) B. R. Sign Bequence a Toents —
4) School Zons 14} R, R. Gatys Trollialon W T Wost RarmiT |
s ——— Coda s Dexcriplion Flzag Object Byant
B} Pad. Signsl 15) R. R. Signal {#)
T NePassimg F 26 garked Lanes 13 | 717 217 SLOW / STOPPED VEHICLE 0 B
7} No Gonvels 37 Fitn Chwinartnow Req, | 79 ] a
B) Wataing Siga 18] Parmisslys Groan 3ud 0 a
8} Turn Sigaat O 191 unknown 4th O O
10) Qines ith 0O O
ﬂnuns DalcFR D:n e rMe D‘, Banding Violatlon NOC Citation Number
() 484163 NRS FAILURE TO USE DUE CARE (N... 01034 15147408
[:]“ s D?) cFR DJ) coruc Dd) Pading Violation NOG Cilation Number
{2) : — — .
Invesiigator{s) 0 Number Date Reviewed By Daie Reviewoed | “Page
. 582 (bm A o .
582 SHAWN'HAGGSTROM 411512005 y . '—jlo\l l‘/ / -) 1Ty)y SIMADODO03 -

000413

000413



000414

‘Evant Humber: STATE OF NEVADA . Accldent Number:

050415-0773 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT REPORT NHP-L2005-003864
VEHICLE INFORMATION SHEET Agency Nama:
Rovissd 5721103 1- DP8 NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL

Namat fLast Mamss, Firat Hame, M Koma Sutfia} Transpored BY: @y yor vransporod 2 gms Do) potics 4y gnsnawn
RISH LINDA L. Os guner

Sireel Add Ti ried To:
rrel AOCTEES 3029 A CONSTITUTION WAY faneporiec Te

City: State / Country (7, Zip Code; Parsan Santl Occupant
HILL AFB uT O 84056 Typa: 2 Positun: 03 Restraims: 7

Dﬂﬂah D:)nlnam ooB: Phane Number: Injury Injury 0

E:ﬂ Earmala 72441985 8017749066 Sevedty Location:

Airbags; 2 Alrbag 4 Efectad: 0 Trappad; O

NME: flair Harme, FLol Name, iljcie Aams SuMa) Tranaporled BY: %)y ot francported [12) gMB L3 potica Ly tininown:
RISHARD JAMES C. Os awar

Sired! Address: -
ree ACTIESE 3020 CONSTITUTION WAy Transported To

nlty: State / Country Oy yv Zip Code: Person Soaling Qccupant

uT 84056 Type: Poaltign: 06 Restralats: 7

o pein L1 pkaown bos: PHons Number: Injury 0 injury o
D?JE - 4/6/1981 8017749066 Severity; Lacation:
amal

HILL AFB

Alrbags: gz::g EjJected: 0 Trapped: O

NamE: Lawd Name, Firef Name, WNOTe Nums Suifhe) frans Dﬁla B H
P ¥

) Mg T rtad ws [lypoiics Lleyunk
RISH CHRISTQPHER N, sy caner o Hanee "E eeter ilnkacwn

Stresl Add : T\ :
rast AGCITA® 3020 CONSTITUTION WAY ranspotted To

Cliy: Stale f Country ),y | Dip Coda Person Ssating Occupant

HILL AFB uT 84056 Type: 2 Posltion: 04 Restraints: 7

By paate LI yhnown [ PO Phone Nurmber; |
Yo 11151892 SO47740066 5"",,",:’“:. o}

i

'L_I"‘Z) Timata

Alrbags: g‘l,:ﬂ: . Elocted; O

¥ L1} Tralllng Va5 VNG Flate; State: Llypuv {Tyvpe

D1y Trailingunit 2 VIN: Platg: state: [y v [Type:

O gramingunits  VIN: Plata: Stata: [y v | Type:

Commerclal Vehicle Configuration ] 1) Commarcial Vehich 2y senoot Bus

Dﬂ Bus, 9 - 15 Occupanis L__lij Eracias Only D‘H)Tuﬂur / Bami Teailer D“ Driver Source Dl] Fute Reo.

DZ) Hus, > 15 Qccupants D?l Traciog ! Trallsr Dﬂ) Pacsengar Vuhicls, (Hor- Dg) Log Bosok DBI Blda )t Vahlcle

DJ[ Bingle 2 Axle and 8 Tire Dl] Tracior/ Doeubles EJ?!) Light Taugh, [Haz-Mal) DJ} Shigping Papars ! Tefp Manifsat Dl] Dipor

Dq singts 3 3 Ay GQ] Traclo { Telples Dﬂ.\ Qttar Hewvy Wshich ’
Dy any 4 Tirs venier CJ40) Yauck with Tradtur

Power Unit GVWR 4y pua-iat

Garrier Name; Unstnomine (2110000 20000t08 Doy as000 08 | Oz pateases

Carrler Sireet Address: City: State: Lunv [2ip:

Cargo Body Type Haz-Mal D 8: Type of Carrlar —[ NAS Safety Repon
D'I] Pola Dll Yan /Hox : D 1) Grain, Gravsl Chips

D:) Tank D?l Cancrate Miner Dﬂl Bus. 9-16
D plamae De) aoto caerter ﬂ“fiu., = 15 Gocupanta D?} usoaT
D“ Dump Dﬂ GsthageiHetuse L-_] $4) n“", 3} Canada Page
i yunown D10y yor Appuublq D) peetco
DE} Nans

Hazard Classificatlon #: £14) swate susta Carrer Numbar:

40f7
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Evont RUmber: 0502150773 STATE OF NEVADA - | Accldent Number: NHP-L2005-003664
' TRAFFIC ACCIDENT REPORT
Vehiete # T @ Occupans | (5, VEHICLE INFORMATION SHEET Apéncy Name:
2 1 0 Reviesd 144504 1 - DPS NEVADA HIGHWAY PATRO)
2} Kon Conlact
Direction W] 1] Narth |'_‘_| :)El“‘ 2 8) Unknown | Highway ! Sireat Namo: R15 Travel Lane i
of Travek g 2 goun, [l gpupust 1
vehiele D31 susiatt T ket tuen D3 8y wetumDD 7 virong way [ 6) Passing (3 11) Laaving Parked ] 13) Lapving Lane 1D 15 Enter Parked [ 47} Lane (o) ynkno
ACtSN: ] 2 acring (a1 e vur] 8 pake®! 0 Stopped 2y 1 10y Bacing O 43y pmwrng L3 14) oty Turmimp £} 18) pevorings vania £ 10
Driver: o [Hvem m . T rted By: =
: f‘g:&‘p‘:} 1N, "‘\:I:'{JKM Ay “El‘p" edBy: By yot Taanspontes [T ems oy ponee Dl unknow
) Qinar
Street Address: Transported To:
5105 JEWEL GANYON DR, ransporied o
Chy: Statef Country [y, | Zip Coda: Parsan Scatin Oceupant
LAS VEGAS Nv Ny 89122 Type: 1 P:slllogn; o1 Rulrginli: 7
Bavmste Tla) unsnown| POB: Phone Number; Inju Inju
i 5/6/1963 7024369347 Severty: € i 1 3 7
OLN: Suula: License 5intus:
1701633400 el D zou 0 Alrbags: 1 Switch: Electo: O | TrappattiQ
R o
Complianca: Endarsumenis Restrctions Oriver Factors
| Oy pomiee s eodarns T —[ ‘ r 1) apparently Mormal Clay orvar miimgorsa
AlcoFoUDrug Involysment D C3r Giher ol
1) tiot invotved Method of Determination icheckup o3y [Tt Hunults: 31 Lisd Besn Drinking } Qthr Impeeper Driving
o 0o O : 3) Qiug invohvsmant [y oretvar ipstiention ! Disiracma
112 Suspecred ‘ﬁ""‘“"' 1t Elald Sobrloty Tast L4} Lriow Taut ey Apparanuy Eatiguadi patesp 18} Bhystcat impatemant
3) Ateohol 4ouoe |2 Euidantiary Brsan U3 prowd Teat w) obatrucssa yie ey gk
D5l Unknown DJ] Drivar Admission Dl) Eraliminary Broath ) et law } Unknown
Vehicla Year:  [Vahicie Make: Vehlcie MEGEI: Vehicls Type: Vahicla Factors
1094 FORD ECONOQLINE VN
Ry St By oy [Expvation B e Jsj £atiad To Yied Right ot way [Joj Fatied To Mintatain Lane £344) BDrivartenn yohie
E7T3NHG NV QS/0812008 RED Dz) Ristogard Controd Device Dlﬂl Foliowing Toa Chkeea Dﬂ': Linsale Backing
e R A E A e NacBee ——1 [J3) 700 PoatFor conatons ") Unaut Lans changs [y pan ot Rata
1FTJEI4HSRHAT2334 g excoaning Spead Limi D42y Madtw tmproper Tues Lo 1t angt Run
1gisiered Gwner Noma: DSJ Werang Woy / Direction Dm Qve: CarracySleering Dznl Rosd Dolaei {%)
1 Same Au Drtvar Cloy pochonicatbatorts - (14} Sthas Impropar briving Llz1y anjact veidanc
t_RunIatmd Dvwner Addrase: 01} brove Left of Cantar Dﬂ) Aggreskhve I Rachluss f Caralacs
. . 8} Othgr Dﬂ; Unknown (X)
Insurance Company Name! 1st Contact Damaged Areas
AMERICAL EARLL V‘k's L0
Bt isuran N LJg ME] - Ua Cluerom
Policy Number: Fffestive: To: | Ol sagma gioe
162470040285 2/1/2005 8/1/2005 P e e O3y Lot 8100
AL .
surance Company Address or Phens Number: 01— t i. P Ry 4 near
702-454-0843 . - 8] Right Frane
Towad By: Dq Right Raar
O Yebicle Towad : Dﬂ &Z Dﬁ Bﬂl’op
Femovaed To: 8] Under Qarrlage
DRIVEN AWAY BY DRIVER D‘I)n\urlido Dz] Under Ridta D|| Left From
Traffic Control Distance Traveled Speed Estimate Extenl Of Damage ED]W} Laft Rope
F 1) Spead Zoms 11) $top Sign Afier Impact From To Limit gu Moot 84] Yarsl D::; :":"0""
— 27 Moderala ) bione hm
— N SgmalLlht  12)Yield Sign (7 - MOVED) 0 0 65 35 6halos Dlet unknownt
1) Flashing Light 13} B R. Sign Beqenee Gl Evene e —
) i R
4} School Fane 14 R. atge cater Parcription (;m OIE“:;:n (N
%) Bod. Signal 18} R, R. Signai (i
4} No Pazajng F 18} Masked Lanss 1%l 214 214 MOTOR VEHICLE IN TRANSPORT D D
7) Ko Controle 17} Tira ShaineSnow Rag. Znd ] O
£} Waretng Stgn 1m) Patmiatiye Graen ard a 0
9} Ty Signo! O 19} Unhnown 4th O 0
10} Qthar 5th L a O
iy wis i) cFn Ds; ccrme Tl Eonding Viotation NOC Chation Number
(1}
O RS D:] GrR D:J ccr e D‘) Panding Violation ~ NoC CHatlon Number
2 — -
Investigator(s) 10 Number Daie Revigwed By I ate Reviewed ' Page
582 SHAWN HAGGSTROM }582 4/15/2005 e i o | Y-f3.0 SIMAODCQOE
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' Event Number: STATE OF NEVADA Accident Number;
VEHICLE INFORMATION SHEEY Agency Name:
Ravieed 5i11i03 1 - DPS NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL
Name: Las) iese, Fiegt Mpny, sisicie Narmy $utis) Transporied By: Oxy Not Trsmaponed (syems Oarpoice ey grinown
sy grnar
Sires! Address: Transporied To:
City: Stata / Country vy gy | Zip Code: Person Seating - [Occupant
Type: Poxitlon; Resiralnts:
Onatae  Cisy gmown | POB: Phone Number: Injury Injury
Soverity; Locaton:
I:]Zl Eamals
Alrhags: girban. Elected: Trapped:
NAMAT flas) Nase, FrocKame, Sisdie Name Sufmix} Transporied By: D‘J Hot Teanaported Dngus Dﬂ)ﬂﬂ"“ Dd}unlnnwn
Osy giher
Sireart Addrass: Transporied To:
Tlty: State / Country Dspav Zip Code: Parson Seating Occupent
Type: Pasition: Restrainta:
Oiypate  Ela yanows |P0B: Phone Numbar; Injury InJury
Severity: Location;
D:} Ewmala
Alrbags: g’;ﬁ:’ : ! Ejaciad: Trapped:
ﬁ_—*_ -
BINE: [aig bane, Fist Namd, Middie Name Suite) TI'II‘IlpD H 4 Not Tﬂnlpﬂﬂld 2 l“s D‘] Police D.)mno‘m‘
Oer gther
Straet Address; Tranaported To:
City: State / Country Clyuy Zip Cods: Person Saaling Qccupant
Type: Positon: Restiraints:
Oygaa Cayyuncen DOB: Phone Numbar Injury Infury
. - f H
e ;
Alrbags: gm’l: . Ejectad: Trapped:
vJ11 Ireling Unit1 VIN: Plate: [Stata: Chyyv FType:
C)4) graking uniez ~ VING Plate: State: Tlyny |Typn:
Oy Taitinguniss  VIN: Plata: , State: [loy v | Fype:
Commercial Vehicle Configuration O 1 Gommercial Vahicta [J2) sehoo! 5us
Ch) Tuk, § - 15 Qetupbnie ey zncier Only 41y Yructor t Sami Tratter 1) griver Source D sate Aoy,
Dz; fus, > 15 Dccupinie 79 Traciag ¢ Teatlar D:z} Pasvanger Yahicls, {Hez- D,‘ Lop Book Ds, Side f Vehicln
D:} Bingie 2 Axie and & Tra Dl) Tractar f Daubles 1’;; Cight Trugk, {Hea-Mar DJ)Shlpplng Bapere { Trip Mantiast Dl] Ojtier
DJ.] Slnpts > 3 Anle DI'I Tracior 7 Teiples Du; Other Heavy Vehicla
Dl] Apy 4 Tlre Vehicle Diﬂ) Trych with Traller
Carrior Name: O Fé’lwor Unit GVWR . Oy pas-iar
1) 5 10,000 Lbw 2) 10,000 - 34,000 Ly 2} = 78,000 Libs [_‘_},J Bulsased
Cartier Streal Address: Chy: . State: LIngv [Zip:
Carge Body Type Haz-Mat 1D ¥: Type of Gartler | yaS Satety Raport :
ED]u Polt E]]ll Yan / Box Q11 Geatn. Graval Chips
2) Tank i Goncrate Minst (42 pus, 0 - 16 Hazard Claszilicatlan #: Cli) gingss 5uata .
Ol gutbed Cs) auio Gureier waﬁ'&'{, > 18 Occupans azard Claasificatian #: . Cartlar Number;
(4 gume o1 GarbapuBetiaa 443 gihar 3) Cansoa Page
&) Liknown DWI Hat Applicalle Gl) Moxico fntT
5| Nane
-SIMAQDO006
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L. .
. Event Number: STATE OF NEVADA Accident Number: . | 2005-003864
050415-0773 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT REPORT
: Occupant/ Witness Supplement Agency Hame:
Revisad 141404 1 - DPS NEVADA HIGHWAY
‘ — PATROL
v NmE! [Lont Nome, Fest Nazre, itidizie Nare Tubb} Transported BY: W) yot Transponea [z gus DOy poties [y tnkncwn
! RISH KAYLEE L. Uls) pther
Streel Address: Transpaorted To:
3029 CONSTITUTION
City: Stare f Country [ 14y yv [ Zlp Code: Person Sualln Occupant
HiLL AFB uT B40SE Type: 2 Potltien: 05 Restralnts: 7
Oyymas Uwgs [o8 Phone Number: Inju Inju
1 ) hamen 10/28/1994 8017749066 siv:':-lty: 0 Lélcginn: 0
E:] Eemaly
Alrbags: Alrban, Elected: 0 Trappedy
Vi Namo: [Last raw, Fet Seme. Michiie Nams Subts) Transponed By:  [R)4) yot Transported [z ems sy poies Tajynknown
RISH NATHANEL Dy pivar
Streel Address: Tranaported To:
3028 CONSTITUTION
CHy: Stale / Country (v yv § 2Ip Code: Petach Sealin Occupant
HILL AFB uT 84058 Type: 2 Position: 03 Restraints: 2
f " BOB: Phone Number: Inju [
. Bupae Lo roown 00/24/2003 BOIT743056 Salvgity: Q Ltgu?;hm Y
.le Esmsla
Alrbags: ghbap, Ejected: 0 Trappedn
v N3mB: fLast Mume, Plut Name, iitols Namy Eubhs) Traneported By: Du Noy 'l'umpodldD!] EMS D!j polica Dq Unknown
[1s) oiner
Stroet Addrass: Transporied Te: -
Clhty: State / Country [y yv | Zlp Code: Peraon Seating Oecupant
Typo: Position: Restraints:
(] ' ) pog: Phone Number! \n$u \n
1) H# D ) Wknown Sn(jw'l}l"lfy: Lcj)::{hn:
DJ] Esmate
Alrbaga: Pk B Ejected: Trapped:
V# Name: (asr Mg, First Name, Mbscte Name Sufts) Transperiad By: 1) ot Transponnd iz Ems sy poica 4y wnknown
: Un otmer
reel Address: Transported To:
City: State f Couniry [y yv [Zlp Code: Person Sealing’ Occupant
Typa: Positlon: Reatralnix;
Clnsate L3t ganewn bas: FPhene Number: Injury tnjury
Saverity: Location:
Dz;flmllo
Altbags: Swheh: Elected; Trapped:
Name: rwasl Kune, Firsr Nama, Misch Neme Sulfls) T“’"poﬂed By: Dn Hot ‘I'nnsponthz] EME Daj Poliza Dl) Unknawn
vV Os -
) Sther
Gtresl Address: Transporied To:
City: State / Country [y nv | 21p Code: Porzan Seatlng Dccupant
Type: Pasition: Raziraints:
Oupate sy ueanwn [POB: Phane Number: Injury Injury
Savarity; Location:
DH Eemale
Al , Airba . . 1 d:
rbags: Switch: Ejected: rapped:
Investigator{s) 1D Number Date Reviewed By Date Reviewod Page
5682 SHAWN HAGGSTROM 582 411502008 § Gat | YoY% 7ot7
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INFORMAL STATEMENT BY: ACCIDENT
"Driver [ Officer From NUMBER: / Dog S~003 8t ‘{
[} Passenger Other Depariment NEVADA CITATION s
O Witness [ Other HIGHWAY PATROL NumEEr: /2 IY Ty oF
V- \ OTHER
NUMBER: 6§ 0YIS-0973

DATE: TIME: FULL NAME:
A f et § ¥ 0AaM OPM uc’no;/ /s};

RESIDENCE ADDRESS: STATE: Z1P CODE: LEPHONE:
i . A Dr Eherd | 500 | JEO |eBumeess,
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER: DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER: STATE:
DOYIS S (0.3 72
VEHICLE LICENSE NU_MBER: STATE: YEAR AND MAKE OF VEHICLE:
Vvox 47 280! Chey Suy

MY OBSERVATION OR INVOLVEMENT IN THIS MATTER WAS AS FOLLOWS:

# el abotsdooss. oo cavor o o otop il Anes
;ﬂ.,ma, /ﬁap

L s oladdonsy, 2. .JQ’:M dgpespd M

Qm@g‘_. M,Amg__@_..m thene MHMMMW 2.

"H“‘ ?Wmmssgzﬁﬁj;};;?f; ¥g0o 2484824 Sed 2
”['Lmé_qw_u_ Rk 37 “Hill AFR _UT._ 2ozl g 5’29/@ T14 =506l ne bR
Sownes ¢ RW T 1Y 4L -2 ol 274~ Jots  yesER
.Q.)}&.x&;h,a):.m.-.-..JJ,_KJs.h._*_}..é?_‘..,—_/_e._:.zﬁ*ﬁz 8o Lf;v‘{ 9obl Mo BR
Kayhoe.. o RiSh . Lo o 28224 gl _ 77 {706k yesB%
Mothawel L. Kish.  _¢Imes T 73/-03 ol 774 2 9péb _Aolse

’

S!G@TURE OF PERSOH WRITING STATEMENT.:

S1MAQ000008

000418 -

000418



6117000

L

000419

‘A - -

INFORMAL STATEMENT BY: ACCIDENT '

g Driver O Ofcer From NUMBER: é 005~ Mjgé (/
Passenger Other Depanment NEVADA CITATION
O Winess 0 Othes HIGHWAY PATROL NUMBER: /5/ Y 740%
V- R Smen; 0S0Y)G- 0773
DATE: TIME: ) FULL NAME: _ . . Nl
LUISIOS O AM E/PM W e Ny Diemad
RESIDENCE AUDRESS: CITY: sTATE: | 71k CODE: TELEPHONE:
SOS Sessel Canyon Drive | LU DI | g0t e - §sy7
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER: U | DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER: STATE:
_ 760163 3400 V]
VEHICLE LICENSE NUMBER: STATE: YEAR AND MAKE OF VEHICLE:
ST NAG &y, 1949 Fok €350 ven

MY OBSERYATION OR INVOLVEMENT IN THIS MATTER WAS AS FOLLOWS:

:[:uﬂ‘_-a hee i nes Bootin O ’r\wq[- .
_C'&_LL‘ELL;G.:._ Q.@i-_“%a%%:ﬂ. @L.ga__w_q;ﬁ_w__,_
~Shop T %o.:ﬂve, COLS  Lim, G ol
e Shoosed/ _I_ﬁa.@gé:) 2, e Cas

{_ e, S o esrviors SO,
DelninSe &&i@/ fon ke & Cec i
OE:c {N\u\ gelni e

SIGNATURE QOF FERSON -WR T, )ﬁ‘!ENT:
M/ﬁa’ al l (slos
7 A

SIMAQ00009
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK CCUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and
as husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,

vS. Case No.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH,
DOES 1 through V; and ROE
CORPCORATIONS I through V,
inclusive,

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF DAVID E. FISH, M.D.
Santa Monica, CALIFORNIA

Thursday, February:lo, 2011

Reported by:
Gideon Choi
CSR No. 13258

A538455

Page 1

[ —————— e —————— - T P

HAHN & BOWERSOCK 800-660-3187 FAX 714-662-1398

151 KALMUS DRIVE, SUITE L1 COSTA MESA, CA 92626

23bf2eal-ada-46c0-0047-05214547cfd9
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA,

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and )
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually, and )
as husband and wife, )

Plainiiffs, )
: )
vs. ) Case No. A539455

)
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH, )
DOES I through V: and ROE }
CORPORATIONS I through V, )
inclusive, }

)
Delendants.

Deposition of DAVID E. FISH, M.D., taken on behalf

of Plainiifls, m 1250 16th Street, Tower Building,
Room 745, Santa Monica, California, beginning at
2:17 p.m. and ending at 4:18 p.m., on Thursday,
February 10, 2011, before Gideon Choi, Certified
Shorthand Reporter No. 13258.

Pol R R N O S R L S g

[

INDEX

Witness: DAVIDE. FISH M.D.
Examinztions

By Mr. Wall

By Mr. Rogers

EXHIBITS
Descriplion
First
Iniroduced

Defendant's

Exhibit 1 Copy of curriculum viwe of
David E, Fish, M.D.
Copy of 1estimony history of

David E. Fish, M.D.

Exhibit 2

Exhibit 3
Fish, M.D.

Capy of entire file of David E,
Fish, M.D. for subject case wilh
billing records

Copy of CD comaining nine
previous depositions of David E.
Fish, M.D.

Copy of repon by David E. Fish,
M.D., dated February 1Cth, 2009

Copy of Independent Record
Review, Addendum No. 1 dated
July 13th, 2010

Copy of Independem Record
Review Addendum No, 4, dared
October 18th, 2010
Exhibit9  Copy of Independent Record

Review Addendum No. 5

Exhibit 4

Exhibit §

Exhibit 6

Exhibit 7

Exhibit 8

(Continued...}

Copy of fee schedule of David E.

APPEARANCES

For 1he PlaintifTs:
MAINOR EGLET, LLP

BY: DAVID WALL, ESQ. (Appearing via videoconference)

400 South Fourth Street

Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 82101
Telephone: (702) 450-5400
Facsimile: (702) 450-5451

E-mail: dwall@maincrlawyers.com

For the Defendam:
ROGERS, MASTRANGELQ, CARVALHO & MITCHELL
BY: STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. (Appearing via
video-conlerence)
300 Sauth Fourth Street
Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

1
2
3
L]
5
6
7
8

w0

10
14:11:3511
14:11:3512

13

14

15

16

17

16

19

20

21
22
23
24
25

INDE X (Continued,, )

INFORMATION REQUESTED

Pape  Line
None,

QUESTIONS INSTRUCTED NOT TGO ANSWER

Page Line
None.

—

000422

2 (Pages 2 to 5)

HAHN & BOWERSOCK 800-660-3187 FAX 714-662-1398
151 KALMUS DRIVE, SUITE L1 COSTA MESA, CA 92626

albi2ea1-adf0-46c8-804T7-d521454Tc1dD

000422




Q00

000423

=)
Page 6 Page 8

1 DAVIDE. FISH, M.D., 14:19:49 1 Q Ihave 2008

2 called as a witness by and an behalf of the Plaintiff, and 14:19:51 2 A Okay. Sofor 2009, as a wreating doctor, ) did two; as

3 baving been first duly swom by the Certified Shorthand 14:20:08 3 an expert witness, 1did seventeen; and for the plaintifl, 1 did

4 Reporter, was examined and testified as follows: 14:20:25 4 nine; and for the defense — actually, sorry — that would be

5 14:20:32 5 seven; and for the defense it looks like ten.
14:13:20 6 EXAMINATION 14:20:37 6 Q Do you have the records from 2010 as weli?
14:13:20 7 BY MR, WALL: 14:20:40 7 A Yes - oh, and of the court appearances, 1 have three,
14:17:14 8 Q Allright. Could you state your name for the record, | 14:20:45 8 and they were all for plaintiff. The other ones were
14:17:17 9 please? 14:20:4% 9 depositions. And for 2010, there were efeven tolal deposiions,
14:17:1710 A David Eli Fish. 14:21:0710  oneas realing; and of the ten that were left over, bwo were
14:17:1911 Q Dr.Fish, just to kind of walk throngh some things, T [ 14:21:14 11  plaintifl, and eight were defense.
14:17:2312  have a — do you have an updated CV? 19:21:1712 Q Can you estimate in 2009 and 2010, how many other cases
14:17:2813 A Yeah, but before you start, what's your name? 19:21:2613  besides this one involved Mr. Rogers or his firm?
14:17:3114 G My name is David Wall. Thank you. W-a-l-], 14:21:3614 A Five.
14:17:3515 A W's nice to meel you, sir, 14:21:361% Q Is that who initially contacted you in this case?
14:17:3716 @ Allright. Do you have a copy of your CV? 14:21:4516 A 1dontremember. Most likely, but [ don't remember.
14:17:4317 A Yes 1do. 14:21:4917 Q Doyou}mewnespohdencemnlwouldrel]eclmal?
14:17:4418 Q Is that updated? 14:21:5518 A Idontknow.
14:17:4619 A Yes, itis. 14:21:5519 Q Do you know when you vwere firss contacied on this case?
14:17:4720 Q Allright. fm not sure mine is, so well make that 14:22:0020 A Sometime at the beginning of 2008, because my first
14:17:5221  Exhibil 1 to the deposition. 14:22:0521  repori was in February of 2008.
14:17:55%22 A Okay. 14:22:1322 Q Ilshuwlhat)murﬁrsireponwasFebmaryol'!OOS‘. Is
14:17:5623 {Plaintiffs Exhibit 1 was marked for 14:22:1723  that incorreer?
14:17:5624  identification by the Cenified Shonthand Reponer, acopy of | 14:22:18 24 A Yeah, 1 apologize. 2009 -- no. Actually, no, it was
14:17:5625  which is attached hercto.) 14:22:3325  in 2008. 1 may not have done a report until 2009.

Page 7 Page 9

14:17:57 1 Q1 have a lisl of cases, testimony hisiory, bul mine 14:22:45 1 Q When weré you first coniacted; do you know? * -
14:18:01 2 siops with 2008. Do you have 2 more receni onc? 149:22:47 2 A Agsin, I'd say at 1the beginning of 2008~ + ©
14:18:04 3 A Yes 14:23:00 3 Q Beginning of 20087
14:18:06 4 Q Allnght. Do youhave thal handy? 14:23:02 4 A Comect,
14:18:08 5 A 1<¢an print itup for Gideon after we're done if you 14:23:02 5 Q What do you base (hat estimate on?
14:18:13 6 wam. 14:23:08 ¢ A 1 bave my ~1 have a billing statement from
14:18:14 7 Q Allright. Well make ihat Exhibit 2. 1have @ fee 14:23:12 7 February 14th, 2008, and it looks like there was an expedited
14:18:26 8 schedule. T'mnot sure whether ir's updeted. h shows — 14:23:17 8 review of records that were needed that was dated around 2008.
14:18:40 9 actually, it says "2007 updated” in the lower Jefi-hand corer. 14:23:26 9 Q  Who did you bill?
14:18:4510  1s thar siill good? 14:23:2710 A Rogers, Mastrangelo, Carvalho & Miichell.
14:18:4711 A Probably not. 14:23:3711 Q  Your entire file, including the billing récords, I'd
14:18:4812 Q Alinght. Do you have an updated one available? 14:23:5212  like to have all of that provided to the court reporter and made
14:18:5233 A Yes. 14:23:5813  anexhibit. 1guess it would be Exhibit 4. Can you provide
14:18:5214 Q Wil you be abie 1o provide that 1o the court reporier 14:24:0414  thal after the conclusion of the deposilion to the court
14:18:5715  as Exhibit 37 14:24:0715 reporter?
14:19:0016 A Yes. 14:24:0716 A Do you want il on disc or do you wam i1 printed out or
14:18:0017 Q On the list of cases since 2008, how many times do you 14:24:1117  what do you want 1o do?
14:19:0818  think you've testified either in & deposition o in a trial or 14:24:1218 Q Ondise.
14:19:1219  arbitration? 14:24:1619 A Ondise?
14:19:1320 A Since 2008, and maybe 25 times. 14:24:1620 Q Ondisc would be fine.
14:19:2221 Q And can you breakdown those 25 for me; roughly howmany | 14:24:1821 A Idon'tthink 1 can get it to you today. I'd have 1o
14:19:2722  were on behalfl of plaintiffs and how many were on behalf of the 14:24:2222  send it to you.
14:1%:3123  defense or as a reating doctor? 14:24:2423 Q Okay. Do you know what yow charges are to date in
14:19:3324 A Yes, noproblem. Hold on a second. | can do that. So 14:24:3024 this case?
14:19:4625  for 2008 — 14:25:0425 ‘While you're looking for that, Doctor, you've had your
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deposition taken enough times that you'd waive all the nonmal
sdmonitions; is that right?

A Yes, sit.

MR, WALL: Allright. And while you're looking for that,
Mr. Reporter, I'm going 1o provide to you a disc that we had
prepared that has nine previous depositions of Dr. Fish, and
that will be Exhibit 5.

THE CCURT REPORTER: Ckay, sir.

THE WITNESS: Sel guess you did some light reading; is that
true?

BY MR. WALL:

Q Do vyou have a totat for me, Doctor?

A Jm working on it. Okay. 1 got a number for
you. $19,200.

Q That's up to, but not including todsy?

A That is correct.

Q Wha did you do to prepare for your deposition?

A ) reviewed the records that I had previously reviewed
and read my reports, and 1 looked over the records that 1
thought were pertinent for the questions 1 hoped you would ask
me.

Q Anything lse?

A No

Q Did you have any conversations with Mr. Rogers or
anyone from his firm?

14:28:43 1
14:28:45 2
14:28:50 3
14:28:50 4
14:2B:57 5
14:28:5%7 &
14:29:03 7
14:29:03 8
14:29:11 9
14:29:1210
14:;29:1211
14:29:1812
14:29:2913
14:-29:3714
14:29:4115
14:29:4716
14:29:4817
14:29:5318
14:29:5419
14:29:5520
14:30:0021
14:30:0322
14:30:0523
14:30:0724

114:30:0925

And have you ever done a fusion?

No.

Ever assisted in a fusion?

Ne.

Do you refer patiems gul 1o spine surgeons?
Yes.

Q Have you referred any patients to any Las Vegas spine
surgeons?

A Yes.

Q Who would you have referred 107

A Dr. Schifini. I've referrcd patients 10 Las Vegas
surgeons quite a bit. It just depends. At LICLA our catchment
area is very big so we get a lot of patients from
Las Vegas, and so ] try 10 keep them in Las Vegas as opposed to
having surgery done here, if that needs be.

Q SoDr. Schifini s not a spine surgeon; is that right?

A No, no. That was the first person | thought about
becavse ] recently referred someone there. | can'l tell you
ofthand who 1 did. There's a lol of surgeons in Las Vegas, so |
can'l telf you exactly who | referred to, but ) know Fve
referred some patients over there.

Q Do you know Dr, McNulry?

A Notpersonally, no.

Q Mave you referred any patiens 1o Dr. Mcbhulry?

14:27:14
14:27:14
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14:27:28
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14:27:33
14:27:39
14:27:44
14:27:45 9
14:27:4910
14:27:5611
14:27:5712
14:28:0013
14:28:04 14
14:28:1115
14:28:1116
14:28:1617
14:28:2018
14:28:2319
14:28:2429
14:28:2821
14:28:3022
14:28:3523
14:28:3524
14:28:;4325
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Yes.

‘What was the nature of thos¢ — how many? = « =

Well, when? Last week? Last year?

To prepare for your deposition.

Oh, probably just one conversation just 10 make sure
that [ had all of the documents thei 1 needed and to make sure
that [ had all the proper records that were needed.

Q When was that conversation?

1 think it was two days apo.

You are board cenified, Doctor; is thet right?

Yes, sir.

What specialty?

Physical medicine and rehabilitation and pain medicine.

Q You're not a bosrd centified spine surgeon; is that
correct?

A Well, 1 mean, define "spine surgery”. 1 do some spine
surgeries, 50 you have 10 be & little bit more —

Q  Are you board certified in any orthopedic surpery or
spine surgery?

A Well, yeah, lam

Q Qkay. Inwhat?

A Well, 1do spinal cord stimulators and morphine pumps,
and so we do surgery to the spine¢ in those cases as well as
vertebroplasties and kyphoplasiies which are also considered
spine surgeries.

14:30:14°

+{rl4:30:14

1

2
14:30:16 3
14:30:19 4
14:30:23 5
14:30:27 6
14:30:30 7
14:30:39 8
14:30:35 9
14:30:49010
14:30:4611
14:30:4712
14:30:4713
14:30:4914
14:30:5215
14:30:5216
14:31:0017
14:31:0118
14:31:05189
14:31:0620
14:31:1021
14:31:1922
14:31:22 23
14:31:2224
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A 1dont know,
Q Youdon't know? . <o
A 1 may have, ] don't know. It depends on the group
that the patients are coming from, and my office tends to ry 10
“help them find a surgeon or find somebody in Las Vegas, so il's
possible that a referral has gone to him.
Are you a member of NASS, N-A-5-87
Yes.
Are you 2 member of 1SIS?
Yes.
1-3-1-87
Yes.
Q Soare you familiar with the IS1S guidelines or
criteria for pain management doctors?
A Yes
Q Have you ever performed any discography?
A Yes
Q Fmsormy?
A VYes
Q Oh, the snswer was yes. Cervical, lumbar, or both?
A Cervical, thoracolumbar, and fumbar.
Q Do you use those regularly?
A Yes.
Q When was the last lime that you performed a cervical

14:3]1:2925

discography?

—. - &

HAHN & BOWERSOCK 800-660-3187 FAX 714-662-1398
151 KALMUS DRIVE, SUITE L1 COSTA MESA, CA 92626

a3bf2ea1-a3fa-46¢0-8e47-05214547cid9

4 (Pages 10 to 13)

.000424

000424



000425

Page 14

Page 16

31:30 1 A Two weeks ago. 14:34:49 1 BY MR. WALL:

31:32 2 Q Do you consider yourself to heve expertise in the area 14:34:49 2 Q Doctor, do you understand my question?

31:3% 3 of biomechanics as it relates 1o motor vehicle accidents? 14:34:52 3 A Probahly not because you've asked it for the third

31:43 4 A If you mean am ) certified by any goveming body, no; 14:34:59 4 time, so 1 would say no, 1 don't understand your question. :

31:5¢ 5  butdol have expertise in understanding mechanics and injuries, | 14:34:57 5 Q There's a difference between looking at the MRI's or )

31:54 6 yes. ' 14:35:00 &  the medical records to determine certain things surrounding

31:55 7 Q  Would it be your intention to testify as an expert in 14:35:04 7 causaljon as compared 10 looking at the damege to the vehicles

31:59 B the area of biomechanics or whether a certain type of impact 14:35:08 8 and determining Delta V and whether or not that paniicular
14:32:05 9  between two vehicles would be sufficient to cause a cenlaintype | 14:35:13 9 collision with those two vehicles was sufficient 10 cause 8
14:32:1010  of injury? 14:35:1610  particular injury from a biomechanical perspective.
14:32:1111 A IfI'm asked a question, I would answer it. ] don't 14:35:2011 1s il your intent to offer an opinion based on the
14:32:1612  know if I've been asked to specificatly do Lhat as an expert. 14:35:2712  biomechanics of the accident?
14:32:2013 Q Allright. Have you been asked 10 do that in this 14:35:2913 A 1don't think so.
14:32:2314 case? 14:35:3014 Q  Are you not surc?
14:32:2415 A Well, I mean, I think causation and the injury 14:35:3515 A Well, I mean, 1 don't know if 1 understand your
14:32:3016  component and whether or not a person was injured ina specific | 14:35:3816  question.
14:32:3317  car accident or if Mr. Simao had an injury occur from the car 14:35:49017 Q Have you done any anatysis of the vehicies or the
14:32:4018  acciden, I've been asked. 1've made opinions as such, but | 14:35:4418  photographs of the vehicles or the damage estimales to the
14:32:4319  did not measure velocities or G-force ar measurements of tire 14:35:4819  vehicles in rendering your opinions?
14:32:4920  skid marks or anything like that, if that's what you're asking. 14:35:4920 A Tvelooked at them 50 I've done an analysis of the
14:32:5221 Q So it wouldn't be your intention 10 offer testimony as 14:35:5421  pictures and the amount of damage as well as the cost 1o fix the
14:32:5622  an expert that the actual collision in this case based on -- 14:35:5%22  damage.
14:33:0823 A Hello? 14:36:0023 Q Is it your opinion that the damage 10 the vchicles or
14:33:1124 Q  —injury; would that be correct? 14:36:0424  the amount (o fix the vehicles is a significant consideration in
14:33:1325 A You're going 1o have to say il again. You cut out. 14:36:0925  forming the basis of any of your opinions?

Page 15 Page 17

14:33:18 1 * MR. ROGERS: Court Reporter, I'! Jodge a compound 14:36:12 1 A ldon't know if I'would say significdnt, bin itisa '
14:32:20 2.~ objection, and then go ahead, Doctor. 19:36:36 2 : faclon . - -1 0! 7o tankoms wla o0 s g
14:33:24 3 THE WITNESS: You have Lo say the question again. ltgot | 14:36:18 3 Q And whal iraining do you have to comelate the amount
14:33:27 4 cut off, 14:36:25 4 of damage to the vehicle to a specific injury?
14:33:31 5 MR. WALL: Oh, i got cut of. 14:36:36 5 A Let me see if1 got il right, Correlate the amount of
14:33:33 & MR. STEPHENS: Oh, okay. 14:36:40 6  damage to a specific injury?
14:33:34 7 BY MR. WALL: 14:36:44 7 Q Correct, the amount of damage to the vehicle.
14:33:34 8 Q s it your intention in this case to offer opinions at 14:36:45 8 A Well, it's experience. It's seeing many people who
14:33:39 9 rial regarding whether this accident was sufficient in the 14:36:49 9 have had significant car accidems. it's seeing people who were
14:33:4710  magnitude of the collision 1o cause & particular injury? 14:36:5410  injued and people who have hed injuries as well as reviewing
14:33:5311 A Yes. 1 mean, I'm going 10 make opinions based on the 14:36:5711  previous cases and my patients that come through the door as
14:33:5812  MRI, based on the records on whether or not the accident 14:37:0112  well as come thyough the emergency room who have had significent
14:34:0213  actually caused any injwry to Mr. Simao. 14:37:0513  accidents o non-significam accidents.
14:34:0614 Q That's not my question. My questionis: Areyougoing | 14:37:0714 Q 'When you say "non-significant”, is it your experience ’
14:34:0515  {odo that from a biomechanical perspective; that is, lookingat | 14:37:1015  thal an accident has to have a significant amount of darnage o \
14:34:1316  the damage 1o the vehicles and the nature of the collision to 14:37:1416  1he vehicles in order to €ause injury 1o one of the parties '
14:34:1917  determine whether it was sufficiently severe to causs 14:;37:1817 inside? :
14:34:2318  particular injury? 14:37:1918 A Well, again, ] think thet depends on the complaints of
14:34:2619 MR. STEPHENS: 1object. Compound. Doctor, goahead. [ 14:37:2319  the individual, where the individual may have — cither the body +
14:34:3020 THE WITNESS: I think 've answered the question. 1mean, | 14:37:2720  smuck or what kind of components of damage, where it is. 1 §
14:34:3221  I'mnot certified as & bioengineer. I'm nol certified as 14:37:3121  mean, obviously, il the damage was done on a rear end bumper, f
14:34:3622  somebody who can measure G-forces, but I can tell what an 14:37:3522  and = person is complaining of a wrist injury or an elbow injury i
14:34:4123  eccident and what an MRJ look like and whether or notaperson | 14:37:3923  on the right side, and there's nothing that the person struck,
14:34:4624  has been injured hased on the medical records and the medicat ¥4:37:4224  and it's a very slight injury, then obviously you make the i
14:34:4%25%  complaints. 14:37:4625  comelation as to the medical camponents as well as the injury ‘

e R e ot
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14:37:50 1 and the damage to the vehicle. 14:41:18 1 A 1have an clectronic copy. ) don's have the -
14:37:53 2 Q So is it your intention in this case to say, 14:41:23 2 Q Allright. Would you be able 1o prinl out a copy 10
14:37:57 3 essentially, 1 locked at the damage to these vehicles, and jt 14:41:27 3 make it Exhibit 67
14:38:01 4 wasn't significant 1o cguse an injury to Mr. Simao; is that your 14:41:30 4 A Well, [ was poing to give him the whole disc. 1really
14:38:05 5 iniention? 14:41:35 5  can'l print everything owt,
14:38:06 6 A Well, 1 think that's part of the whale cvaluation of 14:41:3B 6 Q All right. Well, that, ] wam printed out and made a
14:38:10 7 Mr. Simeo, and looking al the records, } think that's part of 14:41:41 7 separate exhibit. Can you do thai?
14:38:13 8 it. P'm not saying that it's purely based on the actuab 14:41:44 8 A Yes, Iwiltuy,
14:38:18 9 pictures or purcly based on the actual amount of damage, but 14:41:46 9 Q Al right. And then ) hove wha we'll call Exhibn 7,
14;38:2110  it'sa facior, 14:41:5110  “Independent Record Review. Addendwn No. 1° that shows a datc of
14:38:2411 Q Okay. And you believe that the impat was not severe 14:41:5711  seview of July 13th, 2010, Do you have 1hat available?
14:38:2912  enouph lo cause any type of injury beyond 8 whiplash injury to ' 14:42:02312 A Eleciromically, ves. ]
14:38:3413  Mr. Simoo; is that your opinion? 14:42:0513 Q Al right. ] would ask that 1hat be printed ow afier
14:38:3614 A No. If you see in my subsequent reports, | abandon the 14:42:0814  the deposition and made Exhibit 7. And then | have “Independent
14:38:4215  whiplash injury as a diagnosis and feit that he had a 14:42:2015  Recotd Review Addendum No. 4",
14:38:4616  non-specific myofascial complaint, and tha based on the pain 14:42:2016 A Yes.
14:38:5417  complainis from his inftia) visit and the subsequent six months, 14:;42:2017 Q Which appears to have a date of October 18th, 2000, Do
14:38:5918  Tdon' think M. Simao hod 2 significant injury to his neck, 14:42:2418  you have that available?
14:39:0519 Q s thal because the impact wasn't severe enough to 14:42:2519 A Yes.
14:39:0920  causeil? 14:42:2520 Q 1 would ask that that be made as Exhibit 8 10 the
14:39:09 21 A Well, 1 think that's pant of it 1 also think it's the 14:42:3021  deposition and printed ow. Is there an Addendum 2 and 3?
14:39:1322  complaints that he had. He really was not complaining of neck 14:42:3522 A Thal's what ] was trying 10 clarify. 1think it was a
14:39:16 23 pain afier the May 5th ~ I'm sorry — the April 15th, 2005 14:42:4023  clerical emmor, and that's why it came out 1o Addendum 4.
14:39:3124  accident. You know, his first visil to a provider on the 4th — 14:42:45249 Q  The answer is no, ibere is pot?

' 14:39:3725  onthat day, you know, he may have complained of neck pain, but | 14:42:4725 A There is not.

Page 19 Page 21
' 14:35%:41 1 afler thot he didn't really complain of neck pain, 54 there is a 14:42:48 1 Q  Allright. Do these three reports contain a complele ~
-1 14:39:49 2 component of him not being injufed to his neek: - 14:42:54 2 stalement of all of your apinions that you have in-this case?1ie: £ §* %+

14:39:47 3 Q But my guestion was: 15 thal based on your review of 14:43:00 3 A No. There's an Addendum 5.
14:39:50 4 the pholographs and the damage estimates of the vehicle? 14:43:06 ¢ Q Where is Addendum 57
14:39:53 5 A That is panl of it, yes. 14:43:10 5 A Right here. (Indicating.)
14:39:55 6 Q And whar trzining do you have to measure or review 14:43:12 6 Q Has that been produced to anyone? The record shoutd
14:40:04 7 photographs of an accident of the vehicles or the damage 14:43:16 7 reflect thet you're showing me a copy over Skype?
14:40:08 B cstimates and then to comelate that 1o whether or not someone 14:43:19 8 A Yes. I've given it to Mr. Rogers.
14:40:13 9 could be injured eithes by whiplash or by some othey mechanism; | 14:43:25 9 Q Thave not received No. 5.
14:40:101¢  whal training do you have in that? 14:43:2710 MR. WALL: Mr. Rogers, have you received No. 57
14:40:2011 A Well 1 think 1 answered that before, but, you know, 14:43:2911 MR. ROGERS: Ihave not. When did you send it, Dr. Fish?
14:40:2312  having been in two car sccidents myself and experienced themas | 14:43:2612 THE WITNESS: Yesterday.
14:40:2613  well as seeing patients through the emergency room at UCLA, &l | 14:43:3713 MR. STEPHENS: Okay.
14:40:3314  John Hopkins, and in the military, I've got a lot of experience 14:43:3914 BYMR. WALL:
14:40:3615%  with accidents and with injuries that were sustained as well as 14:43:3915 Q AN right. I'm going to ask thal a copy be made of
14:40:4116  tremring patients who have had accidents and-whet kind of 14:43:4216  that and made Exhibit 9. 1 guess that would be the next in
14:40:4517  injuries that were sustained. So it's pan of my experience, 14:43:4717  order.
14:40:4818  pan of my imining, and part of my personal experience as well. 14:43:4818 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 9 was marked for
14:40:5219 Q Allright. 1 have what 1 think i3 your onginal report 14:43:4819%  identification by the Cenified Shorthand Reporter, a copy of
14:41:0320  which shows a date of review of February 10th, 2609. Do you 14:43:4820  which is attached hercto.)}
14:41:0721  havea copy of that? 14:43:5421 | won't be able to see that, obviously, so I'm going 10
14:41:0822 A Yes. 14:43:5722  reserve now the opportunity, once I review No. 5, 1o reconvene
14:41:0923 Q I'm going to have that — if you have a copy of that ~ 14:44:0123  the deposition in order to do that,
14:41:1324  and ask that that it be marked as Exhibit 6. 1think that's the 14:434:0624 Let me ask you this. In No. 5, does it list the
14:41:1725  nextin order. 134:44:0923  records that you reviewed since Mo, 4?7

g

HAHN & BOWERSOCK 800-660-3187
151 KALMUS DRIVE, SUITE L1 COSTA MESA, CA 92626

6-1;aées-ié to 21)
FAX 714-662-1398

' adbf2eat-adfa-46c8-8047-05214547cfd9

000426

000426




70 ()()

000427

»
Page 22 Page 24
14:44:149 1 A Yes, 14:47:5%9 1 sent to me, so L don't know if Pve actually reviewed the images
14:44:17 2 Q What records are listed? 14:48:03 2 in my previous reports and so — 1 may have received them
14:44:18 3 A The updaled repori of Kathicen Hartman dated 11/8/2010. | 14:48:07 3 beforehand, but | haven't had a chance to actually look at them
14:44:24 4 Q Isthatit? 19:48:10 4 until the last two weeks.
14:44:25 5 A Y, 14:48:11 5 Q And soall of those ~ well, I'l {et you finish the
14:44:26 6 Q Al nigh, ) 14:48:17 6  list. Finish the lisi.
14:44:30 7 MR STEPHENS: Dated what? 19:48:18 7 A Okay. MRI of the cervical spine, 9/24/2007, MRI of the
14:44:33 8 THE WITNESS: 11/8/2010. 14:48:24 8 cervical spine, 4/30/2008; MRI of the cervical spine, 811/2009,
14:44:39 9 BYMR. WALL: 14:48:30 9 brain MRI of 52372005, actual images. Oh, and vehicle photos.
14:44:3910 Q Aliright. Do al! of those four reports which we've 14:49:3710  Sonmy. I didn have those before.
14:44:4511  marked a5 6,7, §, and 9 contain all the complete opinions you 14:48:3911 Q And all of those things that you just listed you just
14:44:5312  intend to express in this case? 14:48:4412  received within Lhe last two weeks?
14:494:5513 A Well, | tried to be as complete as possible. Since my 14:48:4613 A 1 may have reccived them before, but T have nat had a
14:44:5914  review of the records in preparation for Lhis deposition, 1 may 14:48:4914  chance 1o look al them until the Jast two weeks, so in my mind ]
14:45:0315  make some other statements or opinions, 50 I'm hoping that it 14:48:5315  just received them in the last rwo weeks,
14:45:0716  contains a lot of them, but 1 may have more. 14:48:5616 Q Including those depositions? Did you receive those
14:45:1017 Q Allright, Does it — do the reports contain a 14:48:5917  depositions within the lasl iwo weeks?
14:45:1818  complete statement of the basis for your opinions? 14:49:0318 A 1belicve so, yes.
14:45:1815 A | don't know because I just got new records as well, 14:49;0519 Q 1didn't hear that Mr. Simao's deposition was listed in
14:45:2420  and so that may not contain some of the records thal I've 14:49:1220  tha group; is that comect?
14:45:282)  received recently. Actually, in fact — 14:49:1321 A | might not have seen that one. If[ listed it on my
14:45:3022 Q At least ag of the date of the report, does it? 14:48:1922  repors, | may have had them, but { might not have seen his
14:45:3423 A Asof the — no, because 1 was nof able 1o add the new 14:49:2323  actual deposition.
14:45:3924  records inonanew repon, so il's probably missing some 14:48:2424 Q  Well, Exhibit 6 which is your originat reporl lists no
14:45:4525  repons that | do not have. And I can list them for you, if you 14:49:3025  depositions. Exhibil 7 which is your Addendum No. 1 lists the
Page 23 Page 25
14:45:49 1 want: 14:49:35°1 deposition’of Dr"Adam Arita, A-r-i-1-8, and no others.” And
14:45:50 2- @ What are you listing for me? 14:49:43.2  Addendum No. 4 doesn' list any depositions,
14:45:53 3 A Well, | know | have not made any opinions of referenced [ 14:49:45 3 So would you have listed all of the docoments that you
14:45:56 ¢4 some records that | received. And 50 you said does this 14:49:49 4 reviewed in preparation of your reports in that particular
14:46:04 5 report, No. 5, include all the things that | had, and 1 actually 14:49:%3 5 report or addendum?
14:46:06 &  have some records, bu [ have not made any opinions on them, 1 14:49:57 & A Which particular report or addendum?
14:46:10 7 Q 'What records are those, and when did you receive them? | 14:50:00 7 Q All of them as you did each one,
14:46:18 8 A This week or last week. Oh, ! have them on disc. 14:50:04 B A I'm not sure ] undersiand your question.
14:46:27 9 Q Februasy 20117 14:50:06 9 Q Allright, When you did your original report in
14:46:2810 A Yeah. Iforgol. |have a whole set of discs that ) 14:50:1010  February of 2009, it listed records reviewed, 15 that all of
14:46:3311  have, Theyre in my office, 50 1 can bring them in if you want, | 14:50:1411  the records that you reviewed in preparation for that report?
14:46:3712  Icanshow them to you on the Skype if you wan. 14:50:1612 A Yes.
14:46:4013 Q  What records did you receive within the last two weeks? [ 14:50:1713 Q Same thing for Addendum No. 1 where it lists records
14:46:4314  That's what I'm asking. 14:50:2314  reviewed?
14:46:4415 A No, L know. 1 just realized 1han ] had these other 14:50:2315 A Yes.
14:46:4716  records. ) apologize. The depositions of Brint Hill, 14:50:2316 Q Same thing for Addendum No. 47
14:46:5817  Dr. Seibel, Officer Hagswrom, Dr. Rossler, Dr. Grover, 14:50:2617 A Yes
14:47:0518  Dr. MeNulty, Jenny Rish — R-i-s-h; a report from Dr. Winkler,a} 14:50:2718 Q And Addendum No, 5 apparently as well; is that right?
14:47:1219  report from Dr. Wang, W-a-n-g; cervical spine X-rays, 4/15/05, }14:50:3119 A Comect
14:47:3020 10/18/05, &/17/08, 1/11/10; a CT of the cervical spine, 14:50:3220 Q Same answer?
14:47:3421  8/8/08,08/11/09; a CT of the brain, 5/14/2005; MR of the 14:50:3421 A Cormrect,
14:47:4522  cervical spine, the actual images, 3/22/2010. 14:50:2522 Q  So you had — the only deposition thet you had that you
14:47:5023 Q  Let me stop you for a minute. These are things thal 14:50:4123  reviewed until the last two weeks was the deposition of
14:47:5324  you just received in the last two weeks? 14:50:4524  Dr. Arita; is thal right?
14:47:5525 A Well, 1 didn have the actual images and 5o they were 14:50:4725 A | believe so, yes.
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Page 26 Page 28
14:50:48 1 Q And have you — when did you review the depositions of | 14:54:25 1 testimony of Mr. Simao's reating physicians,” at that time was
14:50:54 2 Dr. Hill, Dr, Seibel, Dr. Rossler, Dr. Grover and Dr. McNulty? | 14:54:31 2 Dr. Arita the only enc thal you had reviewed?
14:50:59 3 A Over the last rwo weeks. 14:54:36 3 A ]believe 5o, yes,
14:51:01 4 Q I'msomy? 14:54:37 4 Q I, in facy, al] of thos¢ other depositions were not
14:51:06 5 A Over the last rwo weeks, 14:54:44 5  sent loyou until the last rwo weeks, did you ever requesi them
14:51:00 6 Q And is that because you've just received them? 14:54:52 6  previously?
14:51:15 7 A Like | said, | might have received them beforehand, but | 14:54:52 7 A Well, 1 mean, I requested all the records, but they may
14:51:18 8 1 did not know thai [ had them uniil the last couple of weeksin | 14:54:56 8 have come in carlier, and I just didn't ook at them or I didnt
14:51:22 9 preparation for the deposition thet was happening today. 14:54:59 9 secethem. There may have been a lol of differem factors.
14:51:2510 Q Ifyou had them, why wouldn'i you have known that you | 14:55;0310 Q You would have wanted to see the deposition 1estimony
14:51:2911  had them? 14:55:0611  of the treating physicians and the surgeon who performed the
14:51:3012 A I'mabusyrnan. | don' know what to telt you. 1 have 14:55:1012  surgery; is that right?
14:51:3513  aloi of things poing on on my plaic. I've ol research 14:55:1113 A Well, ) would want 10 see all the records.
14:51:3%14  projects thal need to be taken care of. 1 have grants that I'm 14:55:1314 Q What peried of time do you understand that Dr. Arita

14:;531:4215
14:51:4518
14:51:4817
14:53:5} 18
14:51:5118%

submitting. You know, I've got a lot of things going on besides
this case, so it's possible thei they were there, and | just
didir't have a chance to get to them.

Q How many -~

A 1hope you can eppreciatc that.

14:55:2815
14:55:3016
14:55:4417
14:55:4818
14:55:4819

actually trcared Mr. Simao?
A Do you think we could take a quick break? | jusi want
to get 8 drink. T'm starting 10 get dry here; okay?
MR. WALL: Sure.
(Recess takep from 2:55 pm. 10 2:57 pm.}

14:51:5320 Q TI'msomy. Go shead. 14:57:58 20 MR WALL: Allright. Let's go back on the record.

14:51:5421 A Thope you can appreciate that.- 14:57:5821 BY MR, WALL:

14:51:5722 @ How many depositions of Dr, McNulty did you have? 14:58:0022 Q Doctor, do you remrember the question that was asked

14:52:0323 A Whal do you mean? From this case? 14:58:0223  before we took a break?

14:52:0624 Q Yes. 14:58:0324 A Yes, 1do. .

14:52:0725 A 1 think iv's just one, 15 there another? Oh, he had . 14:58:0425 Q What was the period of time that you understand

Page 27 Page 29

14:52:11 1 wo; right? A 14:58:07 1 D1. Arila to have reated Mr, Simao?* Ct

14:52:14 2 Q Well, tcllime how-many transcripts you have? . i | 14:58:10 2 A Ithink if's between 82472006 10 3/2212007, .0 w7 5. 1o

14:52:17 3 A ] believe | recall jusi ane, but, aciually, in thinking 14:58:18 3 Q Let me ask you: Tha list of things that you read o

14:52:21 4 about i1, | think it wasn'i completed, and he had 10 have a 14:58:26 4 me that you had just reviewed within the last iwo weeks, where

14:52:24 5  second one. 14:58:31 5 does that list come from? What were you reading from?
j14:52:27 6 Q Soall of these documents thai you've listed here thai 14:58:33 6 A Oh, well, ] realized that | didn't have some of the

14:52:37 7 you say you either didn't receive or ol least didn't review 14:58:38 7 records, and so | just quickly put it 1ogether in my — it's

14:52:41 8 unii] the last two weeks, are any of those mentioned in 14:58:42 B jusi a summary, just & page.

14:52:50 9 Addendum Mo. 5? 14:58:47 9 Q When did do you that?

14:52:5010 A 1don'l believe so. 14:58:4910 A In preparaiion for the deposition I realized that there

14:52:5111 Q Did any of those depositions that you reviewed o the 14:58:5211  was records that I didn't have listed there so [ wanted 10 make

14:52:5912  medical records that you've reviewed change any of your opinions 14;598:5612  surethat | had them,

14:53:0413  inthis case? 14:58:5813 Q And so did you contact Mr. Rogers's office 1o obtain

14:53:0614 A Ticeinforced them. The deposition by Dr. Seibel in 14:59:0514  thet information?

14:53:1415  conjunction with the deposition of Mr. Hill and Dr. Arita really 14:59:0615 A No. ] think | might have had them already, but I just

14:53:1916  enforced the —a lot of my opinions and aflowed me 1o actually 14:59:0916  didn't — | don't know if they, you know, sent everything 1o me

14:52:2517  ge1abemer grasp and picture of the case in general, 14:59:1417  inthe last couple of weeks or whether | had them already. )

14:53:3018 Q Your Addendum No. | — I'm somry = Addendum No. 4 from 14:59:1818  mean, there's a lot of records for this case. That's the

14:53:4819  October of 2010, do you have access to that? 14:59:2119 thing,

14:53:5520 A Yes,sir. 14:59:2220 Q Al of the X-rays and CT scans thai you talked gbout

14:53:5621 Q On Pape 4 in Paragraph Ne. 3, it says, "] have reviewed 14:59:2721  seem 1o be referenced in your Addendum No. 1 as films that you

14:54:0822  the deposition 1estimony from M. Simao's treating physicians,” 19:59:3422  actually reviewed?

14:54:1423  and then it goes on to reference ponions of Dr. Arita's 14:59:3623 A Correct, but he's had some more since that time 501

14:54:2124  deposition. 14:59:4529  wanled to make sure -- well, [ received some more since that

14:54:2225 When you said, "I bave reviewed the deposition 14:39:4925  tume 50| wanted 10 make sure that ) was getring everything for
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A 1modified them. I2on't know if "abandoned” is the

Page 30 Page 32}
14:59:52 1 you, 15:04:20 1 right word, but T changed them.
14:55:55 2 Q Your Addendum No, 4 op Page 3 says that "the accident | 15:04:22 2 Q 1thought "abandoned” was the word you used earlier,
15:00:20 3 repont noted moderaie damage to the vehicles and both were 15:04:26 3 A Oh, was it? Okay. Abandon.
15:00:24 4 driven away."” Is that a significant basis for any of your 16:04:30 4 Q Should | disregard the first report and Addendum 4 or
15:00:30 5  opinions inthis case? 15:04:37 5 Addendum 17
15:00:31 & MR, STEPHENS: I'm going to object. Vague as to 15:04:38 6 A [ wouldn' disregard any of the reports. ) just was
15:00:35 7 "significant”, but go ghead, Doclor, 15:04:42 7 looking at the diagnosis that | eame up with, and 1 modiffed it
15:00:36 8 THE WITNESS: 1don' sec where you're at. ‘What page? 15:04:45 B or abandoned it from the previous reports, but the opinions that
15:00:36 9 BY MR. WALL: 15:04:50 9  arein the carlies repons may not have been extended 1o the
15:00:3910 Q Page 3 of Addendum No, 4 in the first full paragraph. 15:04:5510  nextreport,
15:00:4611 A The firsi full paragraph, so it's the top of Page 37 15:05:0011 Q In Addendum 4 you state that "M, Simao’s care berween
15:00:5412  Right. Okay. Well, al the iime 1 don't think — that was 15:05:1012  May and October of 2005 was sporadic and related to his
15:00:5813  basically from the reports, but | don't know if 1 can really say 15:05:1613  pre-cxisting headaches™, do you see thar?
15:01:0214  1that1had the actual images of the pictures or the estimates of | 15:05:1914 A No, but I thar's what | recall writing.
15:01:0715  1he damage al the time, 50 it may have just been taken fomthe | 15:05:24135 ©Q What basis do you have 1o determine that any treatment
15:01:1216  reporis. . 15:05:3016  berween May and October of 2005 was related to Lthe pre-existing
15:01:1317 Q My question was: Did it play a parl in forming your 15:05:3517  headaches as opposed 10 something different that occured in the
15:01:1718  opinions in thia cass? 15:05:3818  accidem?
15:01:2519 A Maybe. 15:05:3819 A 'Well, his admission on 5/4/2005, that he had a hislory
15:01:2920 Q Could you elaborate on that a little bit? 15:06:0220  of migraine headaches; no change in the mental stais, if you
15:01:3321 A Well, I'm not really sure exacily how you want me to 15:06:1121  will; and no weakness into his legs based on the examination,
15:01:3722  determine this. | guess it's, you know, all the factors that go 15;06:1422  there's no newrologica) complaints; the MR1 of the brain being
15:01:4223  inothis case. I's seeing the initial records and secing his 15:06:1923  unremarkable showing no strectural abnormalivies from 5/23/2005,
15:01:4624  complaints at the time as well as looking a1 the photographs and | 15:06:2924  the treatmen! for migraine type headaches with standard ..
15:01:5125  the actual damage of those photographs, and so it definilely 15:06:3825  medication such as Topamax and Carisoprodol. - s
Page 31 Page 33
15:01:59 1 played a factor in the overall review of the case. = - N 15:06:43 1 e et e o '
#.15:02:09 2 Q On the same page further down under Paragraph.l-it : 5 °[.15:06:48 2 Q Sonyquestionwas — 1 v L L
15:02:12 3 says, "Mr. Simao had a significant hisiary of headaches with 15:06:50 3 A Tmlisting -- hold on. I'm not done. The listing of
15:02:16 4 treatment prior 1o the motor vehicle accident of April 15th, 15:06:52 4 X-rays of the cervical spine in the lefl shoutder from
15:02:24 5 2005° 15:07:00 5 10/8/2005; and the inconsistencies of him following up where he
15:02:25 6 Did you review any records which predated - medical 15:07:0% 6  doesn't have consistent follow-up on a weekly or bi-weekly
15:02:28 7 records which predated the aceident? 15:07:13 7 basis, but actually had gaps in care. That, to me, is
15:02:30 8 A No. 15:07:16 8 consistent with 8 pre-existing migraine condition.
15:02:32 9 Q Do you have any knowledge of the character or location 15:07:21 9 Q Did you understand thal Mr, Simao described any
15:02:41 10  of those headings based on any medical records? 15:07:2410  headaches he had post-accident during that period as being
15:02:4411 A Just from the recent records with his new newrologist 15:07:2811  differem from the migraines he may have suffered prior to the
15:02:5012  that he's been seeing in 2010 and him describing the history of 15:07:3212  accidem?
15:02:5613  longstanding migrsines as well as the other records that he 15:07:3213 A Yes,Iread that,
15:03:00 14  described to the Southwest Medical Associotcs when he presented | 15:07: 3414 Q And have you disregarded that?
15:03:04 15  after the accident about his pre-existing migraines 15:07:3718 A No, | didn*t disregard it. Thot's fine. 1 undersiand
15:03:0716 Q So what were Mr. Simao's presenting complainis on the 15:07:4¥16  where he's coming from. I'm going by the records, and this is
15:03:1917  day of the motor vehicle acciden1? 15:07:4417  my opinion based on the simplicity of the records and his
15:03:2118 A Neck paoin, headache, Jeft elbow pain. 15:07:4818  pre-existing condition, as well as if you look at the records
15:03:4519 Q Anything elss? 15:07:5119  from 2010, that really kind of stanis talking about only
15:03:4720 A That's what the records say. 15:07:5720  migraine headeches.
15:03:4921 Q  In Addendum No. 4 — well, let me ask you this: 15:08:0521 Q You write in Addendum No. 4, Exhibil 8, that it was not
15:04:01 22  Addendun No. 4 -- you testified previously thet since the time 15:08:0922  until October 2005 that his neck pain began 1o be an issue, but
15:04:0523  of your original report until at least Addendum No. 4 or No. 5, 19:08:1423  in fact he presented wilh neck pain al the hospital; is thet
15:04:11 24  that you had nbandoned certain conclusions, is that right? 15:06:1624  correct?
15:04:16 25 15:08:1625 A Yeah, but you have 10 understand the neck pain thal he
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Page 34 Page 36|,
15:08:21 1 presented with was nol something thal he continued fo complain ( 15:11:30 1 A Yes )
15:08:24 2 about. You know, if somebody has neck pain related to a 15:11:31 2 Q Have you ever se¢n it when the main focus of a pain
15:00:29 3 significant trauma, in my experience al a Level 1 trauma center | 15:131:38 3 generator is addressed and meated and all of a sudden the i
15:08:34 4 ar UCLA, Johns Hopkins, and in the military, these individuals | 15:11:42 4 secondary pein generator becomes apparentty where it hadn't been !
15:08:40 5  have continuous pain complaints every single day, and they will | 15:11:47 5 thought of as symptomatic previously?
15:08:43 &  show up the following week. 15:11:50 6 A 1mean, we ik about that, I think 23 praciitioners \
15:08:45 7 1 mean, he showed up on multiple visits berween then 15:11:50 7 we like 10 facus on one problem and iy to solve il to go to the f
15:08:48 8 and October and had no neck pain. And, actually, if you look at | 15:11:54 8 next one, but I dan’s believe thal. You know, if you're going '
15:08:52 9 the physical exam, the range of motion of the netk was full 15:11:57 9 10 have significan! tauma, and it heppens 10 & significant '
15:08:5510  without any pain. So jus! because he had it on the first day, 15:12:0110  portion of your body, you're going to complain of all of those
15:08:5511  obviously, doesn't mean that he had significant pain later on, 15:12:0411  things, nen just focus and pick and choose. So if its .
15:09:0512 Q  Well, that's a significant basis for your opinions in 15:12:0812  significani gnough, you're going 10 complain of all the issues,
15:09:0813  this case, ian'l if; that there wasn" neck pain from May 1o 15:12:1113  not just the one and forgel the other.
15:09:1114  October of 2005 documented in the records? 15:12:1314 Q Do vou remember lestifying a Jitle bit contrary to
15:09:1715 A [Ivsnat a significant basis. It's a portion of the 15:12:1715  that previously in a deposition?
15:09:1916  basis of my Opinions. | have other opinions. The MRI's 15:12:1916 A Well, it dependds on the case, you know. | think that
15:09:2417  actually being normal, reported as normal on subsequent MRI's | 15:312:2217  the issue may be that that case presented that the person was
15:09:2918  after the first one. The fact that Mr. Simao had no improvement | 15:12:28 18 having significant {ssues in one area and may not have thought
15:09:3219 . withhis surgery for his neck condition, and the fact that he's 15:12:3319  aboul the other areas, so it's a case-by-case basis. Ir's not
15:09:3720  been complaining of headaches, not neck pain, for consistenly | 15:12:37 20 that it's unheard of, but, you know, it's something thal you got
15:09:4121  the Jast four years, five years. 15:12:40 21  to congider when you're looking a1 &ll the facis in the ease in 1
15:09:4422 Q Are you saying thai the records suggest thal he hasn 15:12:4422  general.
15:09:4823  been complaining of neck pain over the last four or five yearg? | 15:12:44 23 Q in fact, you previously testified tha - and ] quote
15:09:5224 A No, ban what 'mr saying is thai the consistency of his 15:12:4924  —"Alot of times in the patient population that | see, the
15:09:5625%  complainis appear 1o be retmed 1o o headache condition. The 15:12:5325%  main focus of the pain generaton, once tat's taken away, all of
Page 35 Page 37

15:10:01 1 cther factor being = and Dr. Arita hqg already established this 15:12:58 1  asudden you kind ‘'of see the forest from the trees, you know,~ *
15:10:06.2 - that-there may be ho basis*for-his.paincomplaints. He 15:13:03.2 and so things kind-of open up arid you'siartseeing the other: = [» e
15:10:10 3 doesni understand where the pain is coming from. The MRI'sare [ 15:13:07 3 areas that you haven't -- haven't been noticed before.” And
15:10:14 4 appearing normal. The discograms don' seem to make a 15:13:10 4 then you go on to say, "Yeah, there’s a primary and a secondary
15:10:18 5  concordance sense. And Dr. Seibel and Dr. Arita both seem to 15:13:14 5 pain" Do you recall testifying 10 that?
15:10:22 6 think (hat there may be no trauma that can explain the pain that 15:13:15 6 A Which case? ‘
15:10127 7 he has — or 'm soiry ~ no pathology Lthal can explain the pain 15:13:18 7 Q I believe il was the Gilbert case.
15:10:30 8  that he has. 15:13:22 8 A Tdontremember. When was it? R
15;10:32 9 Q  Soifhe had, hypothetically, constanl pain complaints 15:13:25 5 Q [believe 2007, and it was referenced again in a
15:10:3910  in his neck from May to October of 2005, you'rc saying that 15:13:3010  Schubtz case in June of Iast year, '
15:10:44 11  wouldns't change your gpinions in this case? 15:13:3211 A 1think you have to look at the context of the k
15:10:4612 A That's not what I'm saying. ‘What Fm saying — 15:13:3612  question. There's definitely issues like that. I'm not saying :
15:10:4913 @ Does it change your opinion? 15:13:3913  that Mr. Simao couldn't have that as well. What I'm saying is '
15:10:51 14 A No. 15:13:4414  itdepends on the case by case and whal the guestion was. 1 i
15:10:5315 @  The bypothetical? 15:13:4715  mean, you can pull out any guote you want, but unless you show i
15:10:55186 A No, it wouldn't change my opinions. You know, the 15:13:5216  the flow of thal questioning, ) den't really understand the ;
15:10:58 17  MRIs are nonnal. | doesn't explain his symptoms. Womayshow [ 15:13:5517  relevance of yous question. !
15:11:0318  adegenerative condition which is pre-exisiing, but his 15:13:5618 Q Well, ultimately, is i1 your opinion that he doesn't J
15:11:0719  complainis based on the records show thet ir's a headache that 15:13:5919  have neck pain or that he doesn't have neck pain that was caused {!
15:11:1020  he was complaining of, not neck pain, and the exam showed a 15:14:0220 by the motor vehicle aceident in April of 20057 M
15:11:1321  normel neck examinmion so 1 don't see how hypothetical can fit 15:14:0521 A My opinion is that he does not have neck pain that's 1
15711:1722  inthis case, 15:14:0922  significam from the accident itself, and that he may have i
15:11:1823 Q Okay. In your practice, do you ever see patients who 15:14:1323  presented on the firsi day with neck pain, but that had resolved i
15:11:2324  have multiple injuries or issues going on, issues of primary and 15:14:1724  within the first two weeks. The MRTs are completely normal in 1
15:11:2925  secondary pain? ) 15:14:2225  follow-ups, and you cannot relate any of the cervical spine l
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Page 38 Page 40[:
15:314:27 1 pathology since there is none to any of the accidem which is 15:17:30 1 render an opinion as lo whether the subsequent treatment was
15:14:30 2 whyl decided 10 cal! this a non-specific muscle pain that had 15:17:34 2 reasonable and necessary? )
15:14:36 23 resolved, 15:17:35 3 A Because I'm sure you're going to ask me about it,
15:14:38 4 Q  You had in your earlier repons in this case discussed 15:17:39 4 Q  And 50 that's why you rendered the opinion?
15:14:43 S awhiplash injury, and you had indicated that you're abandoning | 15:17:43 5 A Well, I mean, I'm asked to give an opinion on the
15:14:48 &  that theory. is that correc1? 15:17:4%5 6  records, I'm asked to give an opinion on the procedures 50 —
15:14:50 7 . A Yeah You have to look at all the records in general, 15:17:50 7 T'm asked to give an opinion, 50 J gave an opinion,
15:14:52 B and based on that and based on Dr. Anta's testimony as wellas [ 15:17:53 8 Q The MR] from March of 2006, you hive reviewed both the
15:14:57 9 Dn, Seibel's testimony of possibly a secondary gain and pessibly | 15:17:58 9 report and the film; is that right?
15:15:0110  nol finding the source of 1he pain, that there has 10 be some 15:18:0210 A Thal is correcl.
15:15:0511  questions as to whether o not there was truly an injury te the 15:16;0311 Q  And do you agree that it showed a mild narrow lefl
15:15:0912  neck significant encugh to warram surgery. 15:18:0912  neural foramina at C3 and C47
15:15:1213 Q  Well, I'm not asking if you relate any whiplash injury 15:18;1313 A No,1don'.
15:15:1914 1o the surgery. 15:18:1414 Q Do you agree that it showed a small central disc
15:15:2015 I'm saying: Did he suffer, in your expent opinion, a 15:18:1815  protrusion a1 C4 and 57
15:15:2416  whiplash injury at the time of the accident? 15:18:2116 A No, ] dont.
15:15:2617 A No. 15:18:2217 Q  IT D1, MeNuiry had — well, agsume that he disagreed
15:15:2618 Q You reference in your reports a prior motorcycle 15:18:3818  with vou, would you agree that it was appropriat¢ ko send the
15:15:3719  accidemt suffered by Mr, Simao; do you recall that? 15:18:4119  plaintifT for pain management treatment at that point?
15:15:4020 A Yes 15:18:4720 A Well, you know, it's always appropriate 1o send someone
15:15:4021 Q Do you know when it was? 15:18:5021 10 pain managemen because | don't think there was a surgical
15:15:4422 A 2005. 15:18:5322  issue. Soifthe individual is — il you're trying lo figure
195:15:4523 Q The motorcycle was 20057 15:18:5723  qut where the source of the pain is coming from, you're going to
15:15:4924 A Oh, I'm sory. L think it was the year before, 2004, 35:19:0024  want lo Ury to dmemnine thal an a more congrete basis as
15:15:5425 Q Are you aware of any facts surrounding the accidenr? 15:19: 0525  opposed to wrying to solidify and fix a disc, and so I think 1t

Page 3% Page 41
15:15:56 1 A Not other than what he had said 1o bis providers. 15:19:09 1 was definitely'reasonable for Dr. McNulty 1o passhim on o
15:16:02 2 Q Have you reviewed any records of any medical veatment -~ 15:18:34. 2 - someonc’¢lse for a sécond opinion and maybe even an evaluation
15:16:05 3 as aresult of that particular accident? 15:1%9:19 3 1o determine where the source of the pain is coming from.
15:16:07 4 A No, 15:19%9:19 4 Do you agree tha) by the time Dr. McNulry saw Mr. Simao
15:16:07 5 Q It's your opinion that any reatment after the end of 15:1%9:23 5 again in Seplember of 2007, that there was evidence of a pain
15:16:10 6 May of 2005 is not related (o the motor vehicle accident; is 15:19:27 6 generaioa o C3-4 and/or C4-57
15:16:21 7 that righ!? 15:19:31 7 A No, 1 don't agree wilh thai.
15:16:21 B A Cormext. 15:19:35 6 Q Do you believe il was appropriate for Dr. McNulty 1o
15:16:22 9" Q You go on 1o crilicize treatment that Mr. Simao 15:19:39 9 order a new MRI in September of 20077
15:16:2810  peceived for cervical issnes in 2006 and bevond; is thal right? 15:19:4310 A Appropriate, because he's irying to further determine
15:16:3711 A Well, 'm asked to give an opinion on those treaments 15:19:4711  what's going on, sure. | mean, 1 dont think that that's
15:16:4012  and whether or not they are ireatments that 1 would consider 15:19:5012  unreasonable for him to make a decision because he was confused.
15:16:4¢13  performing and so — | was also asked whether or not Lhey were 15:19:5413  There was no real good sowrce for the pain, and yet he was still
15:16:48 14  reasonable, neccssary, and reloted 10 the accident, so 1 made 15:19:5814  complaining of pain, and Dr. McNulty’s 2 spine surgeon 50 he
15:16:52 15  opinions on them. 15:20: 0115  wants to ry and fix the spine. Whether it's relevant and
15:16:5316 Q Once you determined that nothing afler May of 2005 is 15:20:0536  1elated wibe motor vehicle aceidem, no, it's nol.
15:16: 5717  related 1o the motor vehicle accident, you wenl on Lo stale 12:20:08)17 Q The September 2007 MR, you reviewed both the repon
15:17:02 18 whether you thought rearment in 2006 and beyond was reasonable | 15:20:1418  and the film?
15:17:0719  and necessary? 15:20:1619 A Yes. 1have it ight here on my compuler.
15:17:09 20 A As il relates 1o R accident. 15:20:1920 Q Doyou see any differences between that and the
15:17:1221 Q  Bul yon've already determined that it wasn' related to 15:20:2221  March 2006 MRI?
19:17:1622  the accident. 15:20:2622 A You know, in general, it 1ooks like iv's improved which
15:17:1723 My question is: Taking out any question of causal 15:20:4223 15 what happened in 2008 in August. It was reporied es normal,
15:17:21 24 relationship, if you already detennined that nothing beyond 15:20:4624 I mean, it looks like a vary normal MR for age
15:17:2625 15:20:5125  appropneteness.
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Page 42 Page 44
15:20:51 1 Q  T'm jusi asking you about September 2007 as comparedi1o | 25:24:23 1 understanding?
15:20:56 2 March 2006, you're saying there's en improvement between those | 15:24:23 2 A That's aboul right,
15:20:59 3 twa? 15:24:24 3 Q When do you undersiand that the surgery actually was
15:21:00 4 A Well, in my mind, i1 looks like it's about the same. | 15:24:28 4 performed? Do you understand that the surgery was in the spring
15:21:04 5 mean, ] don't know if you can really quantify it as improved, 15:25:46 5 ol 20097
15:21:07 &  buwt it's still considered, lo me, to be an age-appropriate, 15:25:48 6 A Tmlooking. March 25th, 2009,
16:21:11 7 normal MR1. 15:26:29 7 Q Allnght. So thal would have been almosi two years
15:21:13 8 Q Dr McNulty testified in his deposition that it showed 15:26:33 8  after Dr. Arita stopped seeing Mr, Simao; s that right?
15:21:17 9 the same findings, the September of 2007 one as the March 2006 { 15:26:36 9 A Yes,
15:21:2510  ope. You may disagree with the findings, but do you disagree 15:26:3710 Q There was a discography performed in this case in
15:21:2911  thatthey are essentially the same? 15:26:4611  August of 2008 by Dr. Rossler. Are you aware of that?
15:21:3112 A My feeling is that they're essentiaily the sarme. 15:26:4912 A Yes
15:21:3913 Q Allright. Following that MR], Dr. McNulty either did 15:;26:4813 Q Do you know Dr. Rossler?
15:21:5114  orordered a lefl C3-4 and C4-5 transforaminal epidural 15:26:52 14 A No.
15:21:5815  injections. Do you agree or disagree with that process 167 15:26:5215 Q Did you review his records?
15:22:0116  determine the pain generator? 15:26:5516 A Yes.
15:22:0317 A 1disagree. | dont think it's necessary 1o perform 15:26:5517 Q Did you review his deposition?
15:22:0618  those injections. He wasn't having pain in that distnbution 15:26:58 18 A Did1listit?
15:22:0919  pattern, and when it was done, he didn’t have any improvement 15:27:0419 Q Yourcad il to me today. Yo listed it when you read
15:22:1320  cither, 0 il was - 15:27:0720  offalist of things that you received within the Jast two
15:22:152) Q  Actually -- I'm sorry. 15:27:1021  weeks.
15:22:1722 A Well, again, that's the probtern with the repons of 15:27:1122 A Well, if} read it and 1 Jisted it off, then yes, )
15:22:2123  pain. You know, you're going by a subjective report. Mr. Simae | 15:27:1623  reviewed if.
15:22:2624  said he felc berter, but obviously he didn't because he was 15:27:1624 Q ItsnotJisted in any of your reperts. It's just what
15:22:3025  still having symploms aflerwards. 15:27:12925  youtold me 1oday.

Page 43 Page 45
15:22:33 1~ @ He reported 80 percent relief. You think that that's 115:27:20 1 A Thats'what Fm saying. That's'why 1 gotthe lisi so 1
15:22:39-2:> -placchbo or-what de you think?-  » . . 15:27:25 2 could eXpound willi'youss - w et e e o e
15:22:490 3 A Well, ] dont know. Thar's the problem. | mean, it 15:27:26 3 Q During a discography procedure, it's generatly blind 1o
15:22:43 4 could be placcbo. M also could be that we're just nos clear 15:27:32 4 the patient; is that right?
15:22:46 5§ because the pain generator has not really been established, and 15:27:34 5 A The level that's being tested is blind, yes.
15:22:51 6 it oppears to me that it was more related to a migraine headache 15:27:37 6 Q  Any reason thal you would conclude that Dr. Rossler
15:22:56 7  cause 15:27:42 7 would tell Mr. Simao what levels he's injecting?
15:22:59 4 Q In your Addendum No. 4 you slale that "] agree with 15:27:44 8 A No, 1 have no reason 1o believe that,
15:23:10 9 Dr. Arita that cervical spine surgery was not necessary based 1§:27:47 9 Q And the result, according to Dr. Rassler, was posilive
15:23:1710  upon the images and Mr. Simaa’s pain complainis.” Do yourecsll [ 15:27:5210 gt C3-4 and C4 and §; is that your understanding?
15:22:2111  that? 15:27:5611 A Based on the report, yes.
15:23:2112 A Yes, 15:27:5812 Q Do you have any reasan to believe thar the procedure
15:23:2213 Q  You understand thal Dy_ Arita didn't have any records 15:28:0113  was not properly performed?
15:23:2714  post-June of 2007 and never saw Mr. Simao after June of 2007, is [ 15:28:0214 A No.
15:23:3615  thatright? 15:28;0315 Q Any reason to belicve that it was a false positive?
15:23:2616 A ldon'tknow You'd have 1o ask Dr. Arita. 15:28:0816 A Yes, 1do have reason (o believe that.
15:23:4417 Q  Well, we did, 15:28:1117 Q And what is that reason?
15:23:5118 A So- 15:28:1218 A He has a normal MRI. Normal discs do not usuatly give
15:23:5319 Q 5 that - the period of tlime we already establjshed 15:28:1919  pain that arc considered pathological, A disc that has pain
15:23:5720  from you is that that was the period of time that you believe 15:28:2720  that's a nonmal appearance on an MRI is not a disc thal you want
15:24:0021  Dr. Arila saw Mr. Simao; is that right? 15:28:3121  wreplace or do surgery for, so thai would be considered a
15:24:05 22 A Do you want to go over it again because I'm not sure | 15:28:3422  positive control, so if you think it's positive and you do
15:24:0323  understand the dates. 15:28:3%23  surgery and it doesn't help him, which it didnk, then it's
15:24:1124 Q Aliright, Ds. Arita weated Mr. Simao roughly from 15:28:4324  considered a false positive
15:24:1825  October of 2006 until June of 2007; is that consistent with your 15:28:4625 Q Sosince - let me just make sure | understand this,
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15:28:50 1 and please comect me if I'm wrong. Since youview the MRIto 1 15:32:11 1 A Well, many factors. You know, ] don't know if you've
15:28:56 2 be normal, and the discogram was positive for C3 and C4 - or 15:32:16 2 undergone a procedure or have actually scen a procedure, but
15:29:06 3 €3-4 and C4-5, then you're rejecting the discogram and relying 15:32:20 3 theyre not the funnest things o have done to you, and they are
15:29:18 4 onthe MRI and, therefore, the discogram must be a false 15:32:24 4 quite raumatic. You're placing a very long needie into the
15:29:23 5 positive? 15:32:25 5 anterior pan of your neck, and you'e partly awake because you
15:29:23 6 A Almost. You're almost there. IU's a litile more 15:32:29 6 have lo give a response. IS nol a pleasant prosedure by any
15:29:26 7 complex than that. | think, as you know - | know you've 15:32:32 7 means. And sa just the sheer foct of placing the needle is a
15:29:31 8 probably read up on discograms in general and whether or not 15:32:37 8  component of pain, and people may misinterprel that,
15:29:39 9 there's fatse positives, especially in cases of litigation and 15:32:40 9 The fact that you're pressurizing a disc, and if ir's
15:29:3910  secondary gain, and cervical discograms are noted lo be even 15:32:44 20  nanin the cenler of the disc and if's in the annulus or if it's
15:29:4611  more controversial and more considered to be false positives. 15:32:4511  notin the nucleus, but somewhere off 1o the side, there’s
15129:5012 And you have 10 look at a lot of different factors. 15:32:5012  possibility that you gei a false read, especially if you have a
15:29:5313  You hove to loak at the MRI. You have to ook at the previous 15:32:5313  higher psessure. The pressure component of that disc — |
15:29:5614  treatment. You have to look at the pain complaints. You have 15:32:5614  wasn'l there, so | can't tell you exactly, but if you look at it
15;29:5815 10 look &1 where the patterns of pain travel. You have (o look 15:32:591% .- performing a disc, some of the times these discs are positive
15:30:0116  at the legitimacy of those complaints and whal was previously 15:33:0216  for individuals, and we don't exactly know why they're positive,
15:30:0617  treated as well as the discogram and the confines of that 15:33:0517  but they can be, and the MR2 is completely normal. That
15:30:1218  discogram and the MRI. So you're loaking at a lot of differem 15:33:0918  definitely confuses you. So if you're seeing a positive disc
15:30:1619  factors in conjunction with this. And based on what appearsta | 15:33:1319  with an MRI that appears to be normal, you've got W conclude
15:30:1920  be the patiern of pain for Mr. Simao as well as the disc 15:32:1720  thal il's potemtially a false positive disc,
15:30:2421  appeamnce on the MRI, he was not a candidate for discograms to | 15:33:21 21 Not anly that, but you also have the psychological
15:30:3022  determine whether or not surgery was nécessary or surpery would [ 15:33:23 22  components that need to be addressed, the sccondary gain, the
15:30:3223  be done because he was never a surgical candidate for a cervical {15:33:2523  companents of where the pain is located, and where docs the pain
15:30:3724  spine. 15:33:2824  gavel? You know, are you saying that the disc is painful
15:30:3725 . Q  Which -- whal's a more valuable4oo] to see, for 15:33:3125  because il's painful or are you saying that it's concordant with

Page 47 Page 49
15:30:491 1 instance, an annular 1ear in a disc, an MRI or something else? - [ 15:33:34 1 the’pain of where you normally have pain on a day wday basls'?
15:30:47 2 A Well, annulas \ears can happen with afy kind of-- *- - +|.15:33:38.2  That ¢an also give you a false positive; :
15:30:52 3 degeneralive component. Annular tears can be present and we  °| 15:33:41 3 Q Sois it your testimony and your opinion o a
15:30:56 4 have no pain component of it, How do you determine what's a 15:33:44 4 reasonable degree of medical probability thal the discography in
15:30:58 5  more significant way of evaluating that annular tear? (s a 15:33:48 5 August of 2008 rendered 2 faise positive?
15:31:03 6  very difficult question, and we have not really found e positive 15:33:51 6 A Yes.
15:31:07 7 way of determining that. 15:33:51 7 Q And you obviously disagree wilh Dr. Rossler on thay; is
15:31:08 8 Now, you can put contrast in a disc with discogram and 16:34:06 8 thatrig?

15:31:12 9 do a CT myelogram and see a {ear or fissure, but that stil may 15:234:07 9 A Well, he called il positive, 50 | guess | disagree.
15:31:1710  nol mean anything clinically. You could look at an MR and see | 15:34:1010 Q And do you believe that under Propofo), thet Mr. Simac
15:31:2111  that onthe MRI, and it still may not make sense. 50 | dont 15:34:2311  gave a response 10 a blind discogram that rendered the false
15:31:2112  Know if we have really great imaging components to say whetis | 15:34:3212  positive?

15:31:2413  the best way of looking at it. 15:34:3213 A Well, I think that's also a component. 1 didn't even
15:;31:2714 Q Well, an annuler tear can exist and not show up on an 15:34:3514  address that, but yes. 1 mean, i the person’s oul, and theyre
15:31:3215 MR, is that correct or no? 15:34:3915  on Propofol, and they ean't really think clearly, and they don't
15:31:3416 A Ng, | don't believe that. 1 think you have to show 15:34:4416  remember the treatment at all, absolutely anything can cause
15:31:3717  something on an MRL 1f the MRI's our gold standerd, you know, | 15:34:4717  pain. You could just pinch their skin on the side and that
15:31:4218  you're hoping that you see scmething, And this idea of a 15:34:5018  could cause pain, so that's ancther component that | had not
15:31:4619  microtear of a microscopic tear that is only seen by you placing [ 15:34:5419  brought up, but thank you for bringing that up.

15:31:5220  aneedle and shoving & bunch of fluid in there doesn't make much  15:34:5420 Q Well, what do you use when you perform that? Do you
15:31:5421  sensctome. 15:34:5721  use Propofol? Do you use Versed? What do you use?
15:31:5422 Q Well, ifit's your conclusion that it was a false 15:34:5922 A Yegh, we use — you know, we iry 10 make the patient as
15:32:0123  positive, but there's no reason 10 believe the procedure wasnt 15:35:0223  comlorable as possible. I've done it withoul any sedation, and
15:32:0524  properly performed or that the equipment malfunciioned, then 15:35:0624  we've gotten trough il, You know, patients have to be able 10
15:32:0825  what would cause the false positive? 15:35:1025  olernie this procedure. We can give a little Fentanyl to make
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15:35:14 1 sure they're somewhal comfortable, and then we give 1 litte bit 15:38:31 1 A Hey, is Rogers there?
15:35:18 2 of Versed to again make them relax. The way | perform these 15:38:37 2 MR. STEPHENS: Are you soliciting an objection?
15:35:22 3 tests is that I tehl themn up front that this 15 not going to be 15:38:41 3 THE WITNESS: Well, I mean, he corrected himself, so 1
15:35:26 4 a fun test to perfonm, and there's going o be some pain aspact 15:38:44 4 thought you might have ai least known what he was saying.
15:35:28 5 toil, but{ need you fully awake so you can participate with 15:39:01 5 THE WITNESS: Can you read the quesiion back?
16:35:30 €  me. When you knock somebody oul with Propofol and thenryto [ 15:39:01 6 {The record was read by the reporter.)
15:35:33 7 wake them up, it's & harder tes1. 15:39:04 7 THE WITNESS: Yeah, | don't think the injections were
15:35:27 8 Q  Dr. Rossler testified in his deposition ihat the 15:39:06 8 nevessary based on his pain complainis and based on what } saw
15:35:41 9 procedure he used foilowed the guidelines from 151S. Do you 15:39:09 ¢ from the MRI, 50 no, it’s not necessary.
15:35:46 10 agree with thal or disagree? 15:35:1310 BY MR WALL:
15:35:4911 A 1have no reason to disagree that he didn't follow a 15:39:1311 Q Is it your opinion that none of the injections
15:35:5212 guideline, but like any guideline, i's a guide. I mean, il's 15:39:1812  confirmed cervical involvement?
15:35:5513  npt the standard of care. It's not the way that everyopie Joes 15:39:2213 A Yeah, 1 dont think any of the injections aciually gave
15:35:5914 1. Everyone has a litile different component of performing a 15:39%:2514  him the relief that we're Jooking for to determine the source of
15:36:0315  discogram. 15:39:2915  the pain, and | think that's why all the doctors were ordering
15:26:071¢6 Q  In your fourth addendum, Addendum No. 4 which is 15:39:3316  somany MRI's trying to figure out what was going on. 1 think
15:36:1317  Exhibit 8 -- and I understand this was commenting on the life 15:39:3717  Dx. Arila was scralching his head trying to figure out why he
15:36:2318  care plan, bul you wrote on Page 4: “To a medical probability, 15:39:3918  wasn't getting any better and why he wasn'l improving,
15:36:31 19  injeclions were not necessary based on the motor vehicle 15:39:3919  Dr. Seibel is pretty much doing the same thing now. And
15:36:3420  accident. The injections that were done did not resolve his 15:39:4320  Dr. McNulty did surgery, and he's still nol better and still has
15:36:3821  pawn and did not confinm cervical involvement.” 15:39:4821  pain. Soldon't think the actunl generator has been found
15:36:44 22 Is it your position - setling aside the issue of 15:39:5322  within the cervical spine. It's somewhere else.
15:36:4923  whether iv's related to the acciden, is it your position thal 15:39:5623 Q Allright. Do you believe that 1he surgery performed
15:36:5324  all of the injections that Mr. Simao has undergone were 15:40:0024 was unr;ecessa:y?

15:37:01 25

unnecessary?

15:40:0025

A I'den't want 10 say that it was unnecessary, [ think

15:37:03

-1 1533007

T
2
15:37:13 3
15:37:1% 4
15:37:24 5
15:37:28 6
15:37:28 7
15:37:30 8
15:37:33 9
15:37:3610
15:37:3811
15:37:4312
15:37:4813
15:37:5014
15:37:5415
15:37:5516
15:37:581°7
15:38:0016
15:38:041%9
15:38:0520
15:38:1121
15:38:1422
15:38:1823
15:38:2124
15:38:2725

Page 51

A -Well,-it's hard for me 1o miake a blanket statement like
that.r | guess what | was saying i$ that 1 didn't feel, based on .-
his pattern of his pain, that he needed to have selective nerve
root block and facet injections as well as face1 rhizotomies.
His pain was obviously related to his migraime headaches in myy
opinion.

Now, I'm not faulting Dr. Arita, bit based on the -
and you tofd me not to base it on the sccident, but 1 don't
think 1 would have done those procedures. 1 don't think they
would have really determined anything because the MR1 was
appearing normeal, so you're not going to et these kind of need
for &n injection based on 2 normal appearing MRI and (he pattem
of pain that he described.

Q Sa is that yes, you belicved that the injections were
unnecessary?

A Again, | didn't want to make a blanket ststemeni so [
tried to clarify that.

Q Well, you did make a blankel statement in your reperl,
That's why I'm asking.

A Well, I'm trying to hane it in on loday's visit.

Q Sais it yes, they were necessary; or 110, they were
unnecessary -- siike that. Wait a minute. Let me — 1 think )
just gave you a heads | win, 1ajls you Jose.

Is it your lestimony that the injections were necessary

or unnecessary setting aside the issue of causation?

15:40:03
15:40:08
15:40:16
15:40;:16
15:40:22
15:40:26
15:40:37
15:40:38
15:40:41 9
15:40:441¢
15:40:4811
15:40:4812
15:40:5213
15:40:54 14
15:40:5715
15:491:021%6
15:41:0417
15:41:1718
15;41:2319
15:41:2620
15:41:2721
15:41:3122
15:41:3423
15:41:3924
15:41:4425

@ -~ W B W N -

Page 53

il was Unreasonable: It didn't maké Sense based on the MRI '

- Q -~If you used theword “"unndcessaiy” in‘your report, arg - -| * -

you changing that opinion?

A You know, you puys have your lawyer thing about it, so
ves, Tl stick with what's in my report.

Q Do you believe the treatment by Dr. McNulty fell below
the standard of care?

A ) was never asked to look a1 standard care. | have no
comments to make on standard of care so —

Q Would an unnecessary sutgery be below the standard of
care?

A 1was not asked 1o look at standard of care. I'm not
going to be able to comment on that question,

Q  Well, do you have an opinion as to whether an
unnecessary surgery would be below the standard of care?

A ! have no opinion on that topic.

Q@ You write in your — I guess I'm looking at Addendum )

now, Is Addendum 1 stil) valid or have we sort of moved on 1o |-

something else? Arc your conclusions — et me ask that a
better way. -
Are your conclusions and staterments in Addendum No. 1
still some of your opinions?
A We can go through them il you want.
Q  You write on Page 8: "The lack of response by the
procedures done with Dr, Arita calls into question why the

[erp—p—————
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Page 54 Page 56
i5:41:48 1 injections done by the spine surgeon, Dr. MeNulty, were more 15:44:49 1 normal -« that's nol how it works. 1 mean, that's not how you
15:41:53 2 successful” 15:44:54 2 typically see these kind of patients.
15:41:55 3 Let me break (hat down. Is it yous belief that the 15:44:56 3 Patjents who get worse have MR] findings. They have
15:41:59 4 selective nerve root blocks done by Dr. Arita in October of 2006 15:44:59 4 findings that are consistent with what you expect the pain 10
15:42:12 5 evidenced a lack of response? 15:45:02 & be, and this is not what you see in this case, and that's why
15:42:15 6 A Well, 1think there's just inconsistencigs with his 15:45:07 6 it's confusing. ¥ mean, even Dr. McNulty did a secondary set of
15:42:19 7 response, and thar's kind of the point of what 1 was saying is 15:45:11 7 discograms to see if he could funther anesthetizz the disc and
15:42:23 8 that how come you can have a good response with one providerand | 15:45:17 8 make it better 50 in his mind he knew what was going on, but,
15:42:24 9 not with the other. 1 mean, you should be consistent. You 15:45:17 9 you know, obviously, Mr. Simao didn't even pet reliel from the
15:42:2610  know, you want 1o do a procedure by anybody and have the same 15:45:22 10  surgery cither. Nothing was working, so then you have to call
15:42:3011  result. Since you didn't pel gond success with these things, 15:45:2511  into question why is that, especially when you have a normal
15:42:3532  and then al) of a sudden you get to anclher provider and you 15:45:2812 MRl
15:42:3813  have good success, it doesnt make much sense. Plus, if you 15:45:2913 Q Is it your opinion that the pulse radio frequency
15:42:4214  inject in different areas by one provider and you gel resulis, 15:45:33 14 should work for & long pericd of time, longer than a few months?
15:42:4315  and by another provider you don'l, it just calls inte question 15:45:3715 A Yeah, The pulse radio frequency should work for
15:42:4716  the inaccuracies and the inconsistencies of reporiing by 15:45:4016  anywhere between six months Lo tweive months. If you look at
15:42:5217  Mr. Simao. ] 15:45:4417  the lilerature, it can actually Jast up 1o twelve months so
15:42:5418 Q Soif Dr. Arita testified that there was & 5010 15:45:4618  you're expecting a long texm benefit from i
15:43:0019 75 percent improvement according 1o Mr. Simae from the selective | 15:45:48 12 Q There's a difference berween the pulse radio frequency
15:43:0420  perve 1oot blocks in October of 2006, what conclusion might you 15:45:5120  that Du, Arita did-and & shizotomy, right?
15:43:0921  reach from thal particular fact? 15:46:0321 A You know, the rhizotomy is going to be o radio
15:43:1122 A | doni know. That's the problem. [ don't think 1can 15:46:1022  frequency ablation, and so a rhizotorsy can be a pulsed rhizotomy
15:43:1623  make one. 15:46:1623  or & continpous hear thizotormy. | mean, your quéstion deesn't
15:43:1724 Q  Well, would it be 1he tack of response by the procedure 15:46:2124  really make sense to me in 1erms of the difference between the
15:43:2225  done by Dr. Arite? There was a response, and a positive - 15:46:2525  two. They're sill rhizotomies. -

Page 55 Page 57
15:43:25 1 response, wasn't there? ' st ey 15;46:27°1 Q  Well, if Mr. Rossler testified that the pulse dio
15:43:2% 2 . A Well, that's whal's reportelf; but Ithink'its =7 swin o= [15:46:33 2 . frequency procedure that he performed he expected 16 normally™ * -
15:43:30 3 inconsistent, you know. 1 mean, from the pattern of pain that 15:46:37 3 fast for two 10 three months, would you disagree with that or
15:43:32 4 he described, the response thal was the response, it confuses 15:46:41 4 have some question aboul what procedure he actually perforred?
15:43:36 5  me. It doesn't make sense. The MRI being normal and havingno | 15:46:45 5 A No, I'm not disagreeing. What I'm saying 5 if you
15:43:41 6 compression of any nerves. 1 mean, you're blocking a nerve that 15:46:48 6 Jook al the litefature, and you look at the procedure ilself,
15:43:44 7 you assume is being compressed somewhere, and the MR is not 15:46:52 7 the expected results are going to be 5iX to twelve months is
15:43:48 B8 showing any compression amywhere, so it's — why is it getting 15:46:56 & what youTe hoping for, espacialty when you're performing those
15:43:50 9 better? You just don't know. 15:47:00 9 procedures. W Dr. Rossler -
15:43:5%210 Q Dr. Asita also did on ar Jeast two occasiops a pulse 15:47:0010 G And -~
15:43:58 11  sadio frequercy in the end of 2006, spring of 2007; do you 15:47:0311 A Tmsomy. )apologize §f Dr, Rossler felt it only !
15:44:0212  recall that? 15:47:0712  lasted for three months, maybe that's his experience. Tm just '
15:44:0213 A Yes 15:47:1013  going by what the literature shows.
15:44:03 14 Q And Mr. Simao reporied a emporary reduction of pain 15:47:1314 Q In your repon that is Addendum No, |, Exhibit 7, you ;f
15:44:1115  for several months from each procedure; is that your 15:47:2715  say that "there is a possibility of a placebo effect with all
15:44:1416  understanding? 15:47:3216  injections and a bias by the performing injectionist who }
15:44:1417 A From the records, yes. 15:47:3817  eventually performs surgical spine swgery." Do you recall i
15:44:1618 Q  Well, given those, why would you say that it was a lack 15:47:4318  writing that? .
15:44:2419  of response by the procedures done by Dr. Arita? 15:47:4419 A Yes, ‘|
15:44:28 20 A MaybeI just wasn't making myself clear, There was 2 15:47:44 20 Q s that still your opinion teday? 7,
15:44:3221  lack of any long term response, any clinically significant 15:47:46 21 A Well, ) mecan, 1think Dr. Arita put it very eloquently ,'
15:44:3622  response. And, you know, Mr. Simao is saying that he's better 15:47:5022  in his deposition, and he said that, you know, if you'r¢ going 1
15:44:38 23 for a couple of months, but he's stifl not improved. He never 15:47:54 23 to be doing a surgery, you mey want an independent person .
15:44:4324  made progressive improvement, And an MRU that actually shows | 15:47:58 24 performing the injections 5o that they're not biased, because if !
15:44:4725% 15:48:0125  you know that youTe going to be doing the surgery at thai sile, l'

= — - 4
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Page 58 Page 60
15:498:04 1 and you're hoping 10 get some kind of positive response so you 15:51+15 ] A 1dontknow. T'm just bringing it up.
15:48:09 2 can perform the suigery, there is a maybe unconscious bias that 15:51:18 2 Q  You write one semence Jater that "Dr, McNulty chose to
15:48:14 3 ¢on happen in that cose. 15:51:24 3 perform o surgery with very limited chance of success.” Is that
15:48:15 4 Q 5o do you believe that there is a bias by Dr. MeNulty 15:531:29 4 alsoaresult of the bias that you discuss?
15:48:23 & resuiting in him either ignoring a placebo effect or ¢reating 15:51:34 5 A ldontknow. Its hard 1o know. 1 mean, that's the
15:48:38 6  ouwt of cold cloth the need for tie surgery that he performed? 15:51:36 &  confusing part with the case. 1 mean, Dr. McNulty had a normal
15:48:42 7 MR, STEPHENS; Objection. Compound. Go ahead, Doctor. | 15:51:41 7 appearing MR, and he obviously had the patient in his ofTice,
15:48:495 8 THE WITNESS: Yeah, you're going 10 have 1o rephrase it. 15:51:44 8 and he was Uying to do something proactive for him. 1just
15:48:49 9 BY MR WALL: 19:51:47 3 don’ think you're going 10 have success with that kind of
15:48:4910 Q Is it your opinion to a reasonable degree of medical 15:51:5118  surgery. And low and behold, you didnt. He didn't pet any
15:48:5311  probability that Dr, McNulty was biesed and performed a surgery | 15:51:5611  better, especially when he's complaining of these migraine
15:49:0012  that wasoh medically necessary? 15:91:5912  headaches. That's really where his complaint was. He didnit
15:49:0413 MR. STEPHENS: Again, compound, (o ahead. 15:51:5913  really have a pattern of neck pain complaints.
15;49:0614 THE WITNESS: You're going Lo have 1o be more specific. 15:52:01 14 You know, again, we go back to the original thing thar
15:49:1115  He's done many procedures. Which procedure are you talking 15:52:0415  you had said to me earlier which is that if everything afler May
15:49:1416  about? 15:52:0816  of 2005 is not related 10 the accident, then why am [ even
15:49:1417 BY MR WALL: 15:52:1317  giving an opinion anyway? And my response is exacty as before,
15:49:1418 Q Allright. The one you wrote about when you said, 15:52:1518  becanse 1 knew you were going to ask me aboul it.
15:49:1715  "There's a bias by the performing injectionist,” 1ell me that 15:52:18189 Q Do you believe (hat choosing to perform a surgery with
15:49:2120  bias that Dr. McNulty had 10 a reasonable degree of medical 15:52:24 20  alimited chance of success is below the sandard of care?
15:49:2521  probability? 15:52:2921 A 1think Fve already told you that I've not got an
15:49:2522 = A Well, now | got 10 back up. Which pracedure was | 15:52:3222  opinion on that. 1 was not asked w review the standard of
15:49:2923  talking abowl because he had performed mulliple procedures? Are | 15:52:3523  care. -~
15:45:3224  we talking about the discogram? Are we tatking sbout the 15:52:35 24 Q Do you believe tha: youre qualified to give an opinion
15:49:3525  surgery? What exactly are we lafking about? 19:92:382%  on e necessity of spine surpery?

Page 59 Page 61
15:48%9:39 1 Q  Youwrote: "The lack of response by the procedures 15:52:42 1 A Yes, " "

'#|:15:49:40-2: . -done by Dr. Arita calls imo quesiion why the injections done by | 15:52: 4242 - QMG sothan a spine surgean? * "=« + -
15:49:45 3 the spine surgeon, Dr. McNulty, were more successful. Thereis [ 15:52:46 3 A Idon't know if more so, but I'm qualified to give an
15:49:50 4 & possibility ofa placebo effect with all injections and a bias 15:52:51 4 opinion becouse 1 see a lot of paticnts that come through mry
15:49:54 5 by the performing injectionist who eventually performed cervical | 15:52:55 5 door who either hed surgery, will have surgery, need surgery,
15:50:00 &  spine surgery.” Does thal give you the cantex1? 15:52:59 6  want surgery, don wanl surgery, or w¢ not candidates for
15:50:05 7 A Maybe, bul now ask your question again? I'm not sure 15:53:01 7 surgery, and 1 make Lhay decision cvery day.

15:50:09 8  what we're 1alking about. 15:53:03 8 Q Now, your onginal repont Latked about myofascial pain?
15:;50:10 9 Q Explain to me the bips thal you se¢, (o & reasonable 15:53:09 9 A Right.

15:50:1410  degree of medical probability, from Dy, McNuity? 15:53:1010 Q Define that for me?

15:50:1711 A Tthought 1 just did. Isaid that, you know, when 15:53:1311 A Well, I mean, tha's just il. You're describing a
15:50:2012  youTre expecting a specific resull, that you have an expectation 15:53:1712  muscle in the comnective lissue surrounding the muscle or where
15:50:2612  inyour mind that this is where I'm going Lo be performing 15:53:2313  the musele connects as the source of the pain.

15:50:3014  surgery, so | hope this is where it works in terms of the pain, 15:53:2314 Q Doyou-—

15:50:3315  sothere's a possibility of a bins. That's what Fm saying. 15:53:2615 A ] hate1o cul you off. So we only have fifleen more
15:50:3916  You know, I'm bringing that up, 15:53:3016  minutes. | mean, F know we started s liltle bit late, but we're
15:50:4211 Q@ Well, is it your opinion 10 a reasonable degree of 15:53:3317  sticking 1o rwo hours?

15:50:4418  medical probability, based on everything you've reviewed inthis | 15:53:3513 Q Mpyofascial pain doesn't appear in your No. | and
15:50:4819  case, that there was a bias on the part of Dr. McNulty when he 15:53:4219  No. 4 Addendum. Is that a change in your opinion?
15:50:5520  performed that surgery? 15:53:4620 A What do you mean "doesn't appear”, appear where?
1%5:50:5621 A Well, 1 think based on my statement, that's what I 15:53:5121 Q I doesn't appear in your two subsequent reporis as
15:50:5922  said, that there's a possibility of a bias. 15:53:5522  being one of your opinions as 1o what Mr. Simao suffered from.
15:51:0223 Q And you described it previously as — 1 don't remember 15:54:0323 Do you believe now that he suffered ~ well, what is your
15:51:0624  ifyou said "unconscious” of “subccnscious”, but do you believe | 15:54:0424  opinion today?

15:51:1025  that it's a conscious bias on the pant of Dr. MeNulty or noi? 15:54:0625

A Well, as I said before, | thought it was — I believe

e A
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Page 62 Page 64
15:54:11 1 in medical probability that it's a non-specific myofascial pain. |15:57:02 1 Dr. Grover, not Dr. Kabins.
15:54:19 2 It's just ~ we don't know where it's coming from and that — 15:57:05 2 Q Did you sec in a surveillance video in 2008 any
15:54:19 3 Q Isthat— 15:57:08 3 indication of pain in Mr. Simao's neck on the lefl side or in
15:54:20 4 A Say that again? 15:57:12 4 his left shoulder?
15:54:21 5 Q s that non-specific myofascial pain from his 15:5%:13 5 A No
15:54:25 6 migraines? 15:57:13 6 Q NMever saw him wincing from pain from his left shoulder
15:54:26 7 A Well, 1 don't know. Ii's not quite clear. You know, 15:57:21 17 area?
15:54;28 8  that's the problem. It's possible, in my mind, that it's coming [ 15:57:22 8 A No.
15:54:33 9 from his migraines, his pre-existing migraines. It's not quile | 15:57:23 8 Q During the same period in lime, that 2008, in youwr
15:54:3710  cleay where his pain's coming from, and ] think thar's the 15:57:2910  original repont you were ¢laiming that Mr. Simao had a variety
15:54:4111  issuc. You know, you've got questions from his treating 15:57:3411  of symploms thal werenil relnted to the motor vehicle accident,
15:54:4312  providers, two of them, that call into question whetherornot | 15:57:3812  like myofascial pain, degenermtive cervical spine disease, lefi
15:54:4613  these are legitimate complaints so, you know, I'm not really 15:57:4313  shoulder subacromial bursitis, and migraines; is thal right?
15:54:4514  sure where the pain is coming from. It doesn't make sense. 15:57:4814 A That's what ] authored at the time, yes.
15:54:5215 But looking a1 the records from the initial six months, 15:57:5115 Q So has your opinion changed on those?
15:54:5416  ir's not a neck pain issuc. Any reatment for his neck, any 15:37:5516 A Well, now that I've gat 1o sce a better picture of the
15:54:5917  surpery, any injections, it’s not from the car accident. 15:57:5%17  records and have a more broader scope of what's been going on
15:55:0218 Q What about his shoulder or trapezius? 15:58:0418  since Y've been preparing for this deposition, yeah, i's
15:55:0518% A Agam, | don’t think it's coming from the car accident. 15:56:0819  obviously changed. 1 mean, he has multiple pain complaints.
15:55:0820 | mean, he was complaining -- he wasn't really complainingof | 15:58:08 20 1t's not quite clear where it's coming from, and none of these
15:55:1121  that component al the time of the accident, and ] just don't 15:58:1221  are related 1o the motor vehicle accident,
15:55:1622  feel its related 1o the accident, and ] donh believe in 15:58:1322 Q Is your opinion on the subacromial bursitis being the -
15:55:1923  medical probability that it is. 15:58:1823  cause of his left shoulder pain, have you abandoned that
15:55:2124 Q  And you believe that — wel), is it your opinion that 15:58:2224  conclusion?
15:55:2525  he suffers from jeft shoulder or rapezial pain? 15:358:2325 A Well, | mean, I'm trying lo come up with & reason for -
Page 63 Page 65
15:55:31 1 A Well, again, 1 think tha's'the problem. I'mnotswe - | 15:58:26 1 him 1o have the symptoms, bui 1 donihink ir's quite cleas, = *
15:55:33 2 what he suffers from. IVs not quite clear>"No one's beenable  ~ | 15:58:29 2 You know, | mean, what he displays on the videos. what he's a7 % e - 47
15:55:37 3 1o charify the actual pain generating source, 50 it's not clear. 15:58:34 3 sayingto his providers, it's just not clear, so 1 was trying 1o
15:55:43 4 Q  You wrole in your repon — in fact, your initzal 15:58:34 4 come up with a diagnosis that makes sense.
15:55:46 5 report, you refer 1o or reviewed surveillance video from, 1 15:58:38 5 But, you know, relaied to the motor vehicle acciden:
15:55:52 6 think, 2008; is that right? 15:58:41 6  itself, ) don't think he had any of these symptoms — or any of
15:55:59 7 A Yeah. Youknow, whatl find interesting is that we 15:58:46 7  these diagnoses. Excuse me.
15:55:56 8 havewn't brought that up, but he saw Dr. Kabins around that 15:58:48 8 Q My question was have you abandoned or rexcesied fiom
15:56:00 9 limeframe, and Dr. Kabins was saying that he was at his witsend | 15:58:5% % your coaclusion in your original repon thal he sufTeted from
15:56:0410  interms of his pain, and yel on these video surveillance you 15:59:0010  subacromial bursitis in his left shoulder?
19:56:0611  set him moving his neck around with no pain behaviors 15:59:0311 A Well, he moy, so [ don't know if 've ebandoned i1, He
15:56:3012  whatsoever. Ii's a very inconsistem appearance based on the 15:59:0612  may, but it's not related 10 the motor vehicle accident.
15:56:1413  surveillance and based on what Dr. Kabins is noting. 15:59:0813 Q Do you believe or do you agree that there are
15:56:1814 Q  Mine is just 6 yes or no question. By the way, 1 don't 15:59:1114  degeneralive changes in Mr. Simac’s cervical spine?
15:56:2115  think he ever saw Kabins, bul if you want ta produce a record 15:59:1516 A Well, again, 1 think before ) actually had a chance 1o
15:96:2316  for me, I'd appreciate that. 15:59:15%16  see the repons — 1 mean, Dr. Arita didn't really get a chance
15:56:2517 A Oh, it wasn't Kabins? Maybe it was Grover. ] 15:59:2217 10 see the films. He only weni by reports. And now that I've
15:56:2919  apologize. 15:59:2618  actually seen the films, I disagree with that. 1 don? think he
15:56:3019 Q  The swveiltance video, did you see any indication in 15:59:2919%  has degencrative changes. In fact, in 2008 of August, the MR)
15:56:3320  the surveillance video of any pain Mr. Simso suffered in his 15:59:3420  wesrteporied as normal, 50 there arén'l any degenerative
15:56:3721  neck or left shoulder? 15:59:3721  changes.
15:56:5022 A It was Dr. Grover, not Dr, Kabins, 1 apologize. 15:59:3922 Q Soyou've reviewed 1he films, the MRI's from March of
15:56:5423 Q  Did you hear my next question? 15:59:4423 2006, September of 2007, and 1 want 10 say November of 2008, but
15:56:5824 A No. 1 was trying to figure owl which surgeon I had 15:59:502d  TI'mnot sure of the exnct date, and it's your lestimony to a
15:57:0025  talked about, and | misspoke, and I apologize, Ti was 15:99:5425  reasonable degree of medical probability that they do not show
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15:59:57 1 any degencrative chﬁngs in his cervical spine? 16:03:03 1 EXAMMNATION
16:00:01 2 A Correct. There's an authored repon on the very first 16:03:03 2 BY MR, STEPHENS:
16:00:05 3 filtn that there may be o change at the C2-3 level, but on the 16:03:06 3 Q Hello, Doc. Tve ot a few.
16:00:09 4 subsequent MRI's you ean see that that actually improved, so it 16:03:09 4 A Oh, great,
16:00:13 5 may be the technique of the MRI, a larger magnet. Bui the 16:03:14 5 Q Dr. Seibe) — I may be -
16:00:17 &  Novemnber — or whatever the 2008 film ~ ] thought it was 16:03:23 6 MR. STEPHENS: Court Reporter, 1 may be mispronouncing it,
16:00:20 7 August, but if ir's November of 2008, the film is normal, There 16:03:26 7  Seibel. §believe it's §-i--b-e-) — scratch that,
16:00:25 § is no degenerative change, so it may just be an incidental image 16:03:35 8 S-teibe-),
16:00:32 ®  variance on that first MR), 16:03:38 & THE COURT REPORTER: Thank you.
16:00:3610 Q  Soyou disagree with any physician who has reviewed 16:03:3910 BY MR. STEPHENS:
16:00:4111  that and delermined that there were degeneraljve changes in his 16:03:3911 Q  Solers start with the question, Dr. Seibef testified
16:00:4712  cervical spine? 16:03:4412  thatin his opinion 50 percent relief from a diagnostic
16:00:49813 A 1don'tknow if'l disagree. My opinion is that there 16:03:5213  injeclion is not positive. Do vou agres with tha1?
16:00:52 14  aren't any degenerative changes. 1T that's in disagreement, | 16:03:5714 A Thals a fair slatement,
16:00:5315  guess, but I'm just telfing you what [ see personally. 16:03:5915 Q Okay. And you testified earlier in your deposition
16:00:571% Q Allright. Are you awaie of any record or any evidence 16:04:0616  that you reccived films a week or two ago that in fact are cited
16:01:0017  tha Mr, Simao suffered any cervical or neck pain prior to 16:04:14 17 inyour July 13, 2010 veport. If you iook on Page 2 of thar
16:01:0538  April 15th, 20057 16:04:2418  July 2010 repon —
16:01:07139 A Jusi from the reports of what he said to his providers. 16:04:2719 A Okay. ‘
16:01:1420  1don't think there's a record thal | had been able Lo review. 16:04:2720 Q - he first line reads, "Imaging and work up which |
16:01:18 21 (  Are you siying that he reported Lo a provider that he 16:04:3221  have personally reviewed the images.”
16:01:2122  had lef shoulder or neck pain prior to the accident? 16:04:3522 ‘A Okay.
16:01:2423 A Well, he had thal motorcycle accident, and he had a 16:04:3523 Q Now, did you review those images when preparing this
16:01:2724  history of migraines, so he may have said to his providers that 16:04:4224  July 2010 repon?
) 16:01:3025  he may have had some symptoms in the shoulder, but 1 donithave | 16:04:43 25 A Yes. . . I
Page 67 Page 69
i 16:01:33 3°  aspecific retond. - e 16:04:44 1 Q Okay. ) want 16 walk through'the bases fos your
c e be | 16:0143F¥2° - Q  Areyou oware.of anmy compluint that Mr. Simao made 10 v 116:09:5712 'opinio:'rs. LR I T e e LR
16:01:40 3 any medical provider indicating thal he had lefl shoulder or 16:04:58 3 A Hey, you know wha, you look older on video,
16:01:43 4 neck pain prior to Apri) 15th, 20057 16:05:03 4 Q You wanl 10 see the other guy instead?
16:01:49 5 A Not ofthand. 16:05:05 5 A Yeah
16:01:50 6 Q Do you fleef that ir's appropriate for a patiem 10 16:05:06 6 Q  Allright. Do the diagnostic films show evidence of
16:02:02 7 f(ollow 2 doctor's advice? 16:05:14 7 neck trauma?
16:02:03 B A Weli, thar's what it is, it's a doctor's advice. If's 16:05:149 8 A No,
16:02:07 ¢ arecommendation, and 1 think it's imporant for a patient lo 16:05:15 9 Q Canthe MR findings be characterized as normmal given
16:02:1110  understand what these recommendations are and make an informed | 16:05:22 10  the plaintiffs age?
16:02:1511  decision. 16:05:2311 A Yes.
16:02:1512 Q Are you aware of any evidence of Mr. Simao during the 16:05:2412 Q  You were asked just a few momenis ago by Mr. Wall
16:02:1913  course of his beatment being nonéompliani? 16:05:2913  whether there were any degenerative findings in the
16:02:2414 A Noncompliant in whal way? 16:05:3514  MRT's. Would itbe fair to say thal those MRI's show age
16:02:2915 Q  With his docior's advice? 16:05:4015  appropriate degencration for the plaintifI?
16:02:3216 A Well, you know, the doctors may recommend cenain 16:05:44 16 A They may be age appropriate, bul if you look atl
16:02:3717  things, and he may not have followed them. 1 don't know how 1o 16:05:4817  subsequent films, you're sceing a more normal picrare. So the
16:02:4018  pnswer that question, 16:05:5218  reason why I'm saying there'’s no degeneration is because by
16:02:4119 '  Well, are you aware of any infiances where he was 16:03:5619  definition, cach film should pel worse and worse and worse or
16:02:4520  noncompliant? 16:06:0020  degenerated, and the fact that you're seeing u normal appearing
16:02:462] A 1don't think there’s evidence of him being 16:06:0421  MRI 1wo years after the accideni, in iy mind, looking at the
16:02:5022  noncompliant, bul there may be recomumendations thal he did not 16:06:0022  entire thing, well, it might make a change on the first film in |
16:02:5223  [ollow. In your sirict definition of noncompliant, it may be 16:06:1223  terms of a degenerative appearance - it’s not what you're
16:03:0024  noncompliant. 16:06:1724  secing. Jtshould be consistenl all through, That's why | was
16:03:0325 MR. WALL: 1don't have amy other questions. 16;:

06:2125  saying thai there's really no evidence of degeneration on these
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Page 70 Page 12
16:06:24 1 films. 16:09:59 1 BY MR. STEFHENS:
16:06:25 2 Q2 Well, there is a comment by the radiologist relating 1o 16:09:59 2 Q Okay. Let me jusi ger through a couple of more points.
16:06:22 3 C34 facet hypertophy. Is thal a raumatically induced 16:10:02 3 What time is it right now?
16:06:40 4  condition or a product of a degenerative process? 16:10:04 4 A Its4:10. We could probably sucker through another
16:06:43 5 A ‘Well it's not in & raumatic condition, but you may 16:10:08 5 couple of minutes.
16:06:50" 6 have a large of hypertrophied facet because that may be 16:10:09 & Q Okay. Then I'll move fast. Did the neck injections
16:06:55 7 gengtically how thal facet swarled (o develop. 1t may not be a 16:10:15 7 reveal traumatic injury?
16:07:00 8 degenerative process. It could just be a larger facet. 16:10:17 ® A No, notalall.
16:07:04 9 Q Okay. Are there any findings in any of the MRTs oc 16:10:22 9 Q Did the neck injections revenl a cause of the symploms?
16:07:1510  CT scans or X-rays that, lo a medical probability, result only 16:10:2%10 A No.
16:07:2111  from a single trawmatic event like a car acciden? 16:10:3011 Q s there a concem in the medical field abpwn a surgeon
16:07:2512 A No 16:10:3712  doing neck injections and making surgical decisians on the
16:07:2513 Q In your medical opinion, would plaintifl's complaints 16:10:4113  injections?
16:07:4014  to his provider be cansistent with traumatie injuwry 1o the 16:10:4114 A Tdont know if it's in the medical -- well_1don't
16:07:4415  cervical spine? 16:10:4491%  know how 1o answer that question. [ just think that it's
16:07:4616 A HNo 16:10:4816  definitely a concern when you're performing injections 1o find a
16:07:4617 Q Now, you commenied a few times in today’s deposilion 16:10:5117  resull when you're going to be doing surgery on that result.
16:07:5218  abput your work ai the emergency room ot UCLA. Do theyhaven | 16:10:5618 @ Isit medically probable that the plaintiffs
16:07:5919  Level | bauma center there? 16:10:5919%  pre-existing migraines were eggravaied by the aceident?
16:008:0]1 29 A Yes. 16:11:0220 A Idont think so. The evidence doesn't seem to show
16:08:0121 Q Do you work in thal rauma center? . 16:11:0621  that. I}hink it's just his pre-existing migraines. There's a
16:08:04 22 A Twnol in the bauma center, bul Pve been asked 10 16:13:1022  normal MRE. There's no evidence of a CT scan showing any
16:08:0923  evaluate patients who come through the rawna center, and Thave | 16:11:1323  trauma. There was maybe a little bruising - or I'm sormy — 2
16;08:1324  on occasion been asked 1o ¢voluate a patient who's in the rauma 16:11:1724  litthe pain in the back of his oeeipur, but there does nat
16:00:1625 roomar the ER - 16:11:2225  appear to be a laceration or a contra coup injury, so ] dom
Page 71 Page 73
16:08:20°1 Q Okay. Where, other than UCLA, have you worked ina ~ [-16:11:29 1 see haw the migrajnes would have betn worsened by the accidént’
'16:08:25 2 irauma center?- - ‘e o o 16:11:31 2 Q Okay. Next, ke the vchiclk photos o ofthe’ -+ *
16:08:26 3 A Jobns Hopkins and the U.S, military as an officer at 16:11:3% 3 equation altogether, does il change your opinion in any way
16:08:30 4 the Army, U.S. Army. 16:11:3%9 4 aboul the plaimifT's condition?
16:08:33 5 Q Did you treat traumalically induced neck injuries in 16:11:40 5 A No, ub-uh.
16:08:40 6  ihe trauma centers where you've worked? 16:11:43 6 Q Al right. Now, nexy, you were asked questions about
16:08:42 7 A Yeah 1was stationed at the M.A.S.H during the Iraz 16:11:47 7 the discogram, and the plaintiffs average report of pain was
16:00:46 8 --I'm sorry -- not the lrag. 'm glad I'm nol there — in the 16:11:55 8 seven of ten, yel at the discogram the reproduction was logged
16:08:52 9  Bosnian conflict in '96. | was sintioned in the forward 16:12:00 9 asoncoften s that concordant?
16:08:5610 M.A.S.H. component, and we had a lot of injuries that had 16:22:0410 A Well, you know, pbviousty, you have 1o ask the patient,
16:08:5911  occurred from treuma ranging anywhere — believe i or not - 16:12:08 1)  "ls this like your normal everyday pain?” | actually use the
16:09:0312  from basketball injurics to shell injuries, so there was a wide 16:12:1212  word "concordant” because | want to make sure that thar's what
16:09:0713  range of traumatic svents that happened in this M.A S H.. 16:12:1613  we'e relying on in saying thel that's your concordant and
16:09:1214 Q Okay. And in your experience treating traumatically 16:12:2014  equivocal pain. So I'm nol so concemed about the numbers, but
16:09:1715  induced cervical injuries, you've observed or reached the 16:12:2315  it's hard for me 1o say that the numbers one, three, seven,_ or
16:09:2016  opinions that the plaimifPs clinical presentation doesn't 16:12:2716  [ive, whether or not il's concordant. Ii's really asking them,
16:09:2417  match a trauma presentation? 16:12:2%17  *Hey, is this like your normal pain in terms of the pattemn of
16:09:2718 A Comect 16:12:3418  where it goes and where it penerates?”
16:09:2719 Q Okay. 16:12:3519 Q Allright. You mentioned easlier that you prepared a
16:0%:2620 A Hey, we got 10 go. 16:12;4020  supplemental report — | haven yet seen it -- on a Hartman
16:09;3921 Q Okay. Just give me one minute, Doctor. I} go fast. 16:12:4723  repon. 1belicve you said it was dated sometime in 2010, .
16:09:5222 MR. STEPHENS: Court repori¢r, did he leave or go to the 16:12:5122  There's been a more recent repont. ' Will you prepare a reply to
16:09:5523  restroom? 16:12:5623  her most recent supplemental repom?
16:09:5624 THE WITNESS: There's another meeting here at 4:00, sowe | 16:12:59 24 A Are you asking me?
16:09:5925  got logo. 16:13:0025

Q 1am now, .
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Page 74 Page 76,
16:33:02 1 A Yes, I'd be happy 1o, 16116:02 1 cximtime.
16:13:04 2 Q  And if the plaintiffs produce records additional 16:16:03 2 THE WITNESS: No problem i
16:12:10 3 injections or wiy oder treatment, will you prepare a reply to 16:16:58 3 MR. STEPHENS: Mr. Court Reporter, do you have my i
16:13:13 4 that reatment? 16:16:56 4 information? 1
16:13:14 5 A Yes 16:16:58 S THE COURT REPORTER: Yes. 1got il off the caption from nty |
16:13:14 6 Q Ckey. Now, finally, the plaimiff tesiified he's been 16:16:58 G office, ;
16:13:22 7 referred to 2 hand specialist who dingnosed carpal tunnel 16:16:59 7 MR, STEPHENS: ] wani a copy with E-trans. ‘
16:13:26 8 syndrome, and he's been referred (o a shoulder specialist. Have | 16:18:41 8 {Discussion was held off the record,) i
16:13:33 9 youbeen supplied with any of those records? 16:18:41 9 MR. WALL: Oksy. Well stipulate to the doctor waiving, '
16:13:3510 A This is the first I've heard of it. 16:18:4710  sighatare. :
16:13:391) Q Allright. All of your opinions that you and | have 16:18:5011 MR. STEPHENS: That's line.
16:13:4212  discussed have been given 1o a reasonable degree of medical 16:18:5012 {Plaimilfs Exhibil 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and § were '
16:13:4613  probability; comect? 16:18:5013  marked for identification by the Cenified Shonthand Reporter, a
16:13:4614 A Yes 16:18:5014  copy of which is artached hereto.) .
16:13:4615 Q Thank you, sir. 16:18:501% (Whereupon, the deposilion of DAVID E, FISH, M.D. .
16:13:48616 16 concluded at 4:18 p.m.) .
16:13:4617 FURTHER EXAMMATION 17 (Declaralion under penalty of perjury on the
16:13:4618 BY MR, WALL: 18 following page hereof.}
16:13:49189 Q Doctor, just a follow-up. | need aboul 60 seconds of 19
16:13:5220  yourtime. Let me just kind of campartmematize this. You 20
16:13:5721  believe that the only pain that Mr, Simao suffered post-accident 21
16:14:0322 . let's even say after June or July of 2005 — is (fie same 22
16:14:1023  migraines that he had before the accident? 23
16:14:1424 A Dascd on the pattern of that pain, | would sny yes. 24
16:24:1925 Q  And 50 there is no pain generator gt C3-4 or C4-5 in 25 :

Page 15 Page 77}
16:314:27 1 your opinioa? -1 : Tt
16:14:28 2 A Cormrect, : - v v 2 ! ; one v
16:14:28 3 Q And the aulo accident didn even exaggerate or 3
16:14:36 4 exacerbaie his migraine pain passed maybe two months; is that 4
16:134:41 5  yourtestimony? 5
16:14:42 6 A 1dont know il 1 would say two months, bul, you know, 6 1 do solemnly dectare under penalty of perjury that the
1631455 7 from May 261h, 2005, was the last time he wag seen until 7 foregoing is my deposition under oath;, that these are the
16:15:01 8 October, | mean, that's five months. 1t wouldn't be anything 8  questions asked of me and my answers thereto; that I have read
16:15:07 9 — you know, he didn't have any other problems at that point 9 same and have made the necessary comections, additions, or
16:15:1210  related lo any headaches, 5o yeah, | don't think it caused 10  changes to my answers thal | deemn necessary,
16:15:1511  anything. 11 In witness thereod, I herebry subscribe my name
16:15:1612 Q And he doesn't have any cervical condition Ihat should 12 this day of .20
16:15:2013  be causing him pain? 13
16:1%:2214 A Wel), again, 1 think we discussed that, 1 mean, if's a 14
16:15:2515  normal MRJ. They're not sure where the pain's coming from. 15
16:15:2916  I'sjust not clear, you know. 16 DAVID E. FISH, M.D.
16:15:3217 Q) So the answes is there is no ohjective reason for him 17
16:15:3918 1o be having pain? 18
16:15:4019 A 1don' sce any objeclive evidence. The injections 19
16:15:4320  don\ seem to be helping him, and the surgery didn't help, and 20
16:15:4621  the MRI was normal, so | don't see an objective component of 21
16:15:5022  where the pain is coming from  There's no pain generator 22
16:15:5323  that's been determined at this point. 23
16:15:5824 Q Okay. That's all | have. 24
16:15:5925 25

g g g~y g Ay G ———

MR. STEPHENS: All right, Doc. Thanks for giving us the

T~ e ———PE——— —
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300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Phone (702) 383-3400

Fax (702) 384-1460

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and g CASENOQ. A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individuaily, and as
husband and wife, ) DEPT.NQO X
)
Plaintiff, )
)
V. )]
)
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH; )
DOES I -V; and ROE CORPORATIONS I-V, )
inclusive, )
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Defendants. )
)

DEFENDANT JENNY RISH'’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFE’'S

MOTION TO EXCLUDE SUB ROSA VIDECQ
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Carvalho & Mitchell, and hereby submits this Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Exclude Sub Rosa
Video. -
DATED this Egl' day of February, 2011.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO &
MITCHELL

STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 5755

300 South Fourth SireetSuite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITY
I. Statement of Facts

This personal injury action arises out of a MV A that occurred April 15, 2005, Defendant Jenny
Rish rear-ended a vehicle driven by Plaintiff William Simao. Plaintiff alleges personal injuries asa
result, and ultimately had neck surgery which he relates to the accident.

During discovery, Defendant obtained sub rosa surveillance of Plaintiff. The surveillance was
timely produced in Defendant’s First Supplemental Early Case Conference Production, on September
38,2008, and the NRCP 16.1{a)(3) disclosure. The surveillance is logically probative of the Plaintiff’s
alleged injuries. Defendant’s medical experts incorporated the surveillance into their analysis,
establishing the video’s medical relevance. The law does not support Plaintiff’s motion to exclude,

1I. Law and Argument

A. Surveillance Video is Admissible To Assist the Jury in Assessing the Plaintiffs Claims

Courts have long held that sub rosa videos are admissible to assist the trier of fact in assessing
Plaintiff’s alleged injuries. Courts also routinely admit sub rosa videos for impeachment. The rules
of evidence “generally favor the admissibility of evidence which is logically probative of a material
fact.” Shusherebav. R.B. Industries, Inc., 104 F R.D. 524, 532 (Penn., 1985). Because the rules of
evidence favor admussibility, “the validity of surveillance movies as evidence at a irial is well-settled.”

Muathius v. Baltimore & O. R. Co., 93 1ll. App.2d 258, 263 (1968).

Page 2 of 5
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First, the videos are “highly relevant” to assessing the plaintiff alleged injuries. Elgelhoffv.
Holt, 875 S.W.2d 543, 550 (1994). In fact, this evidence is the “next best thing to allowing the jury
to personally observe [the plaintiff’s] movements at a time when she was not aware she was being
observed.” Id Such evidence is “highly probative” of a material fact: the plaintiff’s alleged injuries.
Shushereba, at 532.

Further, sub rosa video is often necessary where the medical evidence is conflicting, In
Mathias, the plaintiff’s treating physicians and the defendant’s experts disagreed regarding the

plaintiff’s ability to return to work. The plaintiff claimed inability to be around moving machinery.

The video, which showed plaintiff mowing his 4 acre lawn, refuted this. In light of such conflict, the '

trial “court erred in not allowing the motion pictures to be shown.” Id., at 263. The jury could rely
on the video to assess Plaintiffs credibility and the opinions of plaintiff’s treating physicians.

In this case, on 05/06/08, Jaswinder Grover, M.D. reported that the Plaintiff’s neck pain is
“severe and intolerable.” On06/17/08, Dr. Grover reported that Plaintiff Mr. Simao was “at wits end”
due to his neck and lefi shoulder pain. On 07/09/08, Dr. Rosler reported that the Plaintiff has had “no
significant improvement ofhis cervical symptomatology with ongoing neck and interscapular pain that
is radiating into his left arm,” The surveillance video was taken on 07/18/08. It depicts the Plaintiff
lifting heavy machinery and changing a tire on his truck. On 08/28/08, Dr, Rosler reported “Ongoing
severe intractable neck pain, interscapular pain, and periscapular pain.” On 09/02/08, Dr. Grover
again reported that the Plaintiff “is at wits end” and is a cervical fusion candidate.

The surveillance video is logically probative of the Plaintiff’s reports of pain to his medical
providers. It is medically probative of the Plaintiff’s providers’ decision-making, based on the
Plajntiff’s reports of pain.

Plaintiff is free to repeat to the jury the argumcents set forth in his Motion, i.e., that he never
testified he could not perform these activities, none of his treating physicians instructed him to not
perform these activities, etc. The video itself, however, mects Nevada’s admissibility requirements
because it makes several material facts (the severity of the symptoms, the necessity of surgery, etc.)

more or less likely. The prejudicial value does not substantially outweigh the probative valie.
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B. Surveillance Videos is Admissible Fven if the Plaintiff Did Admit He Could Perform the
Activities Depicted in the Video

First, Plaintiff Mr. Simao did not admit he could perform the activities depicted in the
surveillance. On the contrary, he testificd that he was unable to do many of his normal tasks at work
due to pairll. Accordingly, the video is admissible as impeachment evidence.

Even if the Plaintiff had admitted he could do the activities depicted in the video, the
admissibility of the video is not contingent on his admissions, Sub rosa video is relevant for reasons
beyond impeachment. As discussed above, the surveillance is probative of the extent of the alleged
injuries, compliance or non-compliance with medical recommendations, and the reliability of the
medical opinions, to name only a few. Sub rosa videos can also be used to impeach the plaintiff,

In Marion Countyv. Cavanaugh, 577 So. 2d 599 (Fla., 1991), the trial court excluded sub rosa
surveillance obtained by the defendant. The appellate court reversed, and held that the trial court
abused its discretion in excluding the video. The plaintiff objected to video because the plaintiff
“never testified he could not do any of the activities performed on the tape.” Id. at 600. The plaintiff
argued that he admitted in testimony that he could perform some of the depicted activities. /d Thus,
the Plaintiff argued, the video could not be used for impeachment.

The Marion decision rejected plaintiff’s position. In reversing and remanding for a new trial,
the Court noted the various ways in which this video was admissible: to show the extent of the
plaintiff’s injuries, to show compliance (or non-compliance) with the recommendations of his treating
physicians, and “contrary to {plaintiff’s] argument, impeachment.” Id.

Plaintiff Mr. Simao offers the same arguments presented and rejected in Marion. Mr. Simao
argues the sub rosa video is improper impeachment because it does not discredit his testimony. As
the Marion court established, the video is still admissible for impeachment, as well as probative of
the extent of injury, compliance, and other medical issues.

Further, a defendant is not bound by the Plaintiff’s admissions. In Sreele v. Goosen, 329
S.W.2d. 703, 712 (1959), the plaintiff sought to exclude sub rosa video footage on the same grounds
Plaintifl Mr. Simao offers. In rejecting this claim, the Steele court held that the defendant was not

bound by the plaintiff’s admissions. The defendant could therefore use the evidence he deemed most
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effective, inchading presenting surveillance of the plaintiff’s activities even if the plaintiff admits he
could perform the activities.

Defendant Mrs. Rish is entitled to the present the defense her best, most effective defense.
Even if Plaintiff Mr. Simao chooses to admit that he can perform the activities depicted in the video,
the evidence is admissible because he did not so admit before, and for many other probative reasons
beyond mere impeachment. Steele, supra. Plaintiff’s admissions, therefore, are insufficient to exclude
the video.

II. Conclusion

The surveillance video is admissible. Courts routinely admit such video. lis relevance in
aiding the jury has long been recognized. The Plaintiff has not cited any authority in support of his
proposition that this video is improper impeachment evidence. Mr. Simao further fails to consider its
relevance on matters aside from impeachment. The purpose of trial is to seek the truth. This process

includes admitting the sub rosa videos. Plaintifi’s motion should therefore be denied.

L
DATED this ié: day of February, 2011.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELQ, CARVALHO &
MITCHELL

Iy )
2/ z,é*)

BSTEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ.
Negvada Bar No.-5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Artarneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

M- Rogers\Rish adv. Simac\PleadingsWCpp to MIL Sub Rosa Videod. wpd
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'NEVADA SPINE CLINIC

PATIENT NAME: SIMAO, WILLIAM DOB: 05/08/1963
DOS: 06/17/2008

HESTORY OF PRESENT ILLNESS: William retwns today. He has ongoing neck pain, left
parascapular pain, and suboccipital headaches. Symptoms, which he finds to be intractable and
severe at times.

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION: Clinically, he has Spurling sign positive on the left with left
parascapular spasm and localized tenderness.

RADIOGRAPHS AND TESTING: MRI scan is suggestive of some subtle disc protrusion at
C3-4 and C4-5. Flexion-extension x-rays reveal no gross instability, although there is some
possible subtle subluxation at C4-5.

IMPRESSION: Ongoing neck pain, left parascapular, and suboccipital headache, potentially
related to disc disruption versus facet mediated pathology at C3-4 and C4-5.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The patient is at wit's end with his symptoms. [ would recommend
that he proceed to discography CT scan of the cervical spine to better understand his condition.

The risks of opioid medications were explained to the patient. The patient understands and agrees to use these medications only
as prescribed. The patient agrees to oblain pain medications from this practice only. We have fully discussed the potential side
effects of the medication with the patient, which include but are not limited to, constipation, drowsiness, addiction, impairad
judgment and the risk of fatal overdose if not taken as prescribed. We have wamed the patient that sharing medications is a
felony. We have wamed the patient against driving while taking sedating medications,

\
Jaswinder S. Grover, M.D. 6b = LY
Diplomate, American Board of Orthopaedic Surgery ’\ E ; @
Fellowship Trained Spinal Surgeon /< ) “\ZL:.{D
VAN
M2/B:pm;j/ada

DT: 06/18/2008

7140 Smoke Ranch Rd. Ste. 150, Las Vegas, NV. 89128
10001 S. Eastern Ave, Ste. 208, Henderson, NV. 89052
Ph, (702) 320-8111 Fax: (762) 320-8112
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ,
individually, and CHERYL
ANN SIMAO, individually,
and as husband and wife,

Dept. No. X
Plaintiffs,
Vs,
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH;
LINDA RISH; DOES I through
Vs and ROE CORPORATIONS I
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.
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DEPDSITION OF WILLIAM SIMAO

Taken on Thursday, October 23, 2008
At 1:5CG P.M,

At Rogers, Mastrangeleo, Carvalho & Mitchell
300 Souith Fourth Street
Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada

Reported by: CAMEQ KAYSER, RPR, CCR No. 569

Case No. A539455
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Q. When did you sell it?
A, Probably about six or seven months ago.
1 mean, I do not even know. It is just little
things, I don't know.
Q. Are there any activities that vou used to

do that you can no longer do at all?

A. Yes. S8it in a chair.

Q. Well, when I say not at all, I mean
periocd, because you have sat in a chair today for
gquite a while.

a. Right. I cannot sit still. I have to
keep adjusting to be comfortable, so anything that I
have to sit for a long time is pretty much ocut of
the gquestion.

o. Well, let me bg more specific about the
question. I want to start with activities that you
cannot de¢, period, and then I want to get into a
discussion of activities that you're limited in, bhut
you can still do it.

S0 are there any activities that you used
to de that you cannot do at all?

A, No.

Q. Now let's discuss those activities that
you used to do that you can still do, but that you

have some limitations in. 8itting you have said is

CAMEO KAYSER & ASSOCIATES —~ (702) 655-5092
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one. What else?

A. 1 do not know. I rxeally do not have any
idea. It is a day-by~day thing that I notice.

Q. And can you think of anything that you
have limitations in doing other than sitting for
prolonged periocds of time?

A. Yes. My work. If we have buffers that
we have to run, like a standup buffer that you have
to run with the arms, I cannot run those for as ldng
as 1 used to; carpet cleaning, I cannot do if
anymore. It is mostly what my company does. That
is pretty much my daily activities. I don't know.

Q. S0 you can run the buffer, but not as
long as you used to?

A, Yes.

Q. What is the difference in time? Like you
used to do it for how long and how long do you do it
now?

A. I do not know. I used to do it as long

as I needed, to take more breaks now or I will bring

someone to help me. Time wise, I don't kncow the
difference.
Q. Now, what is the difference between

operating a buffer and carpet cleaning?

A, I can stand up straighter with the

CAMEO KAYSER & ASSOCIATES — (702) 655-50092
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buffer, and I do not have to hunch over with the --
like you do with the carpet cleaner. There is not a
lot of arm movement with the carpet cleaner. You
have to go back and forth constantly with your arms.
With the buffer, you pretty much stand still, and it
does all of the work. That is a big difference.

Q. And you cannot operate the carpet cleaner
machine at all?

A I try my hardest not to. Very, very
seldom. I doubt if I dec a job in a month now. I

knew that much.

Q. Your son does that work now?
a. Yes. He does all of it.
Q. When you go out on a job then, do you

just run the buffer machine?

A. Most of those jobs I do mot go out to. I
only go out when I have to. Most of what I do is
sealing grout.

Q. Have you seen any doctors that we have
not discussed today?

A, I think we discussed a lot of doctors. 1
have no idea.

Q. Are you Seeing any doctors today other
than Rosler and Grover?

A, No.

CAMEQ KAYSER & ASSOCIATES - (702) 655-5032
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4849-4864
4865-4869
4870-4883
4884-4900
4901-4920
4921-4957
4958-4998
4999-5016
5017-5056
5057-5089
5090-5105
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RPLY
STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. be;- b b

Nevada Bar No, 3755

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL CLERK OF THE COURT
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Phone (702) 383-3400

Fax (702) 384-1460

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ, individually and CASENO. AS539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually, and as
hushand and wife, DEPT.NO X

Plamntiff,

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES - V; and ROE CORPORATIONS1-V,
inclusive,

)

)

)

)

)

)

V. )
)

)

)

)

Defendants. )
}

DEFENDANT JENNY RISH'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION IN LIMINE TO
LIMIT THE TESTIMONY OF PLAINTIFF’S TREATING PHYSICIANS

COMES NOW Defendant JENNY RISH, by and through her attorney, STEPHEN H.
ROGERS, ESQ., and hereby submits the following Reply Brief in Support of an Order Limiting the
Testimony of Plaintiff’s Treating Physicians. The Reasons in support of said Reply are contained in
i
W
i
H
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the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, all pleadings and papers on file, as well as
arguments presented at the time of the hearing.

b
DATED this E day of February, 2011.

A

ROGERS, MAEIIRANGELO E\RW&I HO &

STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ™——e.
Nevada Bar No. 5755 B
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 85101

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L. Law and Argument

Plaintiff’s treating physicians are bermitted to testify at trial. However, they must have
proper foundation for any opinions offered. Thus, Plaintiff’s treating physicians may not testify
rega:dmg the treatinent rendered by other t:reatmg physicians unless (1) the freating physician reviewed
all of Plamtiff’s medical records from other providers whose treatment he wishes to opine about and
(2) Plaintiff has complied NRCP 26(e)(1) by disclosing all opinions each provider intends to offer at
trial. If, and only if, these requirements are met can a treating physician testify about matters beyond
the purview of directly rendered treatinent.

A. Treating Mcdic‘al Providers Must Have Sufficient Foundatien Before Offering Opinions
Regarding Plaintiff’s Medical Treatment

Any witness intending to offer expert opinions must have sufficient foundation. It goes
without saying that a treating medical provider who intends to testify regarding the treatment rendered
by other treating physicians must establish knowledge of the Plaintiff’s treatment with other providers.
Plaintiff’s opposition did not set forth which, if any, of his treating physicians reviewed the treatment
of other treating physicians. Without satisfying the basic disclosure and foundation requirements, the
testimony of Plaintiff’s treating physicians will be limited to their reports.

i
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B. Plaintiff Never Disclosed the Opinions Plaintiff’s Treating Physicians Intend to Offer,

Other Than Opinions Based on Their Own Treatment

NRCP 26(e)(1) requires Plaintiffto advise the Defendant of all opinions his treating providers
intend to provide at trial. This rule provides that a party must supplement its NRCP 16.1 disclosures,
as well as discovery responses, at “appropriate intervals,” when the information previously disclosed
in incomplete. Further, NRCP 37(c)(1) provides that a party who “fails to disclose information by
Rule 16.1, 16.2 or 26(e)(1)...is not, uniess such error is harmless, permitted to use as evidence at a
trial...”

A treating physician may not testify regarding the care rendered by other providers unless
(1) that treating physician specifically offers this opinion in his medical records, which the Plaintiff
produced, or (2) the Plaintiff otherwise disclosed the substance of the proferred opinion. Indeed,
Plaintiff’s Opposition concedes as much, stating “...Defendants...have been informed of these
physicians’ opinions regarding William’s treatment.” However, the Defendant has not been
informed of any treating provider opinions other than those disclosed in the record production, or
elicited at deposition. None ofthe Plaintiff’s treating physicians offered opinions regarding the care
rendered by other providers, the rcasonablenesé of same, or needed future care. The Nevada Rules
of Civil Procedure require the Plaintiff to advise the Detendant if a treating providers intends to offer
such opinions. Plaintiff never provided such notice. His treating medical providers are therefore

limited to the opinions previously disclosed.

C. Plain€iff’s Treating Physicians Have Not Testified to a Reasenable Degree of Medical
Probability on the Issue of Necessary Future Treatment

The Plaintiff’s treating physicians are not permitted to offer opinions regarding future
treatment because none have disclosed such opinions. The Plaintiff, himself, filed amotion to exclude
evidence of medical conditions not attributed to the accident to a reasonable degree of medical
probability. The Court enforces such rules equally. Because none of the treating physicians opine, to
a réasonable degree of medical probability, that Plaintiff Mr. Simao needs a given future treatinent
{much less future treatment causally related to the subject accident), all testimony regarding future

medical is inadmissible,

Page 3 of 5
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II. Conclusion
The treating providers’ opinions are limited to those disclosed in their reports and depositions.

Unfair surprise is prohibited by NRCP 26(e) and NRCP 37(c).
T
DATED this ¥ _day of February, 2011.

_a—-——“——u__,__‘_.“._-

ROGERS ‘M»ASIILANGELO CAMLHO &
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STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ T
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(a), and EDCR. 7.26(a), I hereby certify that I .‘3’?{1 an employee of
ROGERS, MASTRANGELQO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL, and on the ______g_"_ day of Febrary,
2011, a true and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT JENNY RISH’S REPLY IN
SUPPORT OF MOTION IN LIMINE TO LIMIT THE TESTIMONY OF PLAINTIFE’S
TREATING PHYSICIANS was served via First Class, 1.8, Mail, postage prepaid, addressed as

follows, upon the following counsel of record:

David T. Wall, Ezq.

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 450-5400 !
Facsimile: (702) 450-5451 ]
Attorneys for Plaintiffy /

f
! f ik-’w

" An Efpfc 5 ee of
‘_Ko,g’ers, Mlge]o, Carvatho & Mitchell
(.~ ,_.}

M\Rogers\Rish adv, Sinao\Pleadings\Reply -- Limit ‘Testimony of Treating Physicians. wpd
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RPLY
STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. % b i

Nevada Bar No. 5755

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL CLERK OF THE COURT
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Phone (702) 383-3400

Fax (702) 384-1460

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiff,

CASENO.  A539455
DEPT.NO X

V.

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES I-V; and ROE CORPORATIONS -V,
inclusive,

Defendants.

I i i T B R R e W e A

DEFENDANT JENNY RISH’S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION IN LIMINE TO

PRECLUDE PLAINTIFFS' MEDICAL PROVIDERS AND EXPERTS FROM
TESTIFVING REGARDING NEW OR UNDISCLOSED MEDICAL TREATMENT
AND OPINIONS

COMES NOW Defendant JENNY RISH, by and through her attorney, STEPHEN H.
ROGERS, ESQ., and hereby submits this Reply to Opposition to Motion for an Order Precluding
Plaintiffs’ Medical Providers and Experts from Testifying Regarding New or Previously Undisclosed
Medical Treatment or Opinions.

"
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The Reasons in support of said request are contained in the attached Memorandum of Points
and Authorities, all pleadings and papers on file, as well as arguments presented at the time of the

hearing.
g e
DATED this A day of February, 2011, '

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALIIO &

WTCHEI:,L,,,MM - P
/ - / -

i M
e e o

STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. o
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendant Jerny Rish

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. Argument

Plaintiff’s Opposition discloses that while no determmination of future surgery has been made,
it might be at the time of trial, This is the very ambush tactic the rules prohibit. The Court, of course,
enforces the rule.

The Plaintiff has not disclosed any information suggesting a need for future surgery. The rules
exclude claims for such undisclosed damages at the time of trial.

NRCP 26(b)(4) requires the parties to provide a description of the subject matter each witness
will testify about, a staternent of the substance of facts and opinions to which experts are expected to
testify, and all bases for such opinions. Nevada Jaw and this Court prohibit parties from changing
opinions regarding medical treatiment at the time of trial.

Other jurisdictions have echoed the same rule. In Tetrault v. Fairchaitd, 799 S0.2d 226 (f'la
App. 2001} the Florida Court of Appeals reversed a verdict and remanded for a new trial when the
Plaintiff gave new medical records to his expert witness and sought to elicit opinions based on those
records just before trial. In that case, one of the Plaintiff’s witnesses was given some MRIs which he

had never seen al the time of his deposition. /.. In filing a concurring opinion, Justice Harris noted:

Page20of 5
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The primary obligation of any trial court, indeed its most basic responsibility, is to
conduct a fair trial, It has no discretion to do otherwise. A ruling by the trial court
which denies either party a fair trial cannot be excused based upon the proposition that
trial court has exercised its broad discretion.

Similarly, in the case of Qffice Depot Inc. v. Miller, 584 S0.2d 587 (Fla App, 1991), the court
held it was reversible error to allow one party’s expert witness to ambush the other party with new
opinions at the time of trial.

The Appellate Court of [Ilinois echoed this principle of faitness in Clayton v. Cook County,
805 N.E. 222 (1ll. App. 2004}, when it held it was reversible error to allow onc party to produce
previously undisclosed opinions at trial. In that case, the Plaintiff’s expert reviewed additional
materials after her deposition, and rendered new opinions at trial that had not been disclosed, resulting
in unfair prejudice. Id, at 231, The court noted:

Discovery rules allow litigants to ascertain and rely upon the opinions of experts
retained by their adversaries. Parties have a duty to supplement or amend prior
answers or responses whenever new or additional information subsequently becomes
known to that party. To allow either side to ignore the plain language of [the expert
disclosure rule] defeats its purpose and encourages tactical gamemaneship.

I no case should “tactical gamemanship” be employed to reveal the opinions of experts
piecemeal, violating the clear mandates of the discovery rules. When a party violates the expert
discovery rules, the opposing party has the option of moving to strike the portion of the testimony that
violates the rules, strike the witnesses’ entire testimony and bar the witness from testifying any further,
or have a mistrial declared. Jd See also Copeland v. Stbeo Products Corp., 738 N.E.2d 1199 (1L
2000).

In this case, Plaintiff has presented no evidence that Plaintiff William Simao needs
future surgery. Ifany doctor’s opinion has changed, Plaintiffs had the obligation to put Defendant
Rish onnotice, It would be an “ambush” and “tactical gamemanship” to allow Dr. McNulty, or any
other doctor, to testify that the Plaintiff needs future surgery. By not advising the Defendants of an
alleged future surgery, Plaintiffs deprived the independent medical experts the opportunity to review
and respond to such new opinions.

Undisclosed evidence is never harmless if the evidence would necessitate “a new discovery

order” and “re-open” discovery. Hoffman, 541 F.3d at 1180. Inthis case, permitting such testimony
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would necessitate new discovery to permit Defendant’s experts the oﬁportunity ta review Dr.
McNulty’s new opinions. This new evidence is not harmless and should be excluded, as should any
new or previously undisclosed opinion of any medical provider or expert.
11. Conclusion

For the reasons set forth above, Defendants ask this Honorable Court to grant the instant
Motion in Limine, and enter an Order precluding Plaintiffs’ medical providers and experts from
testifying regarding new, previously undisclosed damages or opinions. It would be unfair to the
Plaintiffs ifthe Defendant’s medical experts offered new opinions at trjal. Defendant Rish simply asks
the Court to apply the rules equally to the Plaintiff’s medical providers and experts.
DATED this Sﬂ%-&ay of February, 2011. TN

e

RQGERS, ME%?@ELO, CAB¥ALHO &
MI g

. /'///:":k\“

C TS
STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. "
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
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CERTIFICATE OTF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(a), and EDCR 7.26(a), I hereby certify that ! am an employee of

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL, and on the _.g__day of February,
2011, a true and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT JENNY RISH’S REPLY IN
SUPPORT OF MOTION IN LIMINE TO PRECLUDE PLAINTIFTS’ MEDICAL
PROVIDERS AND  EXPERTS FROM TESTIFYING REGARDING NEW OR
UNDISCLOSED MEDICAL TREATMENT AND OPINIONS was served via First Class, U.S.

Mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows, upon the following counsel of record:

David T, Wall, Esq.

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 450-5400
Facsimile: {702) 450-5451
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

f i
f
K] L/\

,/Anﬁﬂv
3 ROgers Ma angelo Carvalho & Mitchell

M:\Rogers\Rish adv. Simaa\Pleadingshreply 1o opp to MIL.previously undisciosed medical, wpd
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwall@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorreys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and | CASE NO.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as | DEPT.NO.: X
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
PLAINTIFES’ REPLY TO
v. DEFENDANTS’ QPPOSITION TO
PLAINTIFFS’ OMNIBUS
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH; MOTION IN LIMINE

DOES 1 through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

COME NOW, Plaintiffs, WILLIAM and CHERYL SIMAOQ, by and through their

attorneys of record, ROBERT T, EGLET, ESQ., DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. and ROBERT A.
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ADAMS of the law firm of MAINCR EGLET, and hereby file this Reply to Defendants’
Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Omnibus Motion in Limine.
L
ARGUMENT

1.  Prior and Subsequent Unrelated chidents, Injuries and Medical Conditions
and Prior and Subsequent Claims or Lawsuits.

Plaintiffs’ Motion sought to exclude accidents, injuries or medical conditions that are
unrelated to the injuries in the instant case, including a 2003 minor motoreycle accident for
which Plaintiff received a superficial injury to his right elbow and Plaintiff’s treatment for high
blood pressure and/or high cholesterol.

In Opposition, Defendants misconstrue the holding in Morsicato v. Sav-On Drug Stores,
Inc., 121 Nev. 153,111 P.3d 1112 (2005), and offer genera! statements to support admission into
evidence of clearly unrelated injuries and medical conditions. Nowhere in Defendant’s
Opposition is there any reference to any record, testimony or documenl evidencing any relevance
to the motorcycle accident or high blood pressure / high chaolesterol.

Defendants claim that Morsicato is limited to medical malpractice cases, when in fact the
Nevada Supreme Court specifically held:

“We conclude that medical expert testimony regarding standard of care and causation
must be stated to a reasonable degree of medical probability.”

Morsicato, 121 Nev. at 158 (emphasis supplied).

Further, the Court in its analysis never mentions that this standard applies only in the

context of medical malpractice actions:

Since 1989, this court has held that *a medical expert is expected to testify only to
matters that conform to the reasonable degree of medical probability standard.’
Furthermore, in dictum, this court has observed that expert testimony regarding
causation must also rise to this level of certainty. As the Pennsylvania Supreme
Court has recognized, one rationale for requiring such specificity with expert

2
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opinions is that “if the plaintiff's medical expert cannot form an opinion with

sufficient certainty so as to make a medical judgment, there is nothing on the

record with which a jury can make a decision with sufficient certainty so as to

make a legal judgment.”

Id, (citing McMahon v. Young, 442 Pa, 484,276 A.2d 534, 535 (Pa. 1971)).

In fact, courts construing Morsicato have never found thal the Nevada Supreme Court’s
analysis was limited to medical malpractice actions. See, Roberts v. Albertson’s LLC, 2010 U.S.
Dist. Lexis 63438, 9-10 (D. Nev. 2010); Neal-Lomax v. Las Vegas Metropolitun Police
Department, 574 F.Supp.2d 1193, 1198 (D. Nev. 2008) (both citing Morsicato standard to
establish causation in products liability action).

Defendants state that alternative causes for William’s complained of injuries are certainly
relevant and admissible, but apparently miss the point of the instant Motion. No evidence
suggests that a2 minor motorcycie accident or high blood pressure caused the injuries for which
Plaintiff now complains.

In a report, Defendants’ medical expert Dr. David Fish reiterates what Plaintiff himself
testified to in his deposition, namely that Plaintiff suffered from migraine headaches prior to the
accident. That fact is not in dispute. However, Dr. Fish, without having ever reviewed a single
medical record related to the 2003 motorcycle accident, opines that Plaintiff’s migraines were
exacerbated by that 2003 accident. This conclusion is precluded by the Nevada Supreme Court’s
holding in Morsicato. In fact, the defense expert in Morsicaro tried an identical ploy, arguing
that an auto-immune theory plausibly explained the plaintiff’s injuries. Since there was no
evidence to support any finding that the theory was offered to a reasonable degree of medical
probability, the testimony was stricken. Morsicato, 121 Nev. at 157,

In their Opposition, Defendants do not direct the Court to a particular report or deposition

that supports a claim that the 2003 minor motorcycle accident or the Plaintiff’s high blood

pressure are relevant to causation of any injury complained of in this accident, much less any

3

000266

000266




,92000

MAINOR EGLET

R - R e - s - T

] o] [y ] [ ] o] 3] ] — — — — — — — — — —
o0 EJJ g h A W e — 2 o e NN R W N =D

000267

witness saying so to a reasonable degree of medical probability. lnstead. Defendants argue that
any differential diagnosis involves ruling out certain causes, and as such those potential causes
that might be ruled out can still be offered as admissible evidence. Such a theory is contrary to
the Nevada Supreme Court’s holding in Morsicato and contrary to all of the evidence in this
case, as no treating physician has testified that the 2003 motorcycle incident or Plaintiff’s high
blood pressure were part of any differential diagnosis.

Any reference to any other claims or lawsuits involving the Plaintiff, either prior to or
subsequent to the instant action, whether the claim or suit arose out of this incident or some other
claim or lawsuit, is irrelevant to the issues in this case and presents the danger of unfair prejudice
and confusion of the issues,

2, Reference to Malingering, Magnifying Symptoms or Secondary Gain.

In Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion, Defendants seek to introduce testimony to establish
some secondary gain motive on the part of William Simao. The type of testimony Defendants
seék to introduce is exactly the testimony the law precludes, as set forth in the original Motion,

Defendants cile to the deposition testimony of Dr. Adam Arita, a pain management
doctor who treated Plaintiff for a period from October of 2006 until June of 2007, years before
Plaintiff underwent surgery on his cervical spine. In his deposition, Dr. Ari.ta speculated on the
necessity for surgery based on the limited information he had available to him while he treated
Plaintiff. His opinions were not to a reasonable degree of medical probability, and are not
admissible on the issue of secondary gain. Dr. Arita’s highly speculative testimony was as
follows:

A So directly answering your question in my opinion [ don’t believe that the facet
hypertrophy is the result of the accident itself and I don’t think that the pain that
he was having in his left shoulder and his neck was a direct result of the accident.
[ think that it may have exacerbated that problem but it certainly didn’t cause it

and that’s my opinion.
Q. ...If he had this condition prior to the accident, would you expect him to have

4
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pain prior to the accident in his neck?

He may have been experiencing pain in his left shoulder and his neck even before
this accident but it may have never really been brought to his attention to
complain about it until something that precipitated this particular problem came
about as in there can be some issues here that he’s going to gain something if he
mentions something with his neck and his arm because of the accident than if he
didn’t bring it up at all. I do think there’s some secondary gain issue here.

Right, but people get injured ali the time and just because they seck recovery
doesn’t mean they are being dishonest about stuff even if they are going to gain or
not gain. Wouldn’t you agree even a substantial amount of money isn’t worth
having a significant pain or needing a surgery or anything like that?

You are right that somebody could not have a complaint and just say it’s because
I want to complain or there’s some other kind of event to initiate the complaint
like an accident but 1 think that pain is—is a very complicated thing and there’s
more issues than the physical things to explain it than the other issues as in
psychological issues or these legal issues and 1 think those are equally as
important if not more important than the physical things.

So when you say, okay, is this guy complaining because he had the
accident or is he complaining because he’s got some kind of psychological
problem in him that makes him complain and my answer is il's both, it’s because
you have the psychological drive 1o say there’s something to be gained like this
accident and there may be some physical thing such as this, the facet hypertrophy
that is causing the problem,

But again when it comes down to what is my opinion, my opinion is he
didn’t have this facet hypertrophy as a result of this particular accident that he was
involved in in April of 2005 and 1 don’t think that the pain problem was
something that he would have been bringing up had he not had this accident,
okay, but [ think its not necessarily a direct result of the accident is what I'm
saying.

See the Deposition of Dr. Arita at Exhibit “1,” p79:8 to 81:24.
As is clearly evidenced by reading the foregoing, Dr. Arita has no particular facts to

support his generalities on secondary gain. No medical provider has labeled William as a

Furthermore, the DSM-IV-TR, published by the American Psychiatric Association,
defines malingering as the intentional production of false or grossly exaggerated physical or
psychological symptoms, motivated by external incentives such as...obtaining financial
compensation, In other words, malingering is faking or exaggerating symptoms for secondary

gain motives. As no medical provider or expert has diagnosed William as a ‘malingerer,” any

5
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evidence or argument related to secondary gain and/or malingering must be excluded.
Moreover, diagnoses regarding these subjects must come from a qualified mental health expert,
and therefore Dr. Arita’s opinions regarding these subjects are wholly unqualified and he must
be precluded from testifying regarding symptom magnification, malingering, or secondary gain
issues as these are far beyond his area of expertise.

The relevance of a condition like malingering must be established by competent medical
evidence by an expert qualified to testify to the relatedness of the condition to the injuries in
question. Defendant has no such expert. See Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008);
NRS 50.275. As such, any and all reference of William being a malingerer or having a
secondary gain motive is not relevant to the instant case.

The testimony offered by Dr. Arita does not qualify under NRS 50.275 or under
Hullmark. Dr. Arita’s perceptions are formed during a small window of treatment of Plaintiff,
long before the surgery was completed. Even his deposition testimony predates the surgery by
several months. Between the date of his deposition and the dale of William’s surgery (and long
after Dr. Arita’s treatment of Plaintiff ceased), a number of other diagnostic tests were completed
that rendered William a surgical candidate.

As set forth in Plaintiffs’ original Motion, issues of secondary gain or malingering are not
only issues left for a mental health expert, but under any circumstances invade the province of
the jury as it is a commentary on the credibility of William without an evidentiary basis. It is
essentially testimony that says that William is a liar, which is a subject wholly and solely in the
prlovince of the jury. See, Dexter v. Hail, 82 U.S. 9,21 L.Ed. 73 (1873); Brendaes on Evidence,
vol. 2 § 372; Estate of Gould, 188 Cal. 353, 205 P. 457 (1922); 22 C.1. § 807, p. 720.

There is no proper evidentiary basis wpon which to allow testimony of William’s

malingering or secondary gain, and as such Plaintiff requests this Motion be granted.
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3. Treating Physicians Do Not Need to Prepare Expert Reports Separate From
and in Addition to Their Medical Records and Dictated Rcports.

Defendants do not disagree with Plaintiff’s Motion to the extent it cites pertinent law
holding that treating providers are not subject to the expert disclosure requirements of NRCP
16.1(a)(2)(B). Defendants take issue with the ability of treating providers to testify 1o the
appropriateness of care from other treating physicians.

In the original Motion, Plaintiffs took care to point out the relevant precedents and the
limits of such testimony by trealing providers, such that a treating doctor may opine on the
appropriateness of care from other treating providers to the extent that such care is pertinent to
the testifying provider’s own care and treatment of the patient. See Omnibus Motion in Limine,
p. 14.

Defendants have the medical records pertaining to William’s injuries and treatment,
along with medical records from his other medical providers. Defendants have had, or will have,
the opportunity to depose William’s treating physicians and have been informed of these
physicians’ opinions regarding William’s treatment, Defendants® anticipated argument that they
would somehow be substantially prejudiced since they did not receive separate expert reports, or
any potential argument concerning surprise, is unfounded since Defendants are well aware of
these physicians® opinions and there is no risk of unfair surprise.

Therefore, under Nevada law, William’s treating physicians are permitted to testify
regarding their treatment, the trealment of other treating physicians, the reasonableness and

necessity of same, the reasonableness of the costs of all treatment provided to William, the

nature of his injuries, his response to conservative care, causation of his injuries, anticipated

future treatment and the costs therefore, William’s prognosis, extent of disability. and any other

imatters pertinent to their treatment and evaluation of William.

000270
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4. References to Defense Medical Examiners as “Independent.”

Defendant does not oppose Plaintiffs’ Motion to preclude reference to Defense Medical
Examiners as “Independent,” thus Plaintiff’s Motion should be granted.

5. Argument That This Case is “Attorney Driven” or a “Medical-Buildup.”
Defendant is not entitled to make arguments that are not based in fact, constitute pure speculation
and are prejudicial to the Plaintiffs. See NRS § 48.025; State of Nevada v. Kassabian, 69 Nev.
146, 179 (1952); Williams v. State of Nevada, 103 Nev. 106, 110 (1987). By way of their
Opposition, it is clear that Defendant is gearing up to try this case not on the facts but on pure
speculation and conjecture. Evidence of bias and credibility are, to some degree, admissible
however, it must be based on fact. The fact that the Plaintiff was referred to a physician by his
attorney or that a physician confirmed that a particular case was still in litigation says absolutely
nothing about Plaintiff’s credibility and allows the jury to speculate as if there was foul play or
wrong doing. This will no doubt result in unfair prejudice to Plaintiff and such reference must be
excluded.

Lastly, allowing Defense counsel to argue that Plaintiff’s treatment was “litigation

L1}

driven,” “attomey driven,” or arguing there is some fictitious “medical build-up™ is tantamount
to arguing that Plaintiff’s treating physicians committed medical malpractice — an allegation
Defendant and Defendant’s experts cannot and will not make. Such references are wholly
prejudicial, lacking any probative value, and irrelevant in this case. Therefore, Plaintiff’s Motion
should be granted.

6. References to Plaintiff’s Liens. The Nevada Supreme Courl has spoken on this
issue. Evidence of collateral sources is not admissible for any purpose. Any evidence relating to

liens and how such liens will be satisfied is evidence which would violate Proctor v. Casteliini,

112 Nev. 88 (1996) and Bass-Davis v. Davis, 2005 Nev. LEXIS 59; 121 Nev. Adv.Rep. 44.
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William was forced to treat on a lien because of Defendant’s negligence. Now the
Defendant wishes to use the fact that William was forced to treat on a lien against him, by
claiming that evidence is relevant to the credibility of his doctors. This must not be permitted.
Most jurors do not understand what liens are or why patients treat on a lien. Thus, such evidence
may confuse the jury into thinking that William did not have health insurance, or that his health
insurance only paid part of the bill. Consequently, evidence of liens is, therefore irrelevant,
would violate the collateral source rule and would be unfairly prejudicial to Plaintiff, As the
Proctor court stated, “there is no circumstance in which a district court can properly exercise its
discretion in determining that collateral source evidence outweighs its prejudicial effect.”
Proctor, at 91. Therefore, Plaintiffs request that this Honorable Court bar Defendant from
suggesting, referring, or insinuating that Plaintiff has received medical care by way of medical
liens.

7. Evidence of When Plaintiffs Retained Counsel. In her Opposition, Defendant
seems o combine her argument regarding reference to this case being “attorney driven” with her
argument regarding evidence of when Plaintiffs retained counsel. If this is true, Defendant has
failed to address the primary issue of Plaintiff’s Motion: any testimony regarding when Plaintiff
retained counsel is protected by the attorney-client privilege. All confidential communications
between a client and his or her attorney are considered "privileged," and the client, or the
atlorney acting on behalf of the client, may refuse to divulge the nature of the communication.
Sloan v. State Bar, 102 Nev. 436, 726 P.2d 330, 1986 Nev. LEXIS 1584 (1986). For that reason
alone, Plaintiff's Motion should be granted.

8. Closing Arguments. Defendant as faiied to effectively oppose Plaintiff’s Motion
in Limine, and, as such, pursuant to EDCR 2.20, Plaintiff”s motion should be summarily granted.

Plaintiff is well aware that trial counsel is afforded wide latitude during closing argument
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to argue facts and draw reasonable inferences from the evidence, Jain v. McFarland, 109 Nev.
465, 476, 851 P.2d 450, 457 (1993). However, Plaintiff fears that defense counsel is eager to go
far beyond the realm of arguing reasonable inferences and engage in jury nullification by
suggesting that Plaintiffs damages request is greater than he anticipates receiving. This
argument would unfairly prejudice Plaintiff and should be precluded. This is not to say that the
defense should be precluded from arguing the reasonableness and necessity of Plaintiff’s medical
treatment and costs but unfairness will occur should the defense be allowed te argue that Plaintiff
is purposely requesting more than he reasonably expects to receive. |
1I.

CONCLUSION

Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court GRANT the foregoing Motion in its
entirety.

DATED this , ( day of February, 2011.

MAINOR EGLET

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. /

10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the “ day of February, 20_11, service of the foregoing
REPLY TO DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S OMNIBUS MOTION IN
LIMINE was made via First Class mail, postage prepaid to the following counsel of record at

their last known addresses as follows:

Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendants

A_ﬁfmployee of WGR EGLET
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Fage 1 Page 3
1 DISTRICT COURT 1 Thereupon--
; CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 5 ADAM A. ARITA, M.D.
4 3 was called as a witness by the Defendants, and
5 WILLIAM JAY SIMAD, 4 having been first duly sworn, testified as
individually and CHERYL ANN ) 5 follows:
6 SIMAQ, individually, end as *
b o wtal e 2%, ) 6 DIRECT EXAMINATION
7 _ ) 7 BY MR. ROGERS:
8 Plaintiis, ) 8 Q. Would you state your name please.
V5. ) Case No. 9 A, YES, Adam Aﬁm, A-r-i-t-a,
g } AS35455 10 Q. Okay. And you are a physician,
) 2
10 JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA ) 11 corveat?
RISH; DDES 1 through V; and ) 12 A. Yes.
11 ROE CORPORATIONS I through V, ) 13 Q. What kind?
" inclusive, : ) 14 A A medical doctor, an M.D.
Defendants. ) 15 Q. But what is your spedalty?
13 ) 16 A. Anesthesiclogy and pain medicine,
;g 17 Q. You didn't bring a C.V. with you, did
17 DEFOSITION OF ADAM A. ARITA, M.D. 19 A, 1dont have one with me, na
18 Taken on Wednesgday, Navember 5, 2008
15 At 4:28 'dlock p.m, 20 Q. Okay. Give me : breakdown then of your
20 At 300 South Fourth Street, Sulte 710 21 educational background? .
21 Las Vegas, Nevada 22 A. Okay, I finished college at Unwerslty
2 23 of Southern California in 1983, graduating with
23
4 24  bachelor of science in business administration
25 Reported by: Katherine M. Silva, CCR #2703 25 and [ graduated from medicai schoob also from the |
Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES: 1 same school, University of Southem Callfornia
2 For the plaintff: 2 1991 and an M.D. and then following that I
3 JA?:::' :' ;:g::s?éﬁﬁ 3 entered intemnship at the Los Angeles County
4 2300 West Sahara Ayenue 4  Medical Center which is also a USC-affiliated
Sulte 650 5 fadility and that was between 1991 and 1992 and
5 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 6 that was internal medicine.
6 For the defendants; 7 And then in 1992 to 1995 1 did my
7 STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. 8 anasthesiology residency at USC which is also at
Rogers, Mastrangelo, Carvalho B i
8 Mitchel! 9 the Los Angeles County Hospital and then
300 South Fourth Street 10 following that I entered private practice and 1
g Sulte 710 11 worked In private practice for approximately one
10 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 12 year in San Diego and that was a Sharp facility,
11 INDEX 13 Sharp Chula Vista.
12 14 And then following that 1 did a pain
13 Winess - Direct Cross  Red. Rec. 15 management fellowship at U Mass, University of |
14 Adam A Arita, M.D. 16 Massachusetts, In Worcester and that was between |
:g (8y zf- ?:IDET:L)’ 3 " 17 '96 and '97 and I entered private practice in '97
17 (By Mr. Paimera) 1B and worked in Alaska, it was Anchorage, Alaska,
18 EXHIBITS 19 Providence Afeska Medicat Center and 1 did hailf
19 Number Deseription Page 20 pain management and half anesthesia and 1 did
glll (None) 21 that until I did a cardiac anesthesia fellowship
22  which was in 2002 to 2003 and during that time I
22 INFORMATION J“omf‘e'z) SUPPLIED: Page  Li® |23 was still employec at that facility but 1 went
24 24 and did this fellowship In Houston at Texas Heart
25 25 Institute so ! finished that in 2003, went back

1 (Pages 1 to 4)
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1 o the same practice in Anchorage, Alaska and I b Q. Can yau spell that for her?
2 worked there until 2005 and then in 2005 1 came | 2 A, Chow-d-her-y and the first neme is
3 to Las Vegas and | was employed by Southwest 3 B-a-s-h-a2-r.
4 Medical Associates. 1 Q. Okay. And he's —
5 Q. Okay. 5 p. Cardiovascular surgeon and his partner
6 A. And then I worked there until 2007, 6 is Nauman Jahangir, J-a-h-a-n-g-i-r and then
7 August and then following that 1 entered private | 7 N-a-u-m-a-n.
B8 pactice here In Las Vegas and now | work with | Q. How long -- what I've gotten 5o far is
9 Physician Bllling Services which is an office 8 you work with an orthopedic surgeon wha does
10 that does the bilfing but what they do is they 10 mostly joints but he also does oncoiogy work?
11  kind of overflow patients and we all kind of 11 A. Right.
12 share a similar patient pool in this office but 12 Q. A cardiovascular surgeon who you work
13 they are not a group. Everybody is an 13 with and any other kinds of surgeons?
14 independent practitioner In this office and then 19 A, 1 work with the urologist, his name is
15 we just kind of share things back and forth 15 Wise, W-i-s-e and his first name is William and
16 between the different providers. 16 he does the prostate surgeries, does the open
17 Q. Whao are the other providers there? 17 prostate resections, radical prostatectomy,
18 A. There's 49 or 5o other people in this 18 lipotripsy and laser and the ones that remove
19 particular office. 1 mean some of the people 19 stones with baskets. -
20 that I work with are like Greg Porteous is one of [ 20 Q. Do you do any work with spine surgeons? |;
21 the anesthesiologists that does a fair amount of | 21 A, Sometimes like Daniel Lee, he's one of
22 privake practice that 1 get overflow from and - 22 the ones that I've worked with and when Fwas® ©f. 0 ' .-
23 another friend Is Don Mentero and there’s several | 23 work at Southwest Medical I'worked With MeNalty.{;- * .7 1o o7
24 othérs, 1 meah1don't know all of themright - 24 Q. Okay. CoT T e T iy
25 off the top of my head but there’s other people | 25 A. Patrick McNulty. - L N
Page & Page8 [
1 that the office will say this person wants to ask 1 Q. And have you ever performed the i
2 you if you can cover this patient today, can you 2 anesthesia for a spihe surgery?
3 dothat. 3 A, Yeah. :
q Q. Okay. 1know that in some cases 4 Q. What kinds?
5 anesthesiologists informally partner up with 5 A. The type that they do
6 surgeons who they commonly do procedures with. | &  anterior/posterior fusion of the lumbar spine
7 A there any surgeons you commonly work with? [ 7 like L3 through 51 and some of those Interbody
8 A. Yeah, there are a few that 1 have that B fusions that they do, L4-5.
9 T usually cover myself which is one that came to 9 Q. Any cervical?
10  town about seven months ago his name is Ron 10 A. Some, like they do -- I've done both _
11 Hilleck, he's an arthopedic surgeon, he works 11 the laminectomies just for decompression as well
12 with Desert Orthopedics. 12 as the ones they do reconstruction, they putin  §
13 Q. What kind of surgeries does he do? 13 the hardware to fuse their necks.
14 A. His spedialty is orthopedic oncology so 14 Q. Right. Have you done any of the pain
15 he does cancer-related surgeries primarily but he |15  management work such as discograms?
16 does the regular orthopedic surgeries as well, 16 A. Mot in the cervical area but in the
17 Q. Like what kind? 17 lumbar zrea ! have.
18 A. He does tolal knee replacement, total 18 Q. Okay. Where did you get your training
19 hip replacernent and does the ACL reconstruction | 19 to do discography?
20 for knee injuries and does regular arthroscopies 20 A. It was Unlversity of Massachusetts in
21 ofthe knee. 21 my pain fellowship and 1 also when 1 was in that
22 Q. Mostly joints? 22 pain fellowship I went three months at
23 A. Yeah. 23 Providence, Rhode 1sland, | worked at Rhode
24 Q. Okay. Any other doctors? 24 lstand Hospital with Fredrick Burgass,
25 A. Yeah, cardisc surgeon Bashar Chowdhry, |25  B-u-r-g-e-s-s, he's the pain management doctor
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Pape 9 Page 11
1 that worked there at that hospital and we worked | 1 before we went on the record you said you hadn't
2 our invasive training there so 1 did the 2 ever gone through a deposition before, is that
3 discography primarily with him. 3 right?
4 Q. Okay. Did you guys follow a particulas 4 A, Yes,
5 qguideline in yaur -- in the discograms you 5 Q. Okay. The main rule for 8 deposition
6 performed? & is that you appreciate that the deposition or,
7 MR. PALMERD: Objection, vague and 7 pardon me, the oath that you just took is the
B amblguous. You can answer. g8 same oath that you wouid take in court even
9 THE WITNESS: Sp ) -- there is some 9 though we are in my office, okay?
10 general guidelines Jike from ASA which we follow | 10 A. Right.
11 but, you know, those kind of guidelines that are 11 Q. Caries the obligation to tell the
12 published don't always mean that we follow 12 truth and penalties if you don't. Do you
13 everything according to that specific guideline, 13 understand that?
14 We just use that as 2 general approach to try to 14 A. Yes,
15 net the information from the discography. 15 Q- Allright. And you are doing a very
16 Q. {(BY MR. ROGERS) Right. In other words, | 16 good job so far in keeping your answers to a form
17 this is -- you regard ASA as sort of the 17 that can be written.
18 foundabion or the starting point? iB What 1 encounter many times in a
19 A. Right, and so what I'm saying is I 19 deposition is that someone will get comfortable
20 don't follow It by the letter according to how 20 enough that they'l start responding by nodding
21 they put the guidelines out but its'used as part - | 21 their head or saying uh-huh or unt-uh and that i
22 of the approach.to-how you go- about dolng it and 22. doasn't work with the court repnner 50 keep her N
23 ' collecting information, - : ¢ . 23 vin ‘mind as we go through. : - Lo |
24 Q. Okay. When did you Ias‘t do 24 “A.  We actually talked abbut that befnre
25 discography? : 25 vyou came in the room.
Page 10 Page 12 I
1 A. Probably in July of *07. 1 Q. Okay. Good. And for now those are E
2 Q. Okay. And your practice has simply 2 really the only ground rules that we need to
3 taken a different turn since that time? 3 cover, If something else comes up, I'l tell you :
4 A. 1ts primarlly anesthesiology because 4  as we go. [
5 whnen I left that practice with Southwest Medical | 5 Now, before we went on the record 1
6 it requires a fair amount of start up to open & also toid you we are going to ¢over spme
7 your own office and hire your own staff and I 7 background and then get into the treatment. I'm |
8 didn't really want to get into that right after 8 going to finish up the background now &nd you can |;
9 leaving empioyment with Southwest Medical so 1 | 9 seel just have a iitany of questions here that | '
10 didn't really think about opening 2 pain 10 nommally ask physiclans whose depositions 1 take
11  management practice at that point. 11 and one s did you review any documents to
12 1 considered joining another physician, 12 prepare for your deposition?
13 Dr. Waiter Kidwell, and I was going 1o go with 13 A, No, 1did not. I did not see any of
14 him but then I decided it was probably betier for | 14  these records that you put In front of me prior
15 me at that pardcular time when 1 left to just 15 totoday's date.
16 stick with anesthesia. 16 Q. Okay, And for the record the documents
17 Q. Okay. 17 that you have in front of you are contzined in ;
18 A. Because he wanted a pretty high 18 the plaintif’s early case conference document
19 percentage of the collection to pay for the 18 production, that’s just for her reference. '
20 office, that's why 1 decided not to go with him. 20 Did you meset or speak with any
21 He warnted 60 percent overhead. 21 attorneys before today's deposition?
22 Q. Right. Okay. Now, that gives me a 22 A. Not in regards to this particular case
23 fairly good insight into your background, your 23 that you've put in front of me.
24 qualifications. Let me go back and start with 24 Q. Okay.
25 something I normally start with and that is 25 A, This patient, ho.

3 {P?;gés 9 to 12)
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Page 13 Page 15
1 Q. Okay. Have you reviewed any documents 1 Q. 50 you performed two records reviews
2 @t all to prepare for the deposition, medical 2 all total?
3 records or otherwise? 3 A. Yes,
4 A. No, not in regards to this patient and 4 Q. Okay.
% the only reason I say that is bacause 1'm part of S A, Notintluding those other two things
6 Consultants Medical Group which a legal medicine | 6 that 1 mentioned refated to this practice of
7 . practice with Dr. Hugh Seiznick so 1 work with 7 Southwest Medical which had to do with the one 1
B attorneys and do some medical cose reviews so I'm | 8 made an appeasantce in court.
9 saying [ don't -- ] have not seen this patient's 9 Q. Right, okay.
10 medical records but I have some experience in 10 A. Because 1 had to review the records for
11 doing same of these lagal reviews, 11  that pricr to going to court,
12 Q. 1see. 12 Q. Okay. What was the injury ctaim in the
13 A, So that's why [ say that spec:ﬂcally 13 case that you did the records review for the
14 Q. And what kind of reviews have you done 14 plaintiff?
15 inthe past? Do you mean |\ke records review? 15 A. That one had to do with whether or not
16 A. Records review and [ did have also -- 16 the injury in my opinicn had something to do with
17 there was one -- also one court appearance that 1 [ 17 that patient's condition. In other words, did
18 made in regartds to being an expert witness for a 18 the injury cause the patient's pain and suffering
19 patient that ] treated at Southwest Medical 15 problem.
20 before as well. 20 Q. Wasitacar accndent or what was the
‘121 . Q. Soyou were the treating physu:lan and 21 injury? : A
122 the testifying ExPEIt—;:- 122+ A Itwesacaraccident s o i ENET
23. ' A, Correct. R T 23 Q. Okay. And what was that pa’tient's or' '
24 ,Q. _ for that anent‘? : 24 plaintiff's injury complaint? :
25 Is that the only time you've tesn" ed 25 A. Neck paln.
Page 14 Page 16
1 incourt? 1 Q. Okay. And in that case what opinion :
2 A. Yes 2 did you reach? Did the car accident cause the f
3 Q. Dkay, When did you testify? 3 neck pain or not?
4 A. This was back I want to say June. I'm 4 A, This is defendant or the plaintiff?
5 not sure exactly the date. I could get It for S Q. Actually I was asking about the :
6 you if you need it but I think it was in June of 6 plaintiff case in which you raviewed recards.
7  this year, 7 A. Yeah, the one that this particutar '
8 Q. So June of 2008, correct? 8 gentleman was involved in a car accident
g A, Uh-huh, 9 complaining of neck pain as a plaintiff I felt in
10 Q. Isthat a yes? 10 my opinion that that person had o rmany
11 A, Yes. 11 preexisting problems prior to his accident that
12 Q. Now, back to the medical expert reviews 12 wes probably the cause of his pain rather than
13 you were referring to, have you ever conducted an | 13 the accident itself.
14 independent medical examination? 14 Q. Isee
15 A No, 15 A. 50 ] said it could be an exacerbation
16 Q. Okay. But you have reviewed medical 16 of his chronic pain but It certainly was not the
17 records and offered an opinion based on that 17 cause of it.
18 review? 18 Q. And what about the case where you
18 A Correct, yes, 19 reviewed records for the plaintiff, in other
20 Q. And what kind of case have you done 20 words, where the plaintiff retained you as an :
21 that? 21 expert, what was the injury claimed in that case? |
22 A. One for a plaintiff and one was for a 22 A. That the car accident was the cause of |
23 defendant. 23 all his pain which wound up having him to go to
24 Q. In personal injury cases? 24 surgery for the cervical fusion that be had to
25 A. Yes. 25 have.

4 (Pages 13 to 16)
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Page 17 Page 19
1 Q. Who was the surgeon in that case? 1 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) Whe referred Mr. Simao,
2 A, McNuity. 2 the plaintiff, to you?
3 Q. Do you remember who the aftorney was | 3 A. 1 believe It was one of the orthopedic
4 who represented the plaintiff? 4 surgeons but T don't remember specifically who it
5 A. Plaintlfts attorney. You know, 1 5 was. It was elther McNulty -- 1 think it was
6 don't remember his nare. 1 have all this & McNulty that actually referred him.
7 information at home so if you would like to know | 7 Q. OCkay. Was your treatment done on a
8 it, 1canlook it up and get back to you on the B lien?
9 information. 9 A, No.
10 Q. Okay. Did either of these cases go to 10 Q. When was the last me you saw the
11 tnal? 11 plaintifi?
12 A. Not yet, no. 1 think -- one of them 12 A. 1 believe It was in August of 2007, It
13 settled and 1 think the other one is still in the 13 was right before ] finished that. I'm pretty
14 process of deciding if they are going to go to 14 sure he came In the week right before 1 actually
15 court or not. 15 finished my time. I finished on August 10th and
16 Q. Isee. Do you have any jntention of 16 1think ] saw him that week right before that.
17 being an expert in this case? 17 Q. Sayou left your employment at
1B A. T'm not rying to recruit myself as 18 Scuthwest Medical on August 10, 20077
19 being anexpert but if you need metobe I can. | 19 A, Comect.
20 Q. Just so you uUnderstand the roles, I'm 20 Q. Okay. Now, when was the first time you
21 not even permitted to speak to you unless the 21 sawthe plaintiff? - . S o
22 plaintiffs counsel is present because'youarea | 22 A - 1 believe it was In October of 2006, - <~ -~ § .
23 treating physician in this case. -50 it.wouldn't .23 *. There may have been.somebody elé&tat saw him-in |~ -
24 be me who would retain you as an expert in this |24 - the office before me because they may == for s~ L
25 case, it would be the plaintiff. 25 exampie, Doug Young may have actually seen the |
Page 18 Page 20
1 A. Okay. 1 patient before in the office but I didn't see him
2 Q. Itwould be Mr. Simao or his counsel, 2 before October of 2006.
3 Has Mr, Simao or his counsel asked you to be an 3 Q. Okay. Well, just In your review of the
4 expert in this case? 4 Sputhwest records which you have In front of you,
5 A, No. 5 you may have seen that the plaintifi treated
5 (. How many patients have you treated who | 6 there from April 15, 2005 up through roughly the
7 are Involved in personal injury claims? 7 last time you saw him and then he stopped
8 A. When I was with Southwest Medical orin | 8 treating there.
| 9 general since I've Anished my pain fellowship? 9 Now, you testified a8 moment ago that an
10 Q. Ingeneral, 10 orthopedic surgeon, lkely McNulty, referred the
11 A, Since 1 finished my paln fellowship? 11 phintiff to you. The records reflect that
12 Q. Yes. 12 Dr. Mchulty referred the plaintiff to pain
13 A. ] would estmate probably about a 13 management.
14 hundrad and fifty cases but I don't have the 14 A. Ckay,
15 exact numbers In a log to say this is the exact 15 Q. And that Southwest Medical had a pain
16 number. 16 management center that appears to be multi
17 Q. And estimates are fine. 17 disciplinary in that the plaintff went to a
18 A. Okay. 18 psychiatrist?
18 Q. OCkay. Mave you ever breated a patient 19 A. Psychologist.
20 in a personal Injury claim who was represented by | 20 Q. Okay. A psychologist?
21 the same law firm that represents Mr. Simao? 21 A Yes.
22 A, Isthis Glen? 22 Q. And a pain management physician, is
23 MR. PALMERO: Yes, Aaron and 23 that correct?
24 Palernoster. 24 A, Yes,
25 THE WITNESS: No, 1 have not. 25 Q. Okay. Have you ever worked with this
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Page 21 Page 23
1 psychologist? 1 determine whether they wauld, A, like ko have
2 A, Donna? 2 psychological sessions 85 part of thelr treatment
3 Q. Donna, yes? 3 eand, B, whether they are at risk of committing
4 A. Bar-Novan. 4 suicide or are at risk of doing something to them
5 Q. 1gotitasB-a-r-N-0-v-a-n? 5 self that may be harmful and if those things
6 A. Yes, B a2ren't present as in the patient doesn’t want
7 Q. What is her role in the pain management 7 psychological sessions and they don't present a
B at Southwest Medical? 8 risk to themselves as In committing suicide or
9 A. She's the pne that takes the 9 doing something harmful, then they have the
10 psychological history of the patient to determine 10 option of not doing any further psychological
11 how rmany sort of ather factors are involved in 11 sessions because it's up to them plus it's nat a
12 that patient’s pain problem such as depression, 12 sk for them to go on with just the medical
13 anxiety, past psychiatric problems that may be 13 treatments as in, you know, prescribing
14  influencing their curtent pain prasentation. 14 medications or doing injections.
15 50 she helps to determine If other 15 Q. Right.
16 means of treatment may be helpful in conjunction | 16 A. 5o if this patient was a candidate
17 “with medications and injections. 17 meaning he, A, wants to have the treatment or was
18 Q). Okay. And this is stuff that would 18 &t some kind of psychological risk then obviously
19 include blofeedback and things of that nature? 19 that would continue, the psychological treatment
20 A. She didn't do biofeedback because she 20 would continue. . _
21 didn't have the machine that have the lights that [ 21 Q. DOf the patients in Southwest Medicals* * " |~
22 go off or did heart rate determination, she 22 pain management program at the time the plaiati )
123  didn't have,a machine that did that with her 23 treated there, how many who vere réferréd to the~ T~ -+ -
{24 session so she didn't have biofeedback but she ~ {24  psychclogist treated with that Ssychislogisty” * ° ¥ v =7
25 did do cognitive behavioral-type assessments, 25 A. 1t was a small percentade, Iwouldsay | -
Page 22 Page 24
1 treatments, and she did relaxation tralning. So 1 out of a hundred patients that probably five to” - {
2 those are the kind of things she did mare. 2 seven patients out of the hundred would actually |
3 Biofeedback is specifically when you 3 continue seeing her on a reguiar basis of some
4 - hook somebady up to some kind of machine and help | 4 kind and regutar meaning it was possibly every
5 counsel them and work with them on controlling 2 S month to two months, not necessarily every other |
6 physlological parameter such as heart rate, 6 doy or every week,
7 trying to keep It slower or within 3 certain 7 Q. Isee
8 range and then help relax the patient. That's 8 A. And that's because most of the patients
9 the machine you use the biofeedback with. 9 that came to the clinic were specifically going
10 Q. Okay. And the object of a 10 o have an injection or they wanted some kind of
11  psychologist's work In the paln management: field 11 medication-type treatment plan as opposed to -
12 is to determine whether there are non physiclogic 12 anything psychological,
13 ways to address pain or non physiologic causes of 13 Q. Isee.
14 pain, is that right? 14 1n your experience did the
15 A. Yeah, as In psychological, yes, 15 psychological care offered at Southwest Medical
16 Q. Yes. 16 prave beneficial to the patients who accepted it? |
17 A Comect 17 A. 1think it wes a wonderful resource to
18 Q. Now, from the records that I've seen 18 have but I think In today's healtheare with :
18 from that Southwest Medical, it appears that the 19 expense being one of the issues T don't think
20 plaintiff consulted with the psychalogist once 20 that it's going to be something that can be long
21 and then never returned. Am ] cotrect? 21 term offered. ) don't think that basically most
) A Yes. 22 practices could afford 2 psychologist to be a
23 Q. Why is that? 23 part of their treatment on a regular basis.
24 A. The purpose of having the psychologist 24 501 think itU's a luxury more than it
25 in the dinit is to do an intake evaluakion to 25 i5 a necessity and { think it's a great thing to
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1 have as part of a multi-disciplinary practice but 1 with Dr. Sgibel, S-e-i-b-e-I?
2 ina private practice it's not spmething you 2 A, Right.
3 really are going lo find is going to be very 3 Q. And then he started treating with you,
4 characteristic. 1 mean ] don't think it's 4  Why did he leave Selbel and go to you?
5 something you are going to see in most practices. | 5 A. 1don't think he necessarily left him,
& Q. Something that I've seen quite & 1 think what happened was Selbel was busy when he
7 regularty in Las Vegas is that spine surgeons 7 needed ancther injection so he went and saw me
8  will refer patients for whom surgery is 2 B for the next one and then the following time 1
% consideration to a psychologist for screening to 9 saw him as a follow-up patient in the clinic
10 determine whether the patient is a good surgical | A0  after he had the injectlon and then he said,
11 candidate. Have you observed this as weli? 11 waell, Is it possible just to follow with you if
12 A. Yes. 12 yow are the one that can do both the injection
13 Q. And is there a difference between that 13 and the treatments because what he had seen
14 pre surgical screening role of a psychologist 14 before me was he saw Doug Young the PA and then
15 wversus what Dr. Bar-Noven did? 15 he saw Seibel for the injection and then went
16 A. Even though she could do that 16 back to Doug Young as a follow up and he asked if
17 specifically for McNulty, for example, because 17 the physician could see both and I said yes, 1
18  McNulty is one of the providers for Southwest 18 could do you as far as the procedures and the
19 Medical, he's ane of the contracted providers for 19 follow up.
20 spine surgery, he did rarely refer patients 20 And then he said he wouid rather do
21 spedfically for that purpose. . - 121 that than to see Seibel for the injection and-
22 If Dr..Bar-Novan was to see a patient, ;.- '-. .| 22 :then:Doug Youny in theclinic as a follow up. .. - oo s
|23 it was generally part of that intake of new, , ..-....[23..Butl also told him he could have done that with: . - oo 0 -
24 patients that she saw and then the ones that = - | 24 Seibe! top but he said the last pérson he saw was - -
25 elected to see her on a regular basis because 25 me 50 that's why he asked and. requested that he
Page 26 ’ Page 28 |
1 they felt she would offer them a valuable 1 see me specifically to do his Injections and -
2 service, 2 Tfollow up.
3 So to answer your question it's not 3 Q. Ckay. Now, I see that on June 7, 2006
4  something that this particular clinic that was 4  Dr. Seibel did a C3-4 epidural and the follow-up
5 practiced in that way of screening for a specific 5 report reprasented thet he had a good response
6 surgery but if the patients were — decided upoh 6 and a decrease in his headaches and pain?
7 to become candidates for implantable devices such | 7 A. Okay.
B as spinal cord stimulation implants, then that a8 Q. Now, whan was the first time he saw you |
9 patient would have to go see Dr. Bar-Novan to be 9 again, in October?
10  screened for that, 10 A. He saw Doug Young as a follow up and
11 So in that way she was used 11 scheduled for a selected nerve root black and
12 specificaily for a Impiantable device but not 12 that's when 1 saw him on October 3rd for a
13 necessarily spine surgeon, you Know, screening 13 selective nerve root block,
14 them for surgery and it was very rare for this 14 Q. That was your first visit with the
15 particular practice to put implantable devices as 15 plaintiff?
16 far as a spinal cord stimulator or pump because 16 A, Yes.
17 meost of the patients elther wound up having 17 3. Okay. Now, just before the plaintiff
18 surgery or went somewhere else to get their 18 comes to you he had a visit with a physician
19 implants done, they didn't stay with the ¢linic 19 assistant there?
20 to do that because there's so many other patients | 2 A, Doug Young, yes.
21 to be seen it couldn't be done specifically for 21 Q. On August 24, 2006.
22 that purpose for the implant.- 22 A. Yes.
23 Q. Okay. All right. Now, shifting then 23 Q. And there Mr. Young wrote that the
24  to the medical doctors in the Southwest Medical 24 plaintiff had an exacerbation of his pain. Do
25 pain management center, the plaintiff started 25 you know what the exacerbation was?
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Page 29 Page 31
1 A. The left trapezial pain it says. 1 the initial visit was actually the injection but
2 That's the exacerbation that he had. It was left 2 did he give you a history?
3 trapezial pain and according o this visit, it 3 A. That's one thing about this practice 1
4 says that sometimes you may get a worsening of | 4  didn't like 1t was we were -- we were sort of
S your pain problem from an injection and then It 5 reguired 85 a mid-level provider to take the
6 may get better over a longer period of time so & information that most of the time they were able
7 what happens — 7 to get but sometimes the detalls and the
8 1 believe what this is referring to is B specifics of a patient's problem were not relayer
9 the steroid effect so when you inject a steroid 9 tous. We are almost like technicians because
10 into an epidural space, it can work its way into 10 once we saw the patient we never really knew all
11 the nerve roat and It can actually cause an 11 the details other than what was written in the
12 inflammatory reaction initially to the nerve 12 record.
13 meaning the nerve will hecome more painfil and § 13 So, for example, if this patient was
14 then after it becomes less inflamed because the |14  seen by me I may have been able to ask more
15 steroid works that it may come 2 period of time [ 15  specific questions about what happened in the
16  where there's less pain, 16 past that may have related it to the injury and,
17 Q. Right, now this report of August 24 is 17 therefore, had a better idea of what specific
18 two-and-a-half months after the last injection, 18 levels I may have injected and occasionally when
19 the epidural. So we are well past the ongmal 15 I would have the time ] would go back and look at
20  inflammatory reaction, right? 20 the records that the mid fevels would take ke
21 A. Okay. Yes. Usually it's within the 21 Doug Young and figure out, well, is it really:the | -7
122 first-week:after the Injection that you get that 22 level that he scheduled the patlent for to get-i>
~|23 response sp; you are right, this would probably .- |23  injected or do I want to do an‘additicrialfevel + &
:[ 24 just be the pain has comeiback-or it hasgbtl:en |24 besides the one that was schiduled or 8d l"want e
125 worse since the injection. - 25 to change the level then the one that’s "
Page 30 Page 32 |
1 Q. Okay. Well, the word exacerbation is 1 scheduled, 1
2 used differently by different people. 1n some 2 Far example, if this left C4 nerve that
3 cases I've seen the word exacerbation used in the | 3 I did the procedure and injected was maybe not
4 context of a recent event, like an aggravating 4 necessarlly the one that 1 would have felt based
5 event 5 on his history and his exam and his MRI results,
6 Do you know If the physician 6 I may have felt differently about then had 1
7 assistant's use of exacerbation on August 24, 7 actually, you know, just gone there and did the
8 2006 is in referenca to an event that caused 8 procedure that was scheduled but sometimes it
8 pain? 9 didn't work that way and I had to do just
10 A. 1don't know. Idon't krnow what that 10 basically what was scheduled because It was just
11 is reference to based on this note and 1 don't 11 along list of patients to see that day n the
12 think I remember anything specificatly after 12 surgery center and, therefore, some of the
13 seeing the patlent mention anything that [ can 13 details and some of the treatment may not have
14 think of that might have exacerbated this, 14 been what 1 would have done had 1 saw that
15 So this August 24th that you are 15 patient in the begirining.
16 referming to is prior to my seeing him and 1 16 S0 when you are referring back to this
17 don't know anything after I saw him that this may {17 dste August of 2006 when he came back for an .
18 have been referred to as far as was It related to 1B exacerbatlon, ] may have changed the ptan based
19 an accident or something that happened after that | 19 on information | took I 1 saw him versus what ]
20 event where let's say, you know, his car accident |20 did on that October 3rd, the first time I did the
21  was August 15, 2005 did he have ancther event 21 injection.
22 singe that time and that's what he's referring 22 So I'm not saying that that is
23 to, 1 don't know. 23 specifically what would have happened in this
24 Q. Okay. All ight. Well, when the 24 patient's care but 'm just telling you that on
25 plaintiff came to see you and I recognize that 25 this practice that we relied on mid-level
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1 providers to take the Information history wise, 1 plaintiff did he ever tell you about the
2 do an exam and then collect the lab reports and 2 April 15, 2005 motor vehicle accident?
3 then come up with an idea of what should be done | 3 A. The detalls, no. He mentioned at least
4  as in doing one of these injections, it might 4 on ong accasion that he was involved in a car
5 have been different had 1 been the one taking 5 accident but that was about the extent of how
& that Information rather than the mid-level 6 much information 1 had from him in regards to
7 provider, 7 that 1 didn't know anything specifically abaut
8 Q. 1see 8 him being hit or anything like that.
2 Okay. In short you didn't get a 9 Q. 5o during the time that you treated the
10 history from the plaintiff, you relied on the 10 plaintiff you didn't know whether he lost
11  history taken by the physician’s assistant? 11 consciousness as a result of that car accident?
12 A. That's correct. 12 A. That's comrect.
13 Q. Did you review the histories taken by 13 Q. You didn't know whether he was taken by
14 the physician assistanis? 14 ambulance?
15 A. Yes, 501 did look at the last note 15 A. Yas, 1 did not know that,
16 that the patient was seen on the August 24th 16 Q. You didn't know whether he had any
17 prior to doing the injection on October 3rd and I 17 bumps or brulses?
18 use that information to base my procedure on. 18 A. No.
19 Q. Allright. Did you ever go back in R. Did he ever tell you whether he was in
20 time back to April of 2005 to look at the any accldents before April 15, 20057
21  histories the piaintiff had provided on the * A, He didn't tell me that nor dld 1 ask S -
22 previous visits with Southwaest Medical? - - g hlm about that, el SRS B
123 ‘A Prior4o .~ on Octuber 3rdor after v 2Q. Did he evertall you about any swnptoms
+|-24 - thator-- .- - 'he had before Aprit of 200577 Loz e
25 Q. Atany time’ A, He mentioned that he did have headames
Page 34 Page 36
1 MR. PALMERC: Ohjection, vague and 1 but he told me that the headaches were something
2 ambiguous, confusing. You can answer though. 2 that came and went - they come and ga. They
3 THE WITNESS: 1 did not look at that 3 weren't something that he said he had
4 information prior to I believe even up to this 4 continuously and that was a serfous enough
5 date to be honest, 1 don't think I actually saw 5 problem that he had to seek medical treatment for
6 the specifics of that accident on October 15th, 6 the headache that he had before the accident.
7 2005 untll you presented me with the records 7 Q. You weren't aware then that he treated
8 today. 8 for migraines at Southwest Medical Associates
g {BY MR. ROGERS) Okay. 9  before April 20057
10 A. And the reason why I can tell you that 10 A. No, I was not aware of that.
11 is some of that information even though it's in 1 Q. Did the plaintff aver tell you about
12 our system in the computer is not always 12 any Injuries he had after April 15, 20057
13 accessible for various reasons or it could be 13 A. No.
14  just the simple reason that there isn't enough 14 Q. What were the plaintiff's complaints to
15 time to actually go back and check on that stuff 15 you?
16 because supposedly it was the information that we | 16 A. His main complalnt was neck and arm
17 relied on from the mid level that we took the 17 pain but he did mention he had headaches and back |
18 information to begin with, 18 pain but his chief complaint was neck pain and
19 So spedifically to answer about this 1% arm pain.
20 patient, no, 1 did not review any of the 20 Q. Which arm?
21  information that was taken at the time of the 3| A, Left.
22 accident such as October 15th, 2005 when he was | 22 Q. How far down the arm?
23 seenin the urgent care center, 1 didn't see that 23 A. He sald that It was primarily the
24 information before today. 24 shoulder blade and it went Into his upper arm so
25 Q. Okay. Inthe time that you treated the 25 shoulder to vpper arm, that was his main area of
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1 carmplaint, 1 rhizolomy-type procedure, it's more of a -- it's
2 Q. Okay. So basically the back of the 2 alittte different than a steroid effect but it
3 shaoulder around to the bicep area? 3 does work to minimize pain transmission of the
4 A. Yes. 4 nerve.
5 Q. What was his reported pain level to you 5 Q. And did you decide to attempt this
6 and for this question I want to focus an the & puised radiofrequency because the coilective
7 first time you saw him in October of 2006. 7 nerve root block provided only temporary relief?
8 A. No, the pain level was not something 1 ] A. Right, because if he had 2 better
9 asked him about at that visit. They may have O result from the sterold affect 1 would have been
10 asked that question at the surgery center toget |10 more, you know, likely to continue thal course of
11 a baseline level of pain but 1 did not 11  treatment where we just did the transforaminal
12 specificelly ask him what his pain jevel was when | 12 epidural steroid injection but because he got -
13 Idid the injection so on October 3rd, 2006 when |13  only the immediate affect from the iocal
14 he had the injection with me he did not report 14 anesthetic that we infected with the steroid at
15 nor did I record a pain level. He may have given | 15 the time in the surgery center and It wore off
16 it to the pre-op nurse prior to the procedure. 16 after the initial steroid ware off, 1 figured it
17 Q. All right. Look at the October 11 17 s going to be necessary to do something more ko
1B  nofe. 18 allow the nerve to decrease the transmission of
15 A, He rated It seven to eight out of ten. 15 pain ather than with just treating him with :
20 Q. Was he rating it at seven to eight ot 20 steroid so that's why I elected to oHer him that
21 of ten pre or post selective nerve roof block? - 21 treatment the pulsed radiofrequency.:© | - K
122 ...-.A- This would have been that.day thathe |22 - Q. Now, the plaintiff seemed to Have-hgd~ - § = -
{23 - saw.me on October-11th: - So:this.is:after the - +[23 .a — well, two months or moreof pain tefief from . o}
24 injection was done so this'isabout’a week < a |24  the C3-4 epidural that Dr. Seibdl did'ci 677706, |+
25 little more than a week after the injection is 25 Did you consider going back & doing epidurals? - |
Page 3B Page 40 l
1 done that he's raling the pain at that fevel. 1 A. It's certainly something you consider :
2 Q. And at the same time he's telling you 2 if you had an improvement from the procedure but |.
3 that the injection provided 50 ta 75 percent 3 when1 did the procedure, that selective nerve
4 relief? 4 root block, 1 was trying to be more spedfic than
5 A. And what he's referring to is the 5 the C3-4 transforaminal epidural and the reason
& Immediate period of time following the Injection | & why 1 was being more specific is 1 was trying to
7 on October 3rd, not that day that he sawme on | 7 numb one specific nerve root and not necessarily
8 October 11th. What he's relating Is tha 8 spread the medicine in the general area at that
9 information that he experienced this relief 9 level and possibly involve more than just that
10 immediately following the injection on October | 10 nerve root Itself.
11 3rd. 11 So my approach was to try to be as
12 Q. And then his pain returmed? 12 specific as I could be to say this is the exact
13 A, Yes, 13 level, this is the exact nerve and if it were,
14 Q. And then you discussed was it 14 then that would be a more specific treatment than
15 rhizatomy? 15 doing the C3-9 transforaminal epidural.
16 A. No, it was actually a pulsed 16 Q. Right. No, I get that that’s why you
17 radiofreguency -- it's a propedure that we warm |17 attempted the selective nerve root block but did
18 the nerve baslcally ko a temperature of about 40 [ 18 you consider daing the epidural before suggesting
19 degrees, 41 degrees ~ actually up to 43 but 19 the radiofrequency?
20 usually below 43 degrees Celsius and that will | 20 A. Right, and the answer to that question
21 affect how the nerve transmits information so it |21 s when 1 did the selective nerve root block 1
27 tends to quiet the nerve down by pulsing It and |22 did put steroid in that level as well so not only
23  warming it to a 43 degrees Celsius temperature, | 23  did ] do a selective nerve root block itself |
24 Q. Okay, 24  did the steroid injection as in C3-4
25 A. 50 it's not an abiated procedure or |25 trapsforaminal epldural at the same time.
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1 Q. 1see. Angd also the radiofrequency? 1 See, sometimes I'll ask providers that

2 A Yes, 2 same question and they will say, well, 1 might

3 Q. 5o you did the three - 3 teli the patient that a zero means no pain and

4 A. For ong, yes. 4 ten is unbearable and nine would be something

5 Q. Okay. Gotit. 5 like childbirth. 1n other wards, they are giving

6 A, 50 ] think that the pain problem was 6 the patient some sort of loose guideline. Da you

7 starting to progress as in it wasn't becoming as 7 ever do that with your pafients?

8 responsive to that bype of treatment because it's | § A. The first time I see a patient 1 will

9 not that 1 didn't do what he originally had good 9 generally use some kind of scale and put some
10 results with, 1 did thiat in addition to the 10 reference to it like you've described so what |
11 specific treatment which was the selective nerve | 11 usually tell patients is zero Is no pain, ten is
12 root block and the pulsed radiofregquency. 12 the most severe pain that you could possibly
13 Q. Goth 13 experience, five is sort of moderate or medium
14 Now, when the plaintiff was treating 14 level of pain and 1 say where is your pain in
15 with you, was he disabled? 15 this scale and that's pretty much how 1 do it.

16 A. No. 16 Q. Igetit

17 Q. What do you generally take a pain 17 You don't want to lead your patient,

18 rating of seven to eight of ten to mean? 18 you just want to leave it up to them to give you

15 A, It's severe and It is definitely a 19 their subjective ~-

20 distraction to their every day living so they may | 20 A. Correct.
121 not be able to function fuIIy based on.that level |21 Q. - Independent response'-'
i1 22 of pain. RTINS ¥ 7 A Yes, : : -

23 .Q: Do-you do anything to translate the - ;23 - Qi Dkay. Butat the time that the RPN [
1 24 - numbers seven to eight of ten into the terms you'[ 24" - plaintff was treating wlth you he:was.still - :

25 just described so the patient understands, okay, {25 working? .

Page 42 Page 44

1 i1 put my paln level at these numbers this is 1 A Yes, I believe he was working. '

2 how it will be translated by my doctors? 2 Q. Do you know what kind of work he was

3 A. No, and the reason is it's a subjective 3 doing?

4 rating and If you were to try to explain it in 4 A, No, Ldont.

5 the terms ] just gave to you on how disabling it 5 Q. Take a look at the notes and see IF

6 is to somebody's function every day, it Isn't 6 anything in there refreshes your memory on It.

7 something as subjective, it's more something that 7 A. Bus management full time.

8 the physidan is trying to put into some kind of 8 Q. You mean business management?

9 relative scale that is different for a patient. 9 A, 1t's b-u-s management 50 It couid mean ;
10 So 2 patient gives you a self report of 10 business management but it says b-u-s management. |
11 this and the physidian is giving this idea of 1l MR, PALMERO: More like business :
12 what that level really means to them as in this 12 management.

13 s an observatlon and that's different o you 13 Q. {BY MR. ROGERS) 1 recently took the
14 have to have a subjective pain rating and if you 14  plaintiff's deposition, his testimony that he

15 want to make some kind of observation, you can 15 works as a carpet and flooring cleaner.

16 make that in your physical examination and then 16 MR, PALMERQ: 1 think he owns his own
17 make an impression based on what your overall -- |17  business or at some point remember he bought the
18 you know, putting it together with their pain 18 business.

19 rating subjectively along with their actual 15 MR, ROGERS: He owns it.

20 physical ability along with what they are able to 20 MR, PALMERO: He may do some of the
21  do at work and then you can make an impression to | 21 work but he had his son and some employees
22 decide if they need more treatment or if they 22  warking, toa.

23 need, you know, a disability rating or some ather 23 Q. (BY MR, ROGERS) True, true.

24 king of assessment ar an evaluation. 24 But in other words, hls Isn't just a

25 Q. Isee 25 desk job, he's warking as well as managing this
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1 business. 1 So it's kind of like a habit. They
2 Now, did you do a physical exam of the 2 sy, okay, pain seven or eight instead of saying,
3 plaintiff? 3 well, today it's twa or three but usually it's a
4 A, Not initially. I may have examined him 4 sevenfeight. For them It's very routine to come
5 on some of the follow ups and done a spedific 5 up to the number that they fix in their mind that
6 exam targeled to & neurplogical assessmentbut I { &  this is how they feel averall, this is their Kind
7 didnt do a fuil physkeal so T would say, no, 1 7 of overall level that they feal in the day as
8 have not done a {ull physical examination on him, | 8 oppased te what is it at this exact moment when 1
9 The most 1 may have done is just limited 9. saw that patient al that time at eight &.m. on
10 neurological assessment. I think on January - 10 Januvary 10th,
11 onJanuary 10th ] did a neurological exam on him, | 11 So I don't take that too seriousty but
12 Q. what did you find In the neurological 12 spexifically your question was does that coincide
13 exam? 13 with that level of pain, no. The answer is at
14 A. That basically he had some deficit on 14  this partlcuiar time his physical exam was
15 the C4 dermatome bul otherwise it seemed to be ] 15  relatively normal and his pain level was reported
16 impraving and thal was the overall assessment 16 at that high level of seven to eight and I would
17 that [ made on that visit on January 10th, 17 not say based on that there's a consistency but
18 Q. Reflecting on that same note there's a 18 I'mtelling you the real thing of how patients
19 section of your rgport entitled physical exam and | 19 will tell you a certain level and it's kind of
20 in there it reads no acute distress, exhibits no 20 fixed in their mind that this is what they
121 significant pain behaviors, he-had no tendemess |21 experience and 1 don't take It too seridusly. :
|22 - to:palpation, he had 1 believe full cervical 22 And I would say in thisparticular - <. - p - &
+] 23 range of miotion without pain:s. © . = s G 23 patient that it may not be that he really-hatl.the - «f* - ° i
[24 oA CRight - ommm e ©1 124 seven to eight level of paln at-that time when T -
25 Q. And axial foading did not illicit a 25 put that score in there as a recorded number but
Page 16 Page 48
1 pain response, 1 he — you know, he's not somebody 1 would say is
2 A. Right, 2 out of the ordinary to glve you a higher number
3 Q. Despite thase findings on physical 3 than what they are exactly experiencing at the
4 exam, his subjective pain rating was again seven 4 moment you are seeing them in that office right
5 toeight of ten. 5 then and there.
B A. Right. 6 Q. Okay. Well, at any time while the
7 Q. ls there an inconsistency between the 7 plaintiff was seeing you did he have less than
B subjective compigint and your findings? 8 Rl cervical range of motion?
g A, Yes. 9 A. And I would have to say 1 don't
10 Q. Whatisit? 10 remember if there was one spedfic ime that he
1 A. That basically all these things in the 11 might have had less. The one that [ can see
12 physical exam are pretty normal and the findings 12 there documentad is that he had a full range but
13 of having a slightly decreased dermatomal (4 13 whether or not he had an actual limitation on 3
14 level is minor and would not extplain on a 14 previous visit 1 don't know.
15 physical how much pain he's reporting, 15 Q. Well, take the time to look through
16 So there is an inconsistency between 16 your records 5o that you an answer that guestion
17 the level of paln and the physical examination at 17 based on what is found in the reports,
1B that time but I could tell you that a lot of 18 A. Okay. Here's another thing 1'% tell
19 these patients come Into the office and they glve 19 you about that particular practice. Sometimes
20 you a number and they tell you that number based | 20 you'll notice that there's no significant change
21 onit's easier just to blurt that number put 21 and no significant change means they didn't have
22 because they say it on each visit rather than 22 time to really do an exam so in actvality it may
23 giving you a true assessment of what they reafly 23 not have been that an exam was performed on that |
24 feel at the exact instantaneous moment you ask 24  vislt aven though there's no significant change,
25 the guestion. 25 501 could just tell you that there's a
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1 ot of people that are szen in thase type of 1 April 15th, 2005 to the January 10th, 2007, 1
2 dinics at Southwest Medical and thete's not & 2 found no significant physica!l exam findings to
3 Iot of attention to detail that might or should 3 indicate that there was anything different than
4 have been followed so I'm just telling you that 4 January 10th, 2007.
5 there may have been a time that there's 5 Q. Okay. Now, when the plaintiff first
6 limitation and there may have been a report that 6 presented to you you said that he did have left
7 says no significant change and that may not be 7 arm symptoms, night?
B true Is what I'm teling you. 8 A. Correct.
9 Q. Okay. 0 Q. Now, did you recognize as you went
10 A. I cannot find any documented limitation 10 through the Southwest Medical records that that
11 of his cervical renge of motion on any of these 11 was a fairly recent event? In other words, not
12  reports that ] fiipped through with the clinic 12 very long before he came 10 see you that he did
13 dated back to as far as May 10th, 2006 up to the 13 not have those symptoms before that time?
14  fast of June of 2007, 14 MR. PALMERQ: QObjection, vague and
15 Q. well, can you find anywhere in the 15 ambiguous.
16 records from Southwest Medica! where the 16 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) You know what, I'm
17 plaintff was found ypon physical exam to have 17 golhg to ask the question again because it's not
18 eny -- anything other than the findings that you 18 going to read well on the record.
19 reached on January 18, 2007 which include, number | 19 Did you see that the plaintiff did not
20 one, no acute distress; number two, no tenderness | 20 complaln of arm symptoms until right about the
21 Inthe cervical spine and; number three, nomal 21 time that he started treating with the pain--
22 and painiess cervical range of motion; number 22 management group at Southwest’ Medical? - T
. |23.. four, no pain response to axialloading; number - . 123 MR. PALMERO: Same objectiof, -You:can' e
24  five, nomal-motor-exam; number six, normal deep |24 answer, ' Lo TR s TR e
25 tendon reflexes; number seven, intact grip 25 THE WITNESS: He complained of left
Fage 50 Page 52 {.
1 strength and, number eight, intact sensory exam? | 1 shoulder pain or trapezial pain-but did not ‘ :
2 MR. PALMERO: Objection, vague and 2 mention anything going into his amn as the bicep
3 ambiguous, overbroad. You can answer. 3 area 50 it is somewhat different after seeing
4 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS} Now, with that, 4 pain management and it also may be specifically
5 Doctar, take your time. Just look through it 5 we asked him about it whereas before he may not
& all. 1just want to understand whether there was 6 have mentioned it of maybe they did not pick up
7 achange in the plaintiff's presentation on 7 onit as a general provider may have seen there’s
8 physical exam throughout the time he treated at 6 a dermatomal distribution meaning there was
9 Southwest Medical. 9 something releted 1o the nerve going into that
10 MR. PALMERO: Same objection and 10 part of the body and that would have meant
11 compound. 11 something different once he got that information
12 (Thereupon a recess was taken 12 because we asked him or prompied him about it as
13 after which the following 13 opposed to what is your problem and he came up
14 proceedings were had:) 14  with, well, my shoulder or trapezius huts.
15 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) Let's yo back on. 15 Q. Okay. What I'm referring 1o actually
16 The question before we went off the 16 Isif you go back to the visits after April 15,
17 record, Doctor, was whether there was any 17 2005
18  positive findings on physica} exam throughout the |18 A, Chkay.
19 time that the plaintiff treated at Southwest 19 Q. Which again is the date of the car
20 Medical Associates that were different from those |20  accident with my client.
21 reporied on January 10th. 23 A, Right, yes,
22 A, 2007. 22 Q. That on the follow-up visits all the
23 Q. And after Ipoking at the records what 23 way up through October 18, 2005 so the span of
24 did you find? 24 six months, T don't see any record of neck or arm
25 A. After 1 reviewed everything from 25 comgplaints -- I'm sorry, October 6th, 2005.
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1 MR. PALMERO: What were the dates 1 Q. Okay.
2 again? 2 A. Sowhen you ask zbout arm Spedifically
3 MR. ROGERS: April 15 to October 6. 3  asin bicep area ! cannot explain that but If you
q MR. PALMERD: 1 think there were 4 are asking about why s he having trapezial pain
5 complaints the first day, 5 1 would say it's possibly due to compression of
6 THE WITNESS: Yeah, on April 15th he & that {4 nerve root at C3-4 from the facet
7 did specifically mention neck and left shoulder 7 hypertrophy.
8 pain, 8 Q. On the subject of the MRI studies,
9 Q. {BY MR. ROGERS}) Right, and if ] didn't 9  which one did you review or which ones, if more
10 make [t dear, that may be my faul{, 10 than one.
11 A, But following April 15th. 11 A, 1did see a copy aof this report as
12 Q. My question Is following that date up 12 well. Let me see it ] can find it again. Okay.
13 through April 15th I don't think there's a record |13 One of these MRIs are dated March 22nd, 2006.
14 of neck or arm complaints, 14 Q. Right, and actually you'll see that the
15 A.  Well, on October 6, you are excluding 15 findings on that MRI basically are exactly what
16 that date? 16 you just said your opinion was.
17 Q. That's the first date that T see it 17 A. Yeah, -
18 after the Aprli 15 visit. 18 Q. Naw, did you see the September 24, 2007 [
19 A. Okay. So like on May 26th, 2005, 19 MRI?
20 Q. There's May 12, there's Mav 23, 20 A. No. Let me see if ] can find that
21 May 26 -- 21 report. That would have been after’ saw him. 1
22 A. -Ch, yes, Dkay May 26, I'm |ook|ng at {22 wmean ] would have never seen him, Iwould not-
23 that:right now.” It:doesn't mention anythmg 23 . have seen that because ] Was o longer: emp!oyed
24 about his neck or shoulder, it just says’ 24 "by Southwest Medical so T’ wasnt seémg hlm :
25 headaches and then on May 12th It s2y5 ocapital 25 Q. Okay.
Page 34 Page S6 |:
1 headache. Yes, it doesn't mention any neck ar 1 A. Do you have a copy of that if 1 can
2 shoulder on that date of May 12th. On May 4th, 2 look at? Here it is, is It September 24th?
3 cecipital headache, it does not mention any neck 3 Q. Yes
4  of shoulder. 4 A. MRI cervical spine.
L} So that's correct, between those 5 Q. Is there 3 difference in the findings
€& dates-- an Aprl 15th: So the following visit 6 in the September 2007 MRI than compared to the
7 he didn't say anything about & neck pain or @ 7 March 20067
B shoulder paln up untit October 6Gth, 8 A. Yes, ] mean clearly because it's
9 Q. Right. 9 basically saying that it is a normal MRI, there's
10 A, Okay. 10 negative changes of the cervical spine It says
11 Q. Do you know what was ceusing the arm 11 here. [t reads that C2-3, C3-4, C4-5, C5-5,
12 symptoms? 12 C6-7, C7-T1 are unremarkable without evidence of
13 A. It's my impression from reviawing his 13 disc herniation or spinal stenosis. There's no
14  information and his MRI findings that it may have {14 foraminal stenosis.
15 been due to a facet hypertrophy at C3-4 causing |15 So looking at this copy, you would say
16 some compression of the C4 nerve root, that's my |16 everything locks normal.
17 impression and that would go afong with the 17 Q. Well, in the year and a half since the
18 trapezial pain. 18 March 2006 MRI, can those conditions observed
19 C4 does not usually involve the biceps, 19 heal?
20 that muscle Is typically involved with C5 and so 20 A. Sometimes you can get improvement in
21 I an't explain the biceps being involved because | 21 MRI findings so the answer is yes, you can get @
22 itdoesn't seem to be that C5 has any involvement | 22  disc herniation that may no longer appear to be
23  asfar as there being compression on the nerve 23 herniated with time. 1t may actually normalize
24 root either by a disc or facet hypertrophy or 24 or heal so It can happen but typically facet
25 some kind of degenerative change. 25 hypertrophy and degenerative changes like that
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1 dan't necessarily get better and I would say it 1 problems as a result of these kind of findings so
2 would be unlikely to find one get better over 2 that it may not be symptomatic is what 1'm
3 time. 3 saying.
4 Q. Okay, ] Q. Right. The opinion that you expressed
5 A, So that would be spmething | would like 5 earlier about the cause of pain being the facet
6 Lo see the two actual MRJ -- 6 hypertrophy, was that basad on the MRI and the
7 Q. Flims? 7 complaints of pain into the trapezius?
8 A, Yes, as opposed to just reading a 8 A, Itry to put the two things together
9 report. 9 and say how cen I explain based on this patient's
10 . Okay. 10 complaint and the MRI findings on what is the
11 A. 1 mean this could be within a certain 11 most likely reason and this is what I came up
12 wariation about the radiologist, there may be 2 12 with so putting the two things together is why 1
13 little different view of one impression from one 13 made that impression.
14 radiologist versus another because it was read by { 14 Q. Okay. Al right. Well, we covered
15 two different radiologists, too. 15 your October 3, 2006 injection and we briefly
16 Q. Now, can the conditions seen on the 16 touched on the October 11, 2006 plan for the
17  March 22, 2006 MR], the one that appearsto be |17 pulsed radiofrequency.
18 consistent with your opinion about the cause of | 18 A. Right.
19 the symptoms, can those conditions be caused by | 19 Q. And we didn't discuss the plaintlffs
20 something other than a trauma? 20 response to that pulsed mdlofrequencv, what you
A Yes. <121 called the three for one. .
| 22 Q. What-can it be caused by? -~ |22. . A. Okay. T R EE N
- A’ Degererative changes-in the spiné can: - [23: .-"'Q. What wasthe’ response? S A A A
24 lead to these kind of findingson hisexamas . {24 'A. Are we'talking about:lanuary 1Dth
25 well as complaints-which has nothing to do with {25 20077
Page 5B Page 60
1 an accident or could have been due to something | 1 Q. Actually the follow-up recard I have ‘
2 unrelated to that specific acddent or he could 2 after October 11 is the — oh, no, you ara right. _
3 be just bomn with that and it may have nothingto| 3  There was a follow up on November B ang then the |
4 do with an accident at all. 4 procedure was done on November 18, correct?
5 Q. Okay. Would it be falr to say that 5 A. Comert, yes,
6 given Mr. Simao's age that the findings in the 6 Q. Yes, let's go I guess now to Janwuary
7 March 22, 2006 MRI are consistent with 7 and there I guess we'll find what his response o
8 age-appropriate degeneration? 8 the injection was, right?
9 MR, PALMERO: OCbjection, vague and 9 A. Right. Sohe did find it beneficial,
10 ambiguous as fo form. You can answer. 10 It did seem to help during that period of two
11 THE WITNESS: 1 think that these kinds 11 months from that pulsed radiofrequency procedure
12 of findings can be found in anyone in his age 12 and -- and the cther things that we tried to
13 group and not necessarily be a physical problem |13 treat him with which included the antidepressant
14 as in causing these kind of findings that we find | 14 called Cymbalts did not seem to make any
15 with this particular patient. 15 difference one way or the other and he has not
16 5o, in other words, if you scan a 16 had any problems with the migraines or requiring
17 hundred people as this gentleman 40 plus age 17 the usage of Fioninal,
18 group you'll find these kind of findings pretty 18 So actually on that last January 10th
19 typically. 1 mean maybe in about 15 percent of |19 visit that was the one that had the physical exam
20 the people you scan they'll come up with these | 20 which basically sald that it was normal, that
21 Xind of findings that this March 22nd, 2006 21 there wasn't any significant findings on it.
22 findings show. But out of those 15 percent of 22 Q. Okay. And at that time your plan was
23 the people that come up with this kind of 23 to foliow up in three months?
24  evaluation on the MRI there may only be one or | 24 A. Uh-huh.
25 two percent of people that have any kind of 25 Q. And I see that he returned March 22,
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1 2007. 1 hypertrophy, it may have nothing 1o do with that.
2 A. Right. 2 1t may just be he's got chronic tension in his
3 Q. what happened at that visit? 3 neck and, therefore, those muscles became trigger
q A. So it was a little sooner than three 4 points. So the short answer is 1 don't Know.
5 months but not unusual in the sense that 5 Q. Okay.
6 typically these injections or these procedures -- & A. The description of why it may be is
? 1 should say the pulsed radiofrequency can last 7 because of that reason though is that he may have
B two or three months so that it's not surprising 8 these polnts underyling the problem and it just
9 that it wore off after two months. Actually it 9 became more dear to him that these were becoming
10 lasted longer than two months because it was done | 10 2 problem because the other pain was gone.
11 in November so it was really quite good actually. 11 Q. lsee. All right. So you gave him the
12 Q. It was actually four months? 12 trigger point injections?
13 A. Yeah. 13 A. And prescribed some pain medications.
14 Q. So what happened on the March 22 visit? 14 Q. And told him to foliow up?
15 A. On March 22nd he said that basically he 15 A. Come back in twa months so he did come
16 wants to try to repeat It, that procedure, the 16 back in two months on June 4th, 2007 and he said
17 pulsed rediofrequency since it did work and if he 17 he stopped the pain medication because of side
1B didn't have any benefit e would consider having 18 effects. Usually i’s because of nausea or
19 surgery to fix the problem but he didn't really 19 constipation or being confused, that's bypically
20 wantto have surgery so we went ahead and 20 why people will stop and ] think that's probably
21 scheduled the pulsed radiofrequency procedure 21  what he was experiencing, some or all of these = -~ o0
22 again and that was on March 27th, 2007, 22 symploms, and he pretty much knew what to ddias SRR
23 . 'Q. All right. -And what was:the--.. 23 far as trying to do physical exercises bécause he ©. '
24  plaintiff's response to that repeat? =~ - .. 24 didn't want to go back to physiéal tHerapy and
25 A. He was seen In fallow up op Apsil 9th, 25 the idea was to go ahead and schedule a repeat
Page 62 Page 64 |
1 2007 and It improved his left shoulder a2nd 1 since it worked well and it was starting to wesar
2 tapezia! area. He rated his pain at three out 2 of.
3 of ten instead and now he spedfically stated a 3 Q. Repeat the --
4 very discreet area of pain along the left megdial 4 A. Pulsed radicfrequency left C4, yes,
5 scapula and paravertebral area at C2 but I felt 5 Q. Okay. And that was done --
§ that that was unrefated to the C4 procedure that 6 A, June 12th.
7 we did the pulsed radiofrequency, that it was 7 Q. What was the plaintiffs response to
8 more of 3 muscle problem as in 2 trigger point. 8 the June 12 injection?
9 Q. Okay. What was your plan after 9 A. According to the follow-up note it was
10 examining him? 10 better and supposedly according to this follow-up
11 A. Well, we did go ahead and do the 11 phone cal It was 20 to 3D percent better on the
12 trigger paint injection on that visit and 1 was 12 3une 13th and then he was seen [t looks like
13 going to go ahead and give him some medication to | 13 June 18th he was complaining of four to five out
14 take care of other break-through pain he may have | 14 of ten neck and shouider pain on the left and it :
15 been experiencing besides that specific C4 15 was decided that because the pain was coming back ;
16 procedure pain or trapezial pain. 16 and, you know, he didn't want to keep doing these |
17 Q. Do you know what caused that musde 17 every two or three months that he would consider
18 pain? 18 having surgery done so that's when Dr. McNulty's
19 A. Sometimes it can be just by the fact 19 office was called back and he did have trigger
20  that you relieve the other more significant 20 polnt injection it looks like as well on that
21 intense pain that it comes out. It may have been | 21 vislt, June 18th, 2007,
22 there all long but he just didn’t notice it 22 Q. Did you ever see him afier the
23 becavse the other pain was so much stronger. 23 June 15th referral to McNuity?
24 So T don't know if it was anything to 24 A. 1thought I sew him in August before 1
25 do with the initial impression of the C34 facet 25 left and I don't see the note from that and so
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1 Tm not sure if he made it or not but 1 thought 1 1 enough that he didn't want to keep on doing
2 saw him before I left so as far as the recordsgo | 2 injections or teke medications and he wanted to
3 it stops there. 3 try to get a fix and 1 said, wel}, the only
4 Q. Okay. 4 chance there may be for a fix is surgery but
5 A. But I thought I had him scheduted there | S agaln it still may not take care of the problem
& for the |ast day 1 was supposed to be there or 6 5o that's what I did explain to him and exactly
7 the week before, 1 can’t remember that exactly 7 what he wound up doing I dan't know but 1 did
8 but 1 thought T had him scheduled for one meore | 8 give him the option of going to see Dr. McNulty
9 visit hefare 1 left in August. Do you have any 9 to see if there was a surgery that could fix the
10 more records? 10 problem.
11 MR. PALMERD: That's what I have. 11 Q. Okay. Now, at the outset of the
12 THE WITNESS: Okay. 12 deposltion you commented that you've done
13 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) What can be doneto |13 discograms before but only on the lumbar spine.
14 repair facet hypertrophy? 14 A Yes.
15 A. Nothing to repair it. Surgically you 15 Q. Why not on the cervical spine?
16 would basically remove it. You would take that | 16 A. There's a significant amount of risk in
17 facet out so you just cut the bone away and then | 17 doing a cervical discography In that the spinai
1B you may or may not fuse that level depending on | 18 cord is so much doser to that disc as opposed to
19 how much you have to remove and what the 19 the lumbar lsvel.
20 underlying disc is. I the disc Is also buiging, 20 Anatomically there's much less room for
21  they would typically do a diskectomy and remove | 21 error to put a needle in that-space.and Ididn't
22 that-facet and also do a fusion, < - 0+ 22 -get a lot of training in-my fellowshtp program-on }
23 Q. Okay. .. ..123 doing that specific proceduirenor did'T seek, '
24 A. That gets intq the orthoped:c surgery 24 additional course or seminkr work to! by'toget oo
125 orspine surgery specialty which I don't really 25 that training. So I didn't feel that I would be-
Page 66 Page 68 |
1 have any expertise in but that's typicatly what 1 qualified to do that procedurs,
2 s done. 2 Q. Are you aware of any studies that
3 Q. Have you ever participated in a surgery 3 conclude that cervical discography Is less
4 in which part of the facat Is rernoved without 4 reliable than lumbar discography?
5 fusing the disc? 5 A, My pariner or the director, Dr. Selbel,
[ A. No, I've not seen that ever done -- 6 had the opiniton that there was less fikeliness to
7 Q. Okay, 7 have a correlation between doing a discography in
8 A, -- where they take just the facet out. 8 the neck and having an adequate result to )
9 1 think it creates some instability in the neck 9 indicate that surgery was a better option based
10 and, therefore, they feel obligated to fuse it, 10 on that result.
11 Q. Okay. As of the last time you saw the 11 So he did not belleve that we should be
12 plaintiff, what was your opinion about his future 12 doing cervical discography for the specific
13  treatment? 13 purpose of identifying levels for surgery to fuse
14 A. 1warned him that if he has surgery it 14 because there was lack of evidence to support
15 still may be a problem for him as in the pain, 15 that those levels they have identified on
16 that it may not completely relieve the pain and 1 16 cervical discography correlated with the levels
17 told him that I looked at his MR1 and noticed 17 that should be done surgically and long-term
18 that there were these findings but 1 again 1B Dbenefit from that result being that they
19 explained to hirn the same thing 1 told to you how | 19 identified the correct level and the patient
20 these can be normal findings for people and not 20 didn't have 2 problem anymore after they fused
21 necessarily be problems and the best thing he 21  that level,
22 rould do is work through what pain he had rather | 22 Q. Right. Are you aware of any similar
23 than seeking a surgical option and he agreed toa |23 opinions in studies published by ASA?
24 certain extent. 24 A. I don't specifically read that
25 But then again he thought he was young 25  literature anymore 50 ] don't know those studies
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Page 62 Page 71
1 well enough to say yes, 1 know that's true, 1 based on that epidural?
2 Q. Are you aware of risk factors that a 2 A. There's two ways to look at that. One
3 discegrapher should teke into account hefore 3 way is to say it should be an independent
4 performing a procedure? 4 provider that is uninfluenced by the outcome of
5 A. Risk factors as in overall risk for S that particular treatment modality as an epidural
6 having a procedure or speclfically just for & or discography or what have you.
7 discagraphy? 7 Other side of that is that the
8 Q. For discography? B orthopedic surgeon may know that patient bettey
' A. Well, you wouldn't want to do § than anyone else and il they are able to get the
10 discography on a patient that had a metastatic 10  information directly based on their intervention
11 vertebral-type tesion because that could 11 of dolng that epidural or discography, that may
12 potentially cause paraplegia, you could gel a 12 be a better indication of whether they should do
13 bleed In that level If you stick the needle ciose 13 the surgery to begin with or not. They may have
14 to that level that has cancer in it 5o that would 14 3 better appreciation of the result is what I'm
15  be one risk factor that you would ientify and 15 saying based on their doing the procedure than
16  wouldnt do discography. 16 having an independent person da the procedure.
17 Q. Okay. _ 17 So that's the two sides and if you are
18 A. The other risk factor may be bleeding 1B  asking my opinion about which way is the better
19  where somebody has a bleeding disorder and cause | 19 way o do It I would have to say have an
20 that — again could wind up causing paraplegia or 20 independent person that specializes in doing
21 guadriplegla because someone could bleed into the |21 -those procedures is a better way to do it thantor :* | - . ;
.22 -spine and cause lack of circulation in the spinal 22 have 3 person that may havedn igfluenee of doipgs{: '+ -~ .~
23 : cord so that would-be anotherfactor that you 23 it because it may be v_iewed:'-ééfﬁnan‘tiallv (1) R TR S
24 -wouldn't do discography.. “ - e - o 24 thelr advantage to do the procedure Reelf
25 A local infection in the 2rea that yau 25 because then they can justify them doing the
Page 70 Page 72 |.
1 are planning to do the discography would be 1 surgery.
2 another risk factor that you wouldn't do It 2 Q. Is there any code or rule of ethics in
3 Some kind of skin or abscess at the back where 3 the medical community that would prohibit a
4 that leve! is being targeted. 4 surgeon from doing his own epidural to base his
5 Q. Let me redirect your attention to 5 dedsion?
6 issues more akin [o the case at hand. 6 A. I'm not aware of anything like that as
7 Are you aware of any studies of false 7 far as a code of ethics in medicine that says
B positives among people involved in litigation 8§ theycan'tdolit.
8 when it comes to discography? 9 Q. Okay.
10 A. From what 1 know In general about pain 10 A, 1know thal lately Dr. McNuity has been
11  management I would say that there is a 11 doing some of his own discographies and epidural
12 significant amount of secondary gain Issues that 12 injections and facel joint injections and that
13 can come into these kinds of cases where you do |13 topic was brought up but that was the response
14 have a lawsuit and doing that procedure in 14 that he may know those patients better than the
15 support of doing surgery or something efse to get {15 person that he refers them to to do those kind of
16 some kind of settlerent or some kind of outcome | 16 procedures and they don't always do exactly what
17 in favor of that patient's case, yes, | am 17 he asks thern to do as far a5 the kind of
18 familiar with some of those studies. 18 procedure that's ordered.
19 Q. Okay. Were you doing discograms back | 19 Q. Okay. All right. Now, I've asked you
20 at the time you were treating the plaintiff? 20 to look at the medical records that Southwest has
21 A.  Yes, in the lumbar area. 21 and just so you know, since the plaintiff treated
22 Q. 1Is there any concern in the medical 22 with you he went with Dr. McNulty for a time and
23 community with surgeons doing their own 23 then left him and went to Dr. Grover, Do you
24 epidurals? 1 mean 2 surgeon doing an epidural on | 24 know Dr. Grover?
25 a patient and then making a surgical decision 25 A. 1 know -- T don't know him personally
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Page 73 Page 75
1 butIknow of him. 1 surgical procedure.
2 Q. Ohkay. 2 Q. And have you already given the bases
3 A. 5o 1 have not done anesthesla for him 3 for that opimion or is there something you would
4 but I know he's a spine surgeon and | know — 4 add to that in addition to what you already said?
5 T've seen him around. S A. 1think that having the benefit of
6 Q. Okay. And the plaintlHf testified & knowing that this is a legal matter now would
7 recently that he isnt certain what his future 7 even more likely give -- would allow me to give
B plans are but that he wilt consider undergoing B the opinion that it would probably be in his best
9 neck surgery and Dr. Graver has found that the 9 interast not 1o have surgery because 1 think that
10 plaintiff Is a candidate for a two-level cervical 10 there are some secandary-type gains that are
11 fusion at C3-4 and C4-5, So at the time we are 11 being sought by considering surgery in this
12 uncertain where the plaintiff is golng to go, 12 particular legal case.
13 Now, based on the treatment that you've 13 It aimaost validates some kind of injury
14 provided and you may have already answered this, 14 that took place as opposed to, well, this may
15 would you have any concerns about recommending 2 | 15 have been something that he had all long and has
16 two-level fusion t this patient being treated? 16 nothing to do with this accldent that taok place
17 A. Yes, because if that MR] that you 17 on Aprt 15, 2005.
18 showed the result for, September 2007, I think i i8 Q. On that front I want to ask you some
19 was September 24th, that being 2 normal MRI would | 15  questions about the incident Itself. Do you know
20 o me mean that there may be some question asto | 20 anything about the car accident?
21 - whether or not-there really is any kind'of . 21 A. The detsils, no, other than him being -~ ™
22 pathology that:can be remedied with surgery but - {22  struck from behind like it said In the noté on~ -
23 “agaln, there may be soma interpretation © | 23 : April 15th, 1 don't know anything more than that.
‘29 differences betwaen one radiologist and another po| Q. Okay. Now, the records reflact the =~ “7n o=
25 and without seeing the films myself I couldnt 25 property damage to my client’s car was roughly
Page 74 Page 76 |.
1 make an opinion like that but just going by what 1 %780 and consisted of a bent bumper,
2 records you have shown me I would have some 2 MR. PALMERO: Just for the record there
3 reservation about saying that that would be an 3 was some — we may not want to get into it just
4  appropriate surgery. 4 5o it's not misleading remember the cage behind
5 Q. Now, you testified earlier about 5 his cor.
6 concemns you had about surgery in 2 more generic | 6 MR. RQOGERS: T'lIt get into it, I'm
7 sense involving this plaintff and your 7 talking about my dient's car here.
8 conversation with him near the end of treatment. | 8 MR. PALMERO: Ckay,
g  Would those same concerns that you expressed to | 9 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) And I'll add to this
10 your patient apply to this two-level fusion -- 10 and include what plaintiff's counsel just __
1 A Yes, 11 mentioned. Now, the records further demonstrate |,
12 Q. -- as it would to any procedure? 12 that the plaintiff reports that nothing was '
13 A. Especially this specific patient and 13 broken in his car, na glass or anything like
14 the information that we've gone over, 1 would 14 that, that he didn't lose consciousness, that he
15 definitely have a reservation on recommending 15 hit his head on a cage behind his seat in the car
16 surgery to him. 16 but the medical records show no signs of a scalp
17 Q. Okay. There's some patients who 17 hematoma.
18 medical providers deem to be more appropriately | 18 MR. PALMERO: T'll object as far as
19 handled by ongoing pain management. 19 misstating what the medical records are saying
20 A. Right. 20  but you can answer.
21 Q. When you last saw the plaintiff, what 21 Q. (BY MR. ROGERS) All right. There's a
22 was your opinion about the appropriate future 22 (T of the head taken that was normal.
23 care? 23 A.  Righl.
24 A. 1 think that pain management would 24 Q. You saw that --
25 probably be a better option for him than havinga |25 A. 1 saw that.

19 (F;a'geS 73 to 76)
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1 Q. - in the Southwest records and then a 1 1 think in the first presentation in
2 follow-up brain MRI1 that was normal? 2 April and maybe even through May or later up
3 A. Yes, ! saw both those records. 3 untit maybe six months after that may have been
4 Q. The cervical and shoulder x-rays that 4 directly something related to the accident but
5 were taken - S then after that first six months it didn't seem
& A. Were normal. 6 to be as much of a problem, those occipital pains
7 Q. -- were normal, 7 that he first mentioned on that accident date.
B And in your opinion -- ch, pardon me, ] So directly answering your question In
9 et me add to that, there's this delay in 9  my opinion 1 don't believe that the facet
10 reporting of these symptoms? 10 hypertrophy is the result of the accldent itself
11 MR. PALMERO: I object to that as well 11 and I dan't think that the pain that he was
12 because testimony in the medical records are my | 12 having in his left shoulder and his neck was a
13 dients testimony and the medical records aren't | 13 direct result of the accident. 1 think that it
14 exactly the same. My cllent indicated that he 14 may have exacerbated that problem but it
15  had pain but he was more womied about the 15 certainly didn't cause It and that's my opinion.
16 ocripital pain in his head at that point and not 16 Q. Okay. Let me take a look here.
17  his neck pain. 17 MR. PALMERC:. Mind if 1 ask you a quick
1B Q. (BY MR.RDGERS) Okay. 5o the 18 question while you are reviewing?
19 plaintiff says. The medical records, however, 19 MR, ROGERS: No, go ahead.
20 show that there were no complaints for that 20 CROSS- EXAM]NATION
21 six-month period we earlier discussed of neck and |21 BY MR. PALMERO: . S
.1 22 shoulder symptoms. . 22 Q. ¥ he had this condition prior. to the .
23 * Now, your opinlon-in this case is that 23. . accident, would you expect; him to have bam pnor Vagoooe
24 the plaintlﬂ“s compiaints are likely related to - 24 1o the accident in his neck? ° LR PRI
25 a facet hypertrophy? 25 A. He may have been experlencing pain.in - o
Page 78 Page 80 |:
1 A Yes, 1 his left shoulder and his neck even before this :
2 Q. Now, taking this information into 2 acddent but it may have never really been
3 account in your opinion did this car accident 3  brought to his attention to complain about it
4 cause the facet hypertrophy? 4 untll something that precipitated this particular ;
5 A. No, Itis In my opinlon that his facet 5 problem came about as in there can be some issues §:
6 hypenrtrophy was either preexisting or has no 6 here that he's going to gain something If he
7 relabion to this particular accident, ? mentions something with his neck and his arm
B Q. Okay. 8 becuse of the acddent than if he didn't bring
9 A. And the reason that I think the facet 9 itupatall. T dothink there's same secondary
10 hypertrophy is not related to the accident is | 10 gein issue here.
11 don't think you are going to find that kind of 11 Q. Right, but people get injured all the
12 degenerative change take place in such a short |12 time and just because they seek recavery doesn't
13 period of time. 1 think that was already there 13 mean they are being dishonest about stuff even if
14 and I also think that if you want to explain the 14  they are going to gain or not gain. Wouldn't you
15 occipltal headache as a possibillty of this 15 agree even a substantial amount of money isn't
16 accident, there may be some cause and effect to | 16  worth having a significant pain or needing a
17 that 17 surgery or anything tike that?
i8 I think there is some possibility that 18 MR. ROGERS: Just one moment.
19 he may have suffered the occlpital leslon as a 19 Objection, compound but go ahead and answer,
20 result of hitting his head on the cage and, 20 THE WITNESS: You are right that
21 therefore, that may have resulted in like I say 21 somebody could not have a complaint and just say
22 occipital neuralgia or something along those 22 It's because 1 want to complain or there's some
23 lines but the fact is that was never really much 23 other kind of event to intiate the complaint
24 of a major complaint later in the times that 1 24 like an accident but I think that pain is - is a
25 saw him as opposed to when he first presented, |25  very complicated thing and there's more issues
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1 than the physical things to explain it than the 1 Q. And you also indicated you didn't do a

2  other issues as in psychological issues or these 2 full physical examination of my client, correct?

3 legal issues and I think those are equally as 3 A, Yes,

4 important if not more important than the physical 4 MR, PALMERD: Okay.

5 things. 5 MR. ROGERS: Yes, ] don't have anymore

6 So when you say, okay, 15 this guy 6 questions. Solet’s go off, That's .

7 complatning because he had the accident or is he 7 THE COURT REPORTER: Do you want a

B complaining because he's got some kind of 8 copy?

¢ psychological problem in him that makes him 9 MR. PALMERO: Yes, of course.

10 complain and my answer Is it's both, it's because 10 {Thereupon the taking of the

I1 you have the psychological drive to say there's 11 deposltion was concluded at 6:32

12 something to be gained like this accident and 12 o'clock p.m.)

13 there may be some physical thing such as this, 13 * * * *

14 the facet hypentrophy that is causing the 14

15 problem. 15

16 But again when it comes down to what is 16

17 my opinicn, my opinion Is he didn't have this 17

18 facet hypertraphy as a result of this particular 18
19 accident that he was involved in in Apri! of 2005 19
20 and I don't think that the pain problem was 20
21 something that he watlld have been bringing up had | 21
22 he not had this accdent, okay, but I-think it's-:- -~ |22 .
23 notnecessarlly a.direct resuit of the accident: - . {23 .
24 is what I'm saying, . ' 29 C s
25 Q. Now, today you've only reviewed the 125 '

Page 82 Page B4 |

1 records of Southwest Medical, is that correct? 1 CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT |
2 A. And that Is litnited, yeah, by what 2

3 happened right around April 15th, yes, Southwest | 3

4 Medical. 4

s MR. ROGERS: Let me just interject 5 SIGNATURE WAIVED

6 really quickly that he's reviewed all of 6

7 exhibit -- 7

B MR. PALMERO: Are we attaching it as an 8

9 exhibit? 9
10 MR. ROGERS: No, It's Exhibit 4 to the 10
11 plaintiff's ECC production. 11
12 MR. PALMERO: But he hasn't fooked at 12
13 everything you've given him. 13
14 MR, ROGERS: Just Exhibit 4 I think. 14
15 THE WITNESS: Right. I don't know if 15
16 just Exhibit 4. 16 }
17 MR. ROGERS: So whatever radiology 17 ;
18 reports and things are In there, too? 18
19 THE WITNESS: Right. 19
20 Q. {BY MR. PALMERD) And you indicated vou | 20 .
21 personally didn't take a history about this car 21
22 accident -- 22 :
23 A. Corredt. 23
24 Q. -- of my client, correct? 24
25 A, Yes. 25

21 {Pages 81 'to 84")
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
STATE OF NEVADA )
S

COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, Katherine M. Silva, a certlfied court
reporter, Clark County, State of Nevada, do
hereby certify: That 1 reported the taking of the
deposition of the witness, Adam A. Arita, M.D.,
commendng on Wednesday, November 5, 2008, at
4:28 o'clock p.m.

That prior to being examined the witness was
by me duly sworn 10 testify to the truth, That I
thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into
typewriting and that the typewritten transcript
of said deposttion Is a complete, true and
accurate transaiption of said shorthand notes.

1 further certify that 1 am not a relative
or empioyee of an attorney or counset of any of
the parties, nor a relative or employee of an
attomey or counszl involved in said action, nor
2 person financially interested in the action.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand in my office In the County of Clark, State of
Nevada; this 18th day of November, 2008. '

Katherine M. Silva, CCR #203

BT T
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| firm of MAINOR EGLET, and hereby file this Motion in Limine to Preclude Defendant from Raising
7 || a“Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense.
3 This Motion is made and based upon the pleadings and papers on file herein, the attached
4 Points and Authorities, and any argument made by counsel at the hearing of this matter.
5
) DATED this__ | day of February, 2011.
5 MAINOR EGLET
8 2
9 DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
10
1 ORDER SHORTENING TIME
12 It appearing to the satisfaction of the Court, and good cause appearing therefore, IT IS
i3
4 HEREBY ORDERED that the time for hearing on MOTION TO EXCLUDE SUB ROSA VIDEO
for hearing onthe 22 day of Fi 2011, at the hour of §:#e 2.m,, in Department X, in the
15 5 & day _G-B.ﬂ&l:‘_’ ’ ahd ’ P )
16 || above-entitled Court, or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard.
17 DATED this _|4} _day of February, 2011.
18
19
20
RICT COURT JUDGE /
21
22
23
24 | Respectfully submfited by:
25
26 | DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
27
28

000309

000309



=3

MAINOR EGLET

RN B I

oA

T

w0~ S b B W ) —

b [ [} 8 [ N YR ~N [ — — — — — — — — — —
L= I L N I S B o R - T~ T - - B - LU B - ™ N =)

000310

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID T, WALL, ESQ. IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION ON
AN ORDER SHORTENING TIME

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK § >

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ., being first duly sworn, under oath, deposes and says tl_1at:

1.  Affiant is an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and a partner
with the law firm of MAINOR EGLET, counsel for Plaintiffs in this matter;

2. Trial of this matter is currently set to go forward on March 14, 2011;

3. That because the trial date is quickly approaching and because the instant motion
concerns maftters that are central to trial, this matter cannot be heard in normal course and it is

respectfully requested that it be heard on an Order Shortening Time, pursuant to Court order.

FURTHER, AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

DAVID'T. WALL, ESQ.
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me

This_I day of February, 2011.

4 -

ARY PUBLIC

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

On or about April 15, 2005, Plaintiff, WILLIAM SIMAQ, was driving his vehicle on

southbound Interstate 15 in the #1 travel lane near the Cheyenne interchange in Las Vegas,
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Nevada. William had slowed his vehicle to a complete stop for congested traffic when Defendant,
JENNY RISH, failed to decrease her speed and collided with the rear end of William’s vehicle. As
a resuit of the crash, William suffered severe and debilitating ir;juries.

During discovery Defendants produced video, secretly taken of Wiiliam performing
activities of daily living. William never testified that he was absolutely prohibited from
performing the functions shown in the video. All activities in the video are consistent with
William's injuries and within the prophylactic restrictions set forth by his doctors. As such, use of
the video would be improper as it does not “impeach” William and should not be used.

IL

RELIEF REQUESTED

The Plaintifsf request that the Court enter an Order before selection of the jury, instructing
the Defendants, their attorneys and witnesses, not to directly or indirectly mention, refer to,
interrogate concerning, or attempt to convey to the jury in any manner any of the facts indicated
below without first obtaining the permission of the Court outside the presence and hearing of the
jury and further instructing the defense attorneys to warn and caution their clients and each and
every witness to strictly follow any Order entered by the Court in connection with this matter.

I11.
ARGUMENT

The use of the Sub Rosa Video and subsequent report is an improper method of
impeachment. Impeachment evidence is “that which is offered to ‘discredit a witness ... to
reduce the effectiveness of [his] testimony by bringing forth evidence which explains why the jury

should not put faith in [the witness’s) testimony.”” Chiasson v. Zapata Golf Marine Corp., 988

F.2d 513, 517 (5th Cir. 1993).
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Defendants hired an investigator to conduct surveillance of Jon beginning on June 4, 2008
and ending on July 18, 2008. A review of the surveillance footage presents William conducting
activities of daily living; activities in which he has never represented that he absolutely could not
do. In fact, at his deposition, Defense specifically asked, “So are there any activities that you used
to do that you cannot do at all,” to which William responded, “No.” See William's Deposition
Transcript at Exhibit “1,” p. 92, 11:20-22, Furthermore, William’s treating physicians have not
restricted him from continuing his employment and routine activities within his daily life. The
surveillance video is devoid of any footage showing that William was not telling the truth.
Therefore, because the video does not in any way discredit William’s testimony, it would be
improper to use this video to impeach William.

Although Defense has not produced an investigative report in addition to the surveillance
videos, Plaintiffs also request that any existing, but undisclosed report(s) be excluded for the very
same reasons; it is improper impeachment evidence. Not only would the production of an
investigative report be untimely, but the investigative report would be offered to prove the truth of
the matter asserted and, therefore, is hearsay not falling within any of the exceptions to the hearsay
rufe. NRS §51.035.

Therefore, Plaintiffs request that this Court issue an order granting the instant Motion to
exclude the sub rosa video and-any existing, but undisclosed report(s) as such evidence is improper
impeachment evidence and the report is hearsay not within any of the recognized hcarsay

exceptions to the hearsay rule.
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V.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Motion to Exclude
Defendant’s Sub Rosa Video from trial be GRANTED.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this l\ day of February, 2011.

MAINOR EGLET

DAYID T. WALL, ESQ.
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT

CHERYL SIMAO,
WILLIAM SIMAO,

Plaintiffas, CASE NO. A-539455

V. DEPT. X

LINDA RISH,
JAMES RISH,
JENNY RISH,

Defendants.

ﬁEFORE THE HONORABLE JESSIE WALSH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TUESDAY, FEBRARY 15, 2011

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
MOTIONS HEARING

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiffs: DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Mainor Eglet, LLP

For the Defendants: STEVEN M. ROGERS, ESQ.
Hutchison & Steffen, LLC

BRYAN W. LEWIS, ESQ.
Lewis and Associates, LLC
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TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2011 AT S:03 A.M.
MR. WALL: Hi, would you like to take them section by
section?
THE COURT: Sure. It's easier -~-
MR. WALL: All right.
THE COURT: -- for the clerk, as well.
MR. WALL: Yeah, I think so. Thank you.

The first section is prior and subseguent unrelated
accidentsg, injuries, and medical -conditions. I didn't get a
sense from the opposition that as a general course, unrelated
accidents, injuries, or conditiong would be admissible. The
contention that we raised ie that there was two things

specifically: One a 2003 motorcycle accident; and, two, the

plaintiff's high blocd pressure and high cholesterol.

I'm not aware of a record, anywhere, from any
provider, or from defendant's experts that said that the high
blood pressure or high cholestercl contributed to or was
related to any of the injuries we've claimed here. And I
didn't see a reference to any in the opposition,.

With respect to the 2003 motorcycle accident, the
plaintiff, in his deposition testified that he basically had
to lay it down, I think against a curb, as he was riding a
motorcycle. 1It's two years before this took place. He
received some superficial injuries to his right elbow.

There's no right elbow claim in this case. The only reference

AVTranz
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that I've seen to it really is the deposition of Dr. Fish
{(phonetic¢c throughout} the defendant's pain management medical
expert. He made a comméent in his deposition last Thursday
that the plaintiff told him that the migraines that he had,
predating our accident, became somewhat worse after the 2003
motorcycle accident. We're not disputing the fact that he had
migraines at whatever level they were at the time of this
accident, but the fact that they were -- whatever you want to
call it -- at a level 5 and went to a level 6, yeah, it
doesn't matter. We're not disputing the fact that there were
migraines the predated this accident. So beyond that, I'm not
aware of any record or any witness who somehow relates the
2003 motorcycle accident to the injuries claimed in this case.

8o we'd ask for an order precluding those, as well
as the general order precluding unrelated conditions,

injuries, or treatment.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers.

MR. ROGERS: Yes. Factually, what's going on in the case
is, there's a 2005 car accident and the plaintiff claims that
the accident aggravated his preexisting migraines, which in
turn, masked a new injury of cervical problems for which he
later had surgery. And nobody contends that high blood
pressure contributed to that condition.

Where the motorcycle accident seems to have come

into play is this aggravation of wmigraine issue, because the
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plaintiff, it seems, is now going to use this as the reason
for which there was a delayed onset in neck pain. What
happens is, right after the accident, the plaintiff goes in to
a medical center and the day of the incident he complains of
neck pain, but then he doesn't complain of it again for six
months, a long time passes. Naturally, we're asking how could
that be if it‘'s a traumatic injury. And his response, now,

is, well, it's migraines.

And that makes the motorcycle incident relevant
because, Dr. Fish, at his deposition testified that this car
accident did not likely aggravate migraines. It didn't have
anything to do with it. And if the plaintiff's aoctors are
going to get on the stand and testify that in some fashion,
this car accident aggravated migraines, well, then the
question is how. What kind of migraine is it; where does it
come from; what's the generator; and if this accident could do
it, did the motorcycle accident do it; and if the motorcycle
accident did it, what's the difference between the two? We
need to, now, explore this masking claim that's being made.

So the migraine claim and the motorcycle accident
have become relevant.

THE COURT: Let me ask you a question.
MR. ROGERS: Yes.
THE COURT: Doesg the defense have a witness who is going

to link the issue that you have described?
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MR. ROGERS: Well, actually, thie is what just surfaced
on Thursday in this deposition that Dave was explaining,

Dr. Fish's deposition. The gquestioning from plaintiff's
counsel is what suggested that it would be migraines as a
masking phenomenon, that it explains the six month delay in
onget. That's where it comes from. In other words, it seems
that the plaintiff's own doctors are going to be using it.

THE COURT: 1Is that right, Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: No, that's not, Judge. And this whole claim
of masking -- here's what takes place: He hag migraines,
admittedly, before the April 2005 accident that we're here
for. He's had them. He's had theﬁ, in some of the records
they say, they go back ten years. Whether they're a little
worse after the motorcycle accident or not, he has them and he
seeks treatment for them before our accident. I have no
prcblem with that. He then goes to the hospital the date of
the -- maybe urgent care, the day of the accident; complains
of head pain, neck pain, and left shoulder pain. They treat
him maybe four or five different times, over the next two
months or so, focusing on the head pain, which is the worst.
They give us that period of time, all of the defense experts,
that two month period. Now, they stop it after that, but they
do give us that. They did a scan of his head locking for
intracranial lesions and things like that, and finally told

him, everything locks fine. You're good teo go, come back and
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talk to us in six months.

The plaintiff's testimony will be, I continued to
have head pain and neck pain during that périod of time. I
came back in four months, and not six, complaining of this
neck pain, and here I am, and he's had mountains of treatment
gince then.

There is no record that br. Fish looked at, any
medical record, after thie motorcycle accident to say, hum, I
can relate some of his symptoms there to this. Nothing. He
has reviewed nothing in conjunction with that motorcycle
accident, except that during the IME itself, he talked to
plaintiff who said, apparently, I had this motorcycle accident
in 2003. My migraines may have gotten worse. We're not
disputing that he had migraines, but the accident itself it
not a cause. There's no alternate theory that the defense is
posing that's related to those -- to that motorcycle accident
that has any foundation, and more staccato, or any reasonable
degree of medical probability.

So I don't see why the accident would come in.
Migraines, absolutely; preexisting, no gquestion. The accident
itself, the high blood pressure, I don't see what the
relevance would be. They're not related.

And it's not going to be ocur position that he
suffered from migraines in lieu of the neck complaints, that

it was migraines and not a serious cervical injury. That is
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Dr. Fish's pergpective, but I'll submit it on that.

THE COURT: The motion is granted, although if
plaintiff's expert witness testified as Mr. Rogers has
indicated, then I think that that's prcobably fair game for
purposes of cross-examination.

MR. WALL: He was referring toc his expert. That's the
deposition we were talking about.

THE COURT: Well, I thought he said it was the
plaintiff's expert, but it was his expert?

MR. WALL: ©No, it was my questions, but it wasg their
expert.

MR. ROGERS: I may have misspoke, Your Honor, and I can
clarify it, I think, now. The defense has never contended
that the motorcycle accident caused a cervical injury. The
defense is that, there is mno cervical injury and that the pain
is actually @ referral pain from the migraines. That's where
the migraines become so central to everything. And we do see,
from the medical records, an increased incidents of treatment
for migraines following the motorcycle accident, and that's
really what makes it relevant, is now we're wondering, okay,
what's causing these migraines; how did the motorcycle
accident aggravate them; and now you're saying that this
subject car accident aggravated them and that's the reason you
didn't feel your neck pain for so long.

So this isn't about the defense saying, hey, didn't
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that motorcycle accident cause your neck problems. 1It's not
like that. The defense doesn't have any intention of trying
to mislead the jury in that fashion. It's really the
migraines we're focusing on.

THE COURT: And it looks like the migraines is a fair
issue for you to explore during the course of trial, and the
jury can sort it all out, and come to their own conclusions
with respect their evaluation of the respective expert
witnesses.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. Next motion.

MR. WALL: The second part of that one was, issues a
malingering magnifying symptoms are secondary gain. .To my
knowledge, there ien't any witness whe says that there's an
issue of malingering, that there's an intentional action of --
by Mr. Simac. The -- really, symptom magnification hadn't --
didn't come up in either of the IMEs. Now, understand that
cne of the expert doctors is'being deposed in about four
hours, but from his three reports that I've seen so far,
there's nothing about symptom magnification.

The issue, then, is this issue of secondary gain.
And what's brought up in the opposition is the deposition of a
Dr. Adam Arita who is a treating physician. He was a pain
management doctor who treated Mr. Simao from the fall of 2006

to about the summexr of 2007; did some of the injection
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therapy, not only to try to manage the pain, but also to
determine what the pain generator was as a diagnostic tool
going forward. This issue of secondary gain, and I know the
Court ig familiar with it, you know, the inference is, when
you bring that up that somehow Mr. Simao is faking it; that
this is a product of the litigation that has him making these
complaints; that he went through dozens, and dozens, maybe up
to a hundred medical appointments, I would say at least a
dozen injection procedures, and two-legged fusion, apparently,
as a result of trying to enhance his ability obtain money at
litigation. I know the Court is aware how highly prejudicial
that type of evidence is.

Dr. Arita made that statement. in his deposition --
and I don't remember entirely, but I think his deposition was
in the beginning of 2008. Yeah, November of 2008. He treated
the plaintiff from, let's say, mid-'06 to mid-'07, The
éurgery ign't until 2009. In between the time that Dr. Arita
treated him and the surgery, there's multiple doctors doing
multiple things trying to identify pain generators. There is
sympathetic root blocks. There's probably facet blocks.
There's a discogram procedure, which the surgeon ultimately
rely upon, among the other things, to make a decision along
with Mr. Simao to undergo surgery in March of 2009,

Now, Dr. Arita, in his deposition, before any of

that has happened, says he didn't think surgery was indicated

\
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when he treated Mr. Simao. And then he launches into this,
what I would call a highly speculative stream of consciousness
on secondary gain. And after it was raised in the opposition,
we tried to quote as completely_as we could in the reply,
beginning on page 4 of our reply, and what he says is, I don't
believe that the facet hypertrophy is the result of the
accident itself. And I don't think that the pain that he was
having in his left shoulder and his neck was a direct result
of the accident. T think it may have exacerbated that
problem, but it didn't cause it. That's my opinion.

You know, he can have that opinion if he wants,
that's not -- it doesn't matter, because even if it's a
preexisting condition that's exacerbated it still obviously
comes before the jury. Then he said -- ch, on to page 5, he
may have been experiencing pain in his left shoulder and in
his neck, even before the accident. Now, there isn't one
record anywhere that suggests that there was left shoulder or
neck pain prior to the accident.

o He goes on to say, it may have never really been
brought to his attention to complain about it until something
that precipitated this particular problem came about. As in,
there can be some issues here that he's going to gain
something if he mentiong, something with his neck and his arm,
because of the accident, than if he didn't bring it up at all.

I do think there's some secondary gain issue here.
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He goes on to say, after the next guestion, you are
right that somebody could not have a complaint and just say
it's because I want to complain or there's some other kind of
event to initiate the complaint like an accident. But I think
that pain is, is a very complicated thing and there's more
igsues than the physical things to explain, than the other
issues as in psychological issues or these legél igsues, and I
think those are equally as important, if not, more important
than the physical things. Appears to be talking in great
generalities at that point.

. He goes on to say, so when you say, okay, is this
guy complaining because he had the accident or is he
complaining because he's got some kind of psychological
problem in him that makes him complain. And my answer 1is,
it's both; it's because you have the psychological drive to
say there's something to be gained like this accident and
there may be some physical thing, such as this, the facet
hypertrophy that is causing the problem. Still, to me,
appears to be very general; not specific.

And then he says, but again, when it comes down to
what my -- what is my opinion, my opinion is, he didn't have
this facet hypertrophy as a result of this particular accident
that he was involved in, in April of 2005. And I don't think
that the pain problem was something that he would have been

bringing up had he not had this acecident, okay. But I think
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it's not necessarily a direct result of the accident, is what
I'm saying.

So if there's a problem with his cervical spine, Dr.
Arita says, it may have been preexisting, then the issue is
whether it's symptomatic or not symptomatic, and whether the
accident, the trauma of the accident, brought it on. But for
him to just sort of take a shot in the dark and say, I think
that it could -- you know, you mever know, it could be
psychological, it could be pain, maybe he would have brought
it up, or wouldn't have brought it up if it hadn't been for
the accident; because of the prejudicial affect of this kind
of testimony and the fact that it's really within the domain
of a psychelogical expert, which the defense does not have, I
would ask the Court, if nothing else, to balance the probative
value of that -- those generalities against the prejudicial
affect it would have to have Dr. Arita come into court four
years after he treated my client to suddenly say, yeah, I
guess I said it was, you know, potentially secondary gain, so
it must be. All right. He -- it is complete speculation,
what he talks about. It's based on zero documentary evidence.
He doesn't explain, in any way, what led him to some finding
that there was a psychological problem leading to secondary
gain. It's a matter for expert witness testimony. I don't
think the defense experts even really say that, other than to

say Dr. Arita noted secondary gain, at least that's
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essentially what Dr. Fish said. There isn'tla shred of
evidence to support it. It's more prejudicial than probative
and I -~ well, I'd submit it on that at this point.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Mr. Reogers.

MR. ROGERS: Thank you. The plaintiff argues that only a
mental health professional can diagnose secondary gain, but
they cite no authority for such a proposition. You've
pregided over plenty of these cases, and you've observed how
physical medicine specialists, spine surgeons, pain
management, and so forth will do all sorts of tests to fair
out secondary gain: They will take MRIs and do other
diagnostic studies; they'll compare it to the clinical
presentation; then they'll do injection therapy and they're
trying to see does this symptom match the physiology, what's
going on in the body. If it doesn't, red flags go up. This
is what plaintiff is calling speculation. It's everything,
but. This is what these doctors do every day.

You've heard of gsome specific tests that they administer
to determine whether there might be potential secondary gain,
such as Waddell's tests. What happened in Dr. Arita's
depositicn, which goes on for something like a hundred pages,
ig, he comes in and he says, these are all the injections I
performed. He's a pain management guy. And he 4id the vasgt
majority of the plaintiff's injections: Epidurals, selective

nerve root blocks, risodomies, and so forth. And then as he
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examined the case more forensically at the deposition -- right
on the eve of the surgery really, he'd -- the plaintiff had
already been recommended for surgery, -he just hadn't done it
yet -- Dr. Arita is locking at everything and he says, there's
a real problem here. None of this matches up. And when none
of it matches up, there's a real potential, or in this case he
said, there's a real issue of secondary gain. You know,
counsel is talking apout facet hypertrophy and all those
things, Dr. Arita had examined all of those parts of the
spine, and he said, after I examined them all, none of it
matched up. And that's the concern here.

Of course, there's foundation for it. 1It's not
speculative. If it were speculative, I'm sure the plaintiff
could have found some expert to come in and say so, but no cne
has. Counsel can't just come in and argue that this doctor is
basing his opinion on spmething that medicine doesn't
recognize, bring in an expert to say that.

THE COURT: Well --

MR. ROGERS: But anyhow, in this case, the real problem
is the inverse of the plaintiff's position, because, of course
it hurts the plaintiff to have a treating medical provider
say, listen, you've got some inconsistencies here.

The other medical providers who thg plaintiff will call
to the stand will all say, I didn't =see any inconsistencies.

No, I don't know anything about this car accident, but in my
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medical opinion, in my expert opinion, that car accident
caused these problems. What's your foundation for that? 1It's

the plaintiff's say so. In other words, the treating doctors

could be vouching for the plaintiff.

So a ruling granting this motion would permit some
doctors to comment on the plaintiff's credibility, and the
ones who disagree with those, would be excluded. And that
simply would be a misleading way to present this case
completely and factually to the jury.

THE COURT: Mr. Rogers, is there anything specific that
Dr. Arita points to when he uses the term secondary gain?

MR. ROGERS: If I could pull my brief, I remember quoting
something to that effect, and it was, at least in the excerpt
that I gave the Court. It was the inconsistencies between the
complaints, and what was observed in his injections, where he
said the problem is -- for example, he's complaining of a
ridiculer symptom into his arm, but the only thing we see on
the films, the MRIg, is an overgrowth, and arthritis at a
joint that's affecting a nerve root that doesn't innervate
that area. That's what they call a dermatcme. So that nerve
doesn't go there, and if that's the only problem that we see
on the films, well, that doesn't explain this complaint of
his. So I'm doing these other injections, now, to see, is
there something we're not observing on the films, and they

don't provide the relief that could be characterized as
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diagnostic.

In other words, everything we're doing on all there

levels of the spine to try to figure out why he's complaining

of what he's complaining of, don't bear out the complaints at

all.

So, yes, he goes on at length through his depo about how

it is that there are these inconsistencies, and these

inconsistencies, he says, are the basis for his conclusion

that there are issues of potential secondary gain.

And don't be misled by the reply to the briefs. It

cites an excerpt from the DSN, that has a very loaded

definition of secondary gain. Secondary gain is something of

a complexity far more than conscious misrepresentation.

and seen of instances where there are

You've heard, I'm sure,

000330

citations to publications in the medical field about real

problems in worker's compensation settings, where the doctors

We don't know why

are saying, we don't know what's going on.

there are these inconsistencies. We don't know why this

18 patient is complaining of things that physical medicine can't

19 help. We call that secondary gain, but we're not calling that

patient a liar. None of these doctors have said that Mr.

Simac ig a liar. Some have gimply said, it looks like there's

issues of gecondary gain; meaning, inconsistencies that

medicine and these diagnostic studies won't explain.

24 THE COURT: Well, if your witness isn't calling him a

liar, then what do you mean by secondary gain?
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MR. ROGERS: Well, that's the subtlety, that's the
complexity that I was talking about with secondary gain. I'm
sure any doctor who would get on the stand and explain the
phenomenon would say that, in many instances, secondary gain
is not a conscientious move, it's something that can happen to
people who get involved in -- in many instances, in this
worker's compensation claims and claims where there's a
potential for gain. And they seem to, for reasons sometimes
out of their own conscious control, begin to complain of
things that simply have no foundation, have no basis at all.
And performing invasive procedures on such patients is
invariably a poor decision.

In this case, the evidence is going to show that an

invasive procedure was performed, and it was a poor decision,

it turned out badly. The problem never was what the plaintiff
claimed it was and was his doctors ultimately decided to
operate on. Well, the jury is naturally going to wonder why
is that. If you went in and you did this treatment, why isn't
the plaintiff better? This dovetails with issues of secondary
gain. I will not call the plaintiff a liar. I understand my
limitations, but the jury is entitled to be educated on this
medically known phenomenon and how it impacts this case.

THE COURT: A couple of questions. Does Dr. Arita go
into great detail about the complexity of this issue of

secondary gain as you've described?
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MR. ROGERS: I wish I knew that off the top of my head.

THE COURT: In his deposition?

MR. ROGERS: I could lock it over and, you know,
supplement a briefing on it., But, yeah, as I understand it,
he never once called the plaintiff a liar.

THE CQURT: The second question:; Was it a recent
deposition of Dr. Arita or it's been some time ago?

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, his deposition was at the end of 2008,

is -- as Dave pointed ocut. The arc of the treatment was that

the plaintiff underwent a whole bunch of injections --

remember the accident is '05 -- and then he undergoes all
these injections, and then he gets a surgical recommendation
from Dr. McNulty. And he decides, you know, I -- for reasons
of my own -- I don't mean to embarrass Dr. McNulty or anybody.
He says, I'm not going to stay with this guy. I'm going to
move to other doctors. And it was during that wmove, at the
end of 2008, that we deposed Dr. Arita, and laid out the whole
cage in front of him, and said here are the films, here are
the gtudied, here's everything, what's your opinion. And that
was the last we heard f£rom him.

THE COURT: Qkay.

MR. WALL: Judge, just a couple thingg. This --

THE COQURT: Mr. Wall.

MR. WALL: Basically, these doctors talk on sort of a
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continuum. At one end of the continuum, they have what they
call a walingering, which is -- it's intentional. You know
this. You know, you're intentionally faking this. And the
middle is sort of symptom magnification. You're making your
symptoms seem worse, it may not be entirely intentional. And
then at the far end, they've got this secondary gain. This is
the term itself. You're going to gain something. But they
all say, it's not intentional. It's not even conscious. We
all have issues of secondary gain. I mean, the classic, you
know, comments from the doctors is, you know what, I get sick,
I stay home, there's a secondary gain there because I'm going
to get some attention from my wife, I hope.

THE COURT: Maybe, maybe not.

MR. WALL: On the record I'm going to say I absolutely
would get some attention. I may get chicken soup. That's
secondary gain. When every time you go to the doctor, you get
medicine. That's secondary gain. And so there will all kind
of often put people into that category, but connctation to the
non-medical perscn or the people who don't deal with this
every day in terms of litigation, is that the plaintiff is
trying to gain something as a result of claiming that there's
pain.

If Dr. Arita or anybody else wants to say, I don't
see how this matches up medically, or we did this test and it

should have shown this, but it showed this, or I don't think
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the MRIs show a problem. That's fine. Bukt to take that extra
step and say that it's a psychological, subconscious issue of
trying to gain scmething, is what's so prejudicial to the
jury.

I would love to acceépt Mr. Rogers' invitation to
bring an expert in to say, there's no secondary gain here. It
would ﬁrobably have to be a psychiatrist. It would
essentially be an expert whe says my client is telling the
truth, would be impexmissible.

I would note that, that of all the motions on today,
the cne that we filed the non-opposition to is the defendant's
motion to preclude witnesses from offering testimony asz to the
credibility or veracity of a witness, because he's right, and
that's exactly what this type of testimony would do.

THE COURT: Well, I'm inclined to agree. I think the
motion should be granted. That's not to say, howevex, that
Dr. Arita cannot come in here and testify that he didn't think
William needed any surgery or future medical care. I think he
can point out any inconsistency thinks.-' any inconsistencies
he sees in his evaluation, but I don‘t think there's -- from
what I've geen and what I've heard, I don't think there's any
evidence to support Dr. Arita talking about secondary gain or
talking about the Plaintiff a malingerex, so he should stay
away from those terms.

MR. WALL: Thank you, Judge.
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MR. ROGERS: May I just follow up on -- the risk in this
one obviously is that the next step is that the Plaintiff will
ask the Defense medical experts, basically how else then do
you explain these symptoms? And that is an invitation to this
very discussion and it would force the question to remain
unanswered when these doctors know very well how else somecne
could have symptoms that can’t be explained by any physical
means ‘and why this surgery in the end did not work

In other words, this is a generic motion that sort
of invites confusion because of the potential questions from
Plaintiff's counsel. The reason I bring this up is I
anticipate that may happen, not on purpose. I think Dave's an
honorable guy, but something could, you know, just in the heat
of trial, you could get lost in the thing and all of a sudden
this door is going to be open because there is an explanatiocn
for why the symptoms are there, even though there's no
physical basis for it.

THE COURT: Well, I think counsel can conduct proper and
effective direct e#amination and cross-examination without
violating the Court's order and that's why I specifically
stated that this doctor should stay away from the term
secondary gain or malingerer.

MR. ROGERS: Okay.

MR. WALL: Thank you, Judge. The next part of it is --

it's entitled treating physicians do not need to prepare
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expert witness reports. 1 don't know if we want to include in
here, for now,_the Defendant's motion in limine to limit
testimony of treating doctors? Our opposition to that, we
basically attached our brief for this section of our omnibus
motion in limine, but esgsentially I don't think there's really
a disagreement on the basics of the exception under 16.1{a} (2)
whatever about treating doctors.

I guess the crux of the issue is that for -- that
the -- according to the Defense, the treating doctors
shouldn't be able to testify to the appropriateness of another
doctor's care, although I guess they want Dr. Arita to be able
to testify that the surgery wag unnecessary, but certainly as
it relates to my understanding of the way that we'wve handled
this rule is to the -- as it relates to what was done that
certainly proceeded that doctor, the surgeon for instance can
testify to all the things that were done prior to the surgery,
most of them went into his decision ultimately and his
discussions with Mr. Simao to have the surgery. Certainly,
Mr. Simac can testify that we went through all of these
various things and this is what they told me it showed and I
finally sat down with Dr. McNulty in 2009 and decided to have
the surgery.

I don't know specifically what it is they're asking
to keep out. There isn't a specific reference to anything

that they're asking be kept out. They say there's not a
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disagreement on the actual rule, but then they say that the
testimony of Plaintiff's treating doctors is just limited to
their treatwment and that's not the law. As we set forth
certainly in the reply, the treating physiciane under Elgess
[phonetic] and under -- I think it's Harnishfager [phonetic],
can testify to issues of causation, necesgity of medical
treatment, the things that basically preceded them.

Now, I wouldn‘t ask a doctor who saw him in 2005 to
testify about the surgery in 2009, but the things that they
did and the reasons they did them, Dr. McNulty and other --
Dr. Grover as well, the gpine surgeons referred him out to
thege pain management doctors to do certain things, try to
isolate, all of that. The spine surgeon can certainly testify
to that and Elgegs allows it. They don't have to prepare a
report that says why those were necessary. They can certainly
testify to all of that treatment that proceeded -- that went
into their decision that they had available to them. 1I'd
submit it on that.

THE COURT: You know, Mr. Wall, I was wondering the same
thing as I was reading the pleadings, what it was that they
were seeking to keep out, given the law in Nevada, and 1
didn't know if what they were Erying to keep out was future
care or medical treatment, as you have basgically described.
Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Yes, it seems that the opposition to this
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motion and then the Defendant's motion in limine kind of

overrun one another.

And if we will limit the issue in this

motion and opposition to what it is the treating providers can

testify about, that's fine with me, and then we can get into

futures later on the motion.

have done,

based on factors not learned in the course of his treatment.

For years,

Elgess,

up until the amendments,
requirement was on the Defense medical experts or other

specially retained experts.

as Mr. Wall has cited,

the only reporting

I'll address it however you
like, but what we're loocking to exclude, in terms of what the

treating providers can say with respect to what other doctors

ruled that a

treating provider is not allowed to render a medical opinion

And what ig develeoping now with the newer rules of

civil procedure is more of an equal or level playing field.

000338

They had to produce reports.

And

there were instances where a treating physician, for example,

would get on the stand and discuss things that were a surprise

to the Defense because they'd say look, I deposed him and I've

seen his records and he never discussed any of those issues

and here he is surprising the Defense and this is'prejudicial,

Notice,

what's going on.

this is hurting the Defendant's case.

Plaintiff going to call to discuss all of this DBr. Arita

treatment, for example, and how are we to be prepared to

in other words, just give us notice of

And so, in this case for example, who is the
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cross-examine this expert because we've depoged most, if not
all, the treating providers and we don't know what their
response is going to be on everything.

and then the rules were amended and now they read,
under Rule 26[e], you have to describe what your witness is

going to say. And then you have to amend it if he hasn't said

what he's going to say. You have to supplement it, you have

to supplement it timely, and the entire reason is to avoid and
prohibit unfair surprise. 8o, in other words, if the
Plaintiff wants to tell the Defense okay, these are the
doctors we're going to bring in and these are the subjects
they're going to testify about, just tell us and then we'll be
ready. And if we need to conduct additional discovery, then
we can ask you for that, but at least there won't be any
unfair surprise. That's really what this is about.

There's no specific example of what it's about
because we don't know yet who's going to be called to testify
about what given the witness descriptions.

THE COURT: But didn't you just say you had an
opportunity to depose the Plaintiff's expert -- or treating
doctors and you did so?

MR. ROGERS: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Wall®?

MR. WALL: Well, they basically testified about the

treatment they rendered, the things they did, if they were
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referred by -- like the pain management guys, if a surgeon
referred the Plaintiff to them, they explained that they were
referred, that they were told, you know, to do this, to try to
isolate this, they did these things, either as part of
conservative care or as diagnostic tools and then back to the
surgeon. The surgeon looks at it, maybe sends him out to
somebody else, it's still not clear to me, blah, blah, blah.
Does this nerve root block and such and such?

2nd they've deposed each of thosge treating doctors
on what they did and then Dr. McNulty ultimately -- or
actually Dr. Grover at one point recommended -- I don't know
if he recommended, sald that the Plaintiff was a candidate for
surgery. Ultimately he ends up back with Dr. McNulty who has
all of this information from other providers, does some more
himself to try to isolate it before he goces through the
gsurgery, and they deposed him on that. They've deposed him.
twice, once before the surgery, once after the surgery.

So they have all the information from each provider

on what they did and they even have from Dr. McNulty how he

relied on those previous things, the MRIs and there's four --
there's at least three MRIs before the surgery and how he
relied on those and what he saw in those and what he didn't
see, and if he saw something he referred him out for some more
diagnostic injections and things. So they have all that.

S0 I don't know entirely what it is they're asking
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to keep out at this point. There is no report requirement.
We've been supplementing with medical records as he continues
to treat -- that's the subject of another motion, but we've
provided them with everything that was done, they deposed all
those doctors, so I don't -- there is no 26[{e] reporting
requirement for the treating doctors to seasocnably supplement
their report because there's no report requirement.

So -- and I will say that Elgess case is the one
that says, since a treating physician's opinions on matters
such as causation, future treatment, extent of disability and
the like are part of the ordinary care of a patient, the
treating physician may testify to such an opinion without
being subject to the extensgive reporting requirements under
Rule 26, and that's what we've relied upon.

THE COURT: Any final thoughts, Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Yes, thank you. Thank you. Actually, Mr.
Wall points to the perfect example of what this problem is.
It is -- Dr. McNulty we're prepared for because he
incorporated everything into his opiniong. S0 when we
examined him, as we do with all treating medical providers,
did you look at anything else, do you have any other opinions?
Yes., Okay, well let's finish that up then and then ultimately
no, okay we're done now with this deposition.

So while he took on a mantle of something a little

different than the simple treating provider in that
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deposition, at least we have notice and we're prepared for it.
The problem is whether some doctor who didn't disclose
something in his deposition, let's say for example, Dr. Grover
or Dr. Rosler, both from the same group who were also deposed
in this case, that they didn't comment on any of these things
when I asked them, do you have any other opinions? Did you
lo0ok at anything else? BAnd they said no.

Okay. Are they allowed then to come into trial with
new opinicons, new bases? That's what these rules say you
can't do. This is -- I mean, 26[e] isn't limited to expert
reports, it's all evidence. It's whatever witness is geing to
get on the stand and whatever they're going to say and
whatever you've produced during the course of discovery, if
there's something new you have to supplement it and you have
to supplement it timely so that the Defense is prepared for
it.

THE COURT: Mr. Wall?
MR, WALL: JIt's -- I guess I go back to the actual motion
itself, which was strictly that the Court rule pursuant to

Elgess and Harnishfager -- Piper versus Harnishfager, the

treating physicians do not need to prepare expert report
separate from and in addition to their medical records and
dictated reports, which we've provided.

THE COURT: The motion as it was drafted, and as it was

argued, is granted, but I will say that obviously Plaintiffs
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